
Administrative Package 
Cover Page  

This file contains the following documents: 
1. Summary of application (in plain language) 

• English 
• Alternative Language (Spanish) 

2. First Notice (NORI-Notice of Receipt of Application and Intent to Obtain a 
Permit) 

• English 
• Alternative Language (Spanish) 

3. Application materials 

 

 

Portada de Paquete 
Administrativo  

Este archivo contiene los siguientes documentos: 
1. Resumen en lenguaje sencillo (PLS, por sus siglas en inglés) de la actividad 

propuesta 

• Inglés 
• Idioma alternativo (español) 

2. Primer aviso (NORI, por sus siglas en inglés) 

• Inglés 
• Idioma alternativo (español) 

3. Solicitud original 

 





INDUSTRIALES



 

 

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

 

NOTICE OF RECEIPT OF APPLICATION AND 
INTENT TO OBTAIN WATER QUALITY PERMIT 

AMENDMENT 

PERMIT NO. WQ0005231000 

APPLICATION. Seaboard Foods LLC, 9000 West 67th Street, Shawnee Mission, Kansas 66202, 
which owns a swine feed processing facility, has applied to the Texas Commission on 
Environmental Quality (TCEQ) to amend Texas Land Application Permit (TLAP) No. 
WQ0005231000 to authorize an increase to the disposal of treated wastewater to a volume 
not to exceed a daily average flow of 11,000 gallons per day and the addition of a second 
evaporation pond. The facility and disposal site are located at 12025 West State Highway 15, 
near the city of Perryton, in Ochiltree County, Texas 79070. TCEQ received this application on 
May 14, 2024. The permit application will be available for viewing and copying at Perry 
Memorial Library, 22 Southeast 5th Avenue, Perryton, in Ochiltree County, Texas prior to the 
date this notice is published in the newspaper. The application, including any updates, and 
associated notices are available electronically at the following webpage: 
https://www.tceq.texas.gov/permitting/wastewater/pending-permits/tlap-applications.  
This link to an electronic map of the site or facility's general location is provided as a public 
courtesy and not part of the application or notice. For the exact location, refer to the 
application. 
https://gisweb.tceq.texas.gov/LocationMapper/?marker=-100.926666,36.341944&level=18  

ALTERNATIVE LANGUAGE NOTICE. Alternative language notice in Spanish is available at 
https://www.tceq.texas.gov/permitting/wastewater/pending-permits/tlap-applications.  
El aviso de idioma alternativo en español está disponible en 
https://www.tceq.texas.gov/permitting/wastewater/pending-permits/tlap-applications. 

ADDITIONAL NOTICE. TCEQ’s Executive Director has determined the application is 
administratively complete and will conduct a technical review of the application. After 
technical review of the application is complete, the Executive Director may prepare a draft 
permit and will issue a preliminary decision on the application. Notice of the Application 
and Preliminary Decision will be published and mailed to those who are on the county-
wide mailing list and to those who are on the mailing list for this application. That notice 
will contain the deadline for submitting public comments. 

PUBLIC COMMENT / PUBLIC MEETING. You may submit public comments or request a 
public meeting on this application. The purpose of a public meeting is to provide the 
opportunity to submit comments or to ask questions about the application. TCEQ will hold a 
public meeting if the Executive Director determines that there is a significant degree of public 

https://www.tceq.texas.gov/permitting/wastewater/pending-permits/tlap-applications
https://gisweb.tceq.texas.gov/LocationMapper/?marker=-100.926666,36.341944&level=18
https://www.tceq.texas.gov/permitting/wastewater/pending-permits/tlap-applications
https://www.tceq.texas.gov/permitting/wastewater/pending-permits/tlap-applications


 

interest in the application or if requested by a local legislator. A public meeting is not a 
contested case hearing. 

OPPORTUNITY FOR A CONTESTED CASE HEARING. After the deadline for submitting 
public comments, the Executive Director will consider all timely comments and prepare a 
response to all relevant and material, or significant public comments. Unless the application 
is directly referred for a contested case hearing, the response to comments, and the 
Executive Director’s decision on the application, will be mailed to everyone who 
submitted public comments and to those persons who are on the mailing list for this 
application. If comments are received, the mailing will also provide instructions for 
requesting reconsideration of the Executive Director’s decision and for requesting a 
contested case hearing. A contested case hearing is a legal proceeding similar to a civil trial 
in state district court.  

TO REQUEST A CONTESTED CASE HEARING, YOU MUST INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING ITEMS 
IN YOUR REQUEST: your name, address, phone number; applicant's name and proposed 
permit number; the location and distance of your property/activities relative to the 
proposed facility; a specific description of how you would be adversely affected by the 
facility in a way not common to the general public; a list of all disputed issues of fact that 
you submit during the comment period and, the statement "[I/we] request a contested 
case hearing." If the request for contested case hearing is filed on behalf of a group or 
association, the request must designate the group’s representative for receiving future 
correspondence; identify by name and physical address an individual member of the 
group who would be adversely affected by the proposed facility or activity; provide the 
information discussed above regarding the affected member’s location and distance from 
the facility or activity; explain how and why the member would be affected; and explain 
how the interests the group seeks to protect are relevant to the group’s purpose. 

Following the close of all applicable comment and request periods, the Executive Director will 
forward the application and any requests for reconsideration or for a contested case hearing 
to the TCEQ Commissioners for their consideration at a scheduled Commission meeting. 

The Commission may only grant a request for a contested case hearing on issues the 
requestor submitted in their timely comments that were not subsequently withdrawn. If a 
hearing is granted, the subject of a hearing will be limited to disputed issues of fact or 
mixed questions of fact and law relating to relevant and material water quality concerns 
submitted during the comment period.  

MAILING LIST. If you submit public comments, a request for a contested case hearing or a 
reconsideration of the Executive Director’s decision, you will be added to the mailing list for 
this specific application to receive future public notices mailed by the Office of the Chief 
Clerk. In addition, you may request to be placed on: (1) the permanent mailing list for a 
specific applicant name and permit number; and/or (2) the mailing list for a specific county. 
If you wish to be placed on the permanent and/or the county mailing list, clearly specify 
which list(s) and send your request to TCEQ Office of the Chief Clerk at the address below. 

INFORMATION AVAILABLE ONLINE. For details about the status of the application, visit the 
Commissioners’ Integrated Database at www.tceq.texas.gov/goto/cid. Search the database 
using the permit number for this application, which is provided at the top of this notice. 

http://www.tceq.texas.gov/goto/cid


 

AGENCY CONTACTS AND INFORMATION. All public comments and requests must be 
submitted either electronically at https://www14.tceq.texas.gov/epic/eComment/, or in 
writing to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, Office of the Chief Clerk, MC-105, 
P.O. Box 13087, Austin, Texas 78711-3087. Please be aware that any contact information you 
provide, including your name, phone number, email address and physical address will 
become part of the agency’s public record. For more information about this permit 
application or the permitting process, please call the TCEQ Public Education Program, Toll 
Free, at 1-800-687-4040 or visit their website at www.tceq.texas.gov/goto/pep. Si desea 
información en Español, puede llamar al 1-800-687-4040. 

Further information may also be obtained from Seaboard Foods LLC at the address stated 
above or by calling Ms. Jennifer Nelson, Associate General Counsel, at 913-261-2600. 

Issuance Date: June 12, 2024 

 

https://www14.tceq.texas.gov/epic/eComment/
http://www.tceq.texas.gov/goto/pep


Comisión de Calidad Ambiental del Estado de Texas 
 

 
 

AVISO DE RECEPCIÓN DE LA SOLICITUD Y  
LA INTENCIÓN DE OBTENER CALIDAD DEL AGUA PERMISO  

MODIFICACION 
  

PERMISO NO. WQ0005231000 
 
SOLICITUD. Seaboard Foods LLC, 9000 West 67th Street, Suite 200, Shawnee Mission, Kansas 
66202, propietaria de una instalación de procesamiento de alimentos para cerdos, ha 
solicitado a la Comisión de Calidad Ambiental de Texas (TCEQ) para modificar el Permiso 
para Aplicación al Suelo de Texas (TLAP) No. WQ0005231000 para autorizar un aumento en la 
descarga de aguas residuales tratadas a un volumen que no sobrepasa un flujo promedio 
diario de 11.000 galones por día y la adición de una segunda laguna de evaporación. La 
instalación y el sitio de descarga están ubicados en 12025 West State Highway 15, cerca de la 
ciudad de Perryton, en el condado de Ochiltree, Texas 79070. La TCEQ recibió esta solicitud el 
14 de mayo de 2024. La solicitud para el permiso estará disponible para leerla y copiarla en la 
Perry Memorial Library, 22 Southeast 5th Avenue, Perryton, en el condado de Ochiltree, Texas, 
antes de la fecha de publicación de este aviso en el periódico. La solicitud (cualquier 
actualización y aviso inclusive) está disponible electrónicamente en la siguiente página web: 
https://www.tceq.texas.gov/permitting/wastewater/pending-permits/tlap-applications. 
Este enlace a un mapa electrónico de la ubicación general del sitio o instalación es 
proporcionado como una cortesía pública y no es parte de la solicitud o aviso. Para la 
ubicación exacta, consulte la aplicación. 
https://gisweb.tceq.texas.gov/LocationMapper/?marker=-100.926666,36.341944&level=18  
 
AVISO DE IDIOMA ALTERNATIVO. El aviso de idioma alternativo en español está disponible 
en https://www.tceq.texas.gov/permitting/wastewater/pending-permits/tlap-applications. 
 
AVISO ADICIONAL. El Director Ejecutivo de la TCEQ ha determinado que la solicitud es 
administrativamente completa y conducirá una revisión técnica de la solicitud. Después de 
completar la revisión técnica, el Director Ejecutivo puede preparar un borrador del permiso y 
emitirá una Decisión Preliminar sobre la solicitud. El aviso de la solicitud y la decisión 
preliminar serán publicados y enviado a los que están en la lista de correo de las personas 
a lo largo del condado que desean recibir los avisos y los que están en la lista de correo 
que desean recibir avisos de esta solicitud. El aviso dará la fecha límite para someter 
comentarios públicos. 
 
COMENTARIO PUBLICO / REUNION PUBLICA. Usted puede presentar comentarios públicos 
o pedir una reunión pública sobre esta solicitud. El propósito de una reunión pública es dar 
la oportunidad de presentar comentarios o hacer preguntas acerca de la solicitud. La TCEQ 
realiza una reunión pública si el Director Ejecutivo determina que hay un grado de interés 

https://www.tceq.texas.gov/permitting/wastewater/pending-permits/tlap-applications
https://gisweb.tceq.texas.gov/LocationMapper/?marker=-100.926666,36.341944&level=18
https://www.tceq.texas.gov/permitting/wastewater/pending-permits/tlap-applications


público suficiente en la solicitud o si un legislador local lo pide. Una reunión pública no es 
una audiencia administrativa de lo contencioso. 
 
OPORTUNIDAD DE UNA AUDIENCIA ADMINISTRATIVA DE LO CONTENCIOSO. Después 
del plazo para presentar comentarios públicos, el Director Ejecutivo considerará todos los 
comentarios apropiados y preparará una respuesta a todo los comentarios públicos 
esenciales, pertinentes, o significativos. A menos que la solicitud haya sido referida 
directamente a una audiencia administrativa de lo contencioso, la respuesta a los 
comentarios y la decisión del Director Ejecutivo sobre la solicitud serán enviados por 
correo a todos los que presentaron un comentario público y a las personas que están en la 
lista para recibir avisos sobre esta solicitud. Si se reciben comentarios, el aviso también 
proveerá instrucciones para pedir una reconsideración de la decisión del Director 
Ejecutivo y para pedir una audiencia administrativa de lo contencioso. Una audiencia 
administrativa de lo contencioso es un procedimiento legal similar a un procedimiento legal 
civil en un tribunal de distrito del estado.  
 
PARA SOLICITAR UNA AUDIENCIA DE CASO IMPUGNADO, USTED DEBE INCLUIR EN SU 
SOLICITUD LOS SIGUIENTES DATOS: su nombre, dirección, y número de teléfono; el 
nombre del solicitante y número del permiso; la ubicación y distancia de su 
propiedad/actividad con respecto a la instalación; una descripción específica de la forma 
cómo usted sería afectado adversamente por el sitio de una manera no común al público 
en general; una lista de todas las cuestiones de hecho en disputa que usted presente 
durante el período de comentarios; y la declaración "[Yo/nosotros] solicito/solicitamos 
una audiencia de caso impugnado". Si presenta la petición para una audiencia de caso 
impugnado de parte de un grupo o asociación, debe identificar una persona que 
representa al grupo para recibir correspondencia en el futuro; identificar el nombre y la 
dirección de un miembro del grupo que sería afectado adversamente por la planta o la 
actividad propuesta; proveer la información indicada anteriormente con respecto a la 
ubicación del miembro afectado y su distancia de la planta o actividad propuesta; explicar 
cómo y porqué el miembro sería afectado; y explicar cómo los intereses que el grupo 
desea proteger son pertinentes al propósito del grupo. 
 
Después del cierre de todos los períodos de comentarios y de petición que aplican, el 
Director Ejecutivo enviará la solicitud y cualquier petición para reconsideración o para 
una audiencia de caso impugnado a los Comisionados de la TCEQ para su consideración 
durante una reunión programada de la Comisión. La Comisión sólo puede conceder una 
solicitud de una audiencia de caso impugnado sobre los temas que el solicitante haya 
presentado en sus comentarios oportunos que no fueron retirados posteriormente. Si se 
concede una audiencia, el tema de la audiencia estará limitado a cuestiones de hecho en 
disputa o cuestiones mixtas de hecho y de derecho relacionadas a intereses pertinentes y 
materiales de calidad del agua que se hayan presentado durante el período de 
comentarios. 
 
LISTA DE CORREO. Si somete comentarios públicos, un pedido para una audiencia 
administrativa de lo contencioso o una reconsideración de la decisión del Director Ejecutivo, 
la Oficina del Secretario Principal enviará por correo los avisos públicos en relación con la 
solicitud. Ademas, puede pedir que la TCEQ ponga su nombre en una or mas de las listas 
correos siguientes (1) la lista de correo permanente para recibir los avisos de el solicitante 
indicado por nombre y número del permiso específico y/o (2) la lista de correo de todas las 



solicitudes en un condado especifico. Si desea que se agrega su nombre en una de las listas 
designe cual lista(s) y envia por correo su pedido a la Oficina del Secretario Principal de la 
TCEQ. 
 
INFORMACIÓN DISPONIBLE EN LÍNEA. Para detalles sobre el estado de la solicitud, favor de 
visitar la Base de Datos Integrada de los Comisionados en www.tceq.texas.gov/goto/cid. Para 
buscar en la base de datos, utilizar el número de permiso para esta solicitud que aparece en 
la parte superior de este aviso. 
 
CONTACTOS E INFORMACIÓN A LA AGENCIA. Todos los comentarios públicos y 
solicitudes deben ser presentadas electrónicamente vía 
http://www14.tceq.texas.gov/epic/eComment/ o por escrito dirigidos a la Comisión de 
Texas de Calidad Ambiental, Oficial de la Secretaría (Office of Chief Clerk), MC-105, P.O. 
Box 13087, Austin, Texas 78711-3087. Tenga en cuenta que cualquier información personal 
que usted proporcione, incluyendo su nombre, número de teléfono, dirección de correo 
electrónico y dirección física pasarán a formar parte del registro público de la Agencia. Para 
obtener más información acerca de esta solicitud de permiso o el proceso de permisos, llame 
al programa de educación pública de la TCEQ, gratis, al 1-800-687-4040. Si desea información 
en Español, puede llamar al 1-800-687-4040. 
 
También se puede obtener información adicional de Seaboard Foods LLC a la dirección 
indicada arriba o llamando a la Sra. Jennifer Nelson, Asesora Legal General Adjunta, al 913-
261-2600. 
 
Fecha de emisión el 12 de junio de 2024 
 

http://www.tceq.texas.gov/goto/cid
http://www14.tceq.texas.gov/epic/eComment/


 

 
Corporate Office: 

3404 Airway Blvd. 

Amarillo TX 79118 

Central Texas: 

9855 FM 847 

Dublin TX 76446 

New Mexico: 

203 East Main Street 

Artesia NM 88210 

 

PHONE: 800-753-6525 www.enviroag.com 

 

May 13, 2024 

 
Via FedEx   
 
TCEQ  
Applications Review and Processing Team (MC-148) 
12100 Park 35 Circle 
Building F, Room 2101 
Austin, TX 78753 
 
Re: Seaboard Foods LLC – Permit No. WQ0005231-000 
 CN603155748, RN102176393 

Application to Amend Industrial TLAP for Evaporation 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
Enclosed please find completed Industrial Administrative Reports, Industrial Technical 
Reports, Worksheets and supporting documentation to amend the above-referenced 
TLAP.  The application was uploaded to the TCEQ secured FTP site on May 8, 2024. 

Please contact our office with any questions or if additional information is needed. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Marsha Shoemaker 

Enviro-Ag Engineering, Inc. 
 
Enclosures 
Cc: Seaboard Foods – Perryton Feedmill 
 EAE file 



TCEQ-10053 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Administrative Report Page 1 of 19 

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATER PERMIT APPLICATION 
CHECKLIST 

Complete and submit this checklist with the industrial wastewater permit application. 

APPLICANT NAME: Seaboard Foods LLC 

PERMIT NUMBER (If new, leave blank): WQ00 WQ0005231-000 

Indicate if each of the following items is included in your application. 

 
Administrative Report 1.0 ☒   ☐    

Administrative Report 1.1 ☒   ☐    

SPIF ☐   ☒    

Core Data Form ☒   ☐    

Public Involvement Plan Form ☒   ☐    

Plain Language Summary ☒   ☐    

Technical Report 1.0 ☒   ☐    

Worksheet 1.0 ☐   ☒    

Worksheet 2.0 ☐   ☒    

Worksheet 3.0 ☒   ☐    

Worksheet 3.1 ☒   ☐    

Worksheet 3.2 ☐   ☒    

Worksheet 3.3 ☐   ☒    

Worksheet 4.0 ☐   ☒    

Worksheet 4.1 ☐   ☒    

Worksheet 5.0 ☐   ☒    

Worksheet 6.0 ☐   ☒    

Worksheet 7.0 ☐   ☒    

Worksheet 8.0 ☐   ☒    

Worksheet 9.0 ☐   ☒    

Worksheet 10.0 ☐   ☒    

Worksheet 11.0 ☐   ☒    

Worksheet 11.1 ☐   ☒    

Worksheet 11.2 ☐   ☒    

Worksheet 11.3 ☐   ☒    

Original USGS Map ☒   ☐    

Affected Landowners Map ☒   ☐    

Landowner Disk or Labels ☒   ☐    

Flow Diagram ☒   ☐    

Site Drawing ☒   ☐    

Original Photographs ☒   ☐    

Design Calculations ☒   ☐    

Solids Management Plan ☐   ☐    

Water Balance ☒   ☐    

 

For TCEQ Use Only 

Segment Number _______________________County ______________________ 
Expiration Date ________________________Region _______________________ 
Permit Number _______________________________________________________ 

Y N Y N 



TCEQ-10411 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Application Administrative Report Page 2 of 19 

 
  



TCEQ-10411 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Application Administrative Report Page 3 of 19 

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATER PERMIT APPLICATION 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 1.0 

This report is required for all applications for TPDES permits and TLAPs, except applications 
for oil and gas extraction operations subject to 40 CFR Part 435. Contact the Applications 
Review and Processing Team at 512-239-4671 with any questions about completing this report. 

Applications for oil and gas extraction operations subject to 40 CFR Part 435 must use the Oil 
and Gas Exploration and Production Administrative Report (TCEQ Form-20893 and 20893-
inst1). 

Item 1. Application Information and Fees (Instructions, Page 26) 
a. Complete each field with the requested information, if applicable. 

Applicant Name: Seaboard Foods LLC 

Permit No.: WQ0005231000 

EPA ID No.: TX0Click to enter text.  

Expiration Date: Oct. 1, 2027 

b. Check the box next to the appropriate authorization type. 

☒ Industrial Wastewater (wastewater and stormwater) 

☐ Industrial Stormwater (stormwater only) 

c. Check the box next to the appropriate facility status. 

☒ Active ☐ Inactive 

d. Check the box next to the appropriate permit type. 

☐ TPDES Permit ☒ TLAP ☐ TPDES with TLAP component 

e. Check the box next to the appropriate application type. 

☐ New 

☐ Renewal with changes ☐ Renewal without changes 

☐ Major amendment with renewal ☒ Major amendment without renewal 

☐ Minor amendment without renewal 

☐ Minor modification without renewal 

f. If applying for an amendment or modification, describe the request: Application includes an 
increase in flow and the construction of an additional evaporation pond due to a feedmill 
modification. 

For TCEQ Use Only 

Segment Number _______________________County ______________________ 
Expiration Date ________________________Region _______________________ 

 
1 https://www.tceq.texas.gov/publications/search_forms.html  

https://www.tceq.texas.gov/publications/search_forms.html
https://www.tceq.texas.gov/publications/search_forms.html
https://www.tceq.texas.gov/publications/search_forms.html


TCEQ-10411 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Application Administrative Report Page 4 of 19 

Permit Number _______________________________________________________ 
  



TCEQ-10411 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Application Administrative Report Page 5 of 19 

g. Application Fee 

EPA Classification New Major Amend. 
(with or without 
renewal) 

Renewal 
(with or 
without 
changes) 

Minor Amend. / 
Minor Mod. 
(without 
renewal) 

Minor facility not subject 
to EPA categorical 
effluent guidelines 

(40 CFR Parts 400-471) 

☐ $350 ☒ $350 ☐ $315 ☐ $150 

Minor facility subject to 
EPA categorical effluent 
guidelines 

(40 CFR Parts 400-471) 

☐ $1,250 ☐ $1,250 ☐ $1,215 ☐ $150 

Major facility N/A 2 ☐ $2,050 ☐ $2,015 ☐ $450 

h. Payment Information 

Mailed 

Check or money order No.: 16158 

Check or money order amt.: 350.00 

Named printed on check or money order: Enviro-Ag Engineering, Inc. 

Epay 

Voucher number: Click to enter text. 

Copy of voucher attachment: Click to enter text. 

Item 2. Applicant Information (Instructions, Pages 26) 

a. Customer Number, if applicant is an existing customer: CN603155748 

Note: Locate the customer number using the TCEQ’s Central Registry Customer Search3. 

b. Legal name of the entity (applicant) applying for this permit: Seaboard Foods LLC 

Note: The owner of the facility must apply for the permit. The legal name must be spelled 
exactly as filed with the TX SOS, Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts, County, or in the 
legal documents forming the entity. 

c. Name and title of the person signing the application. (Note: The person must be an 
executive official that meets signatory requirements in 30 TAC § 305.44.) 

Prefix: Click to enter text. Full Name (Last/First Name): Southwell, Mcclain 

Title: CFO Credential: Click to enter text. 

d. Will the applicant have overall financial responsibility for the facility? 

☒ Yes  ☐ No 

 
2 All facilities are designated as minors until formally classified as a major by EPA. 
3 https://www15.tceq.texas.gov/crpub/index.cfm?fuseaction=cust.CustSearch  

https://www15.tceq.texas.gov/crpub/index.cfm?fuseaction=cust.CustSearch
https://www15.tceq.texas.gov/crpub/index.cfm?fuseaction=cust.CustSearch


TCEQ-10411 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Application Administrative Report Page 6 of 19 

Note: The entity with overall financial responsibility for the facility must apply as a co-
applicant, if not the facility owner. 

Item 3. Co-applicant Information (Instructions, Page 27) 

☒ Check this box if there is no co-applicant.; otherwise, complete the below questions. 

a. Legal name of the entity (co-applicant) applying for this permit: Click to enter text. 

Note: The legal name must be spelled exactly as filed with the TX SOS, Texas Comptroller of 
Public Accounts, County, or in the legal documents forming the entity. 

b. Customer Number (if applicant is an existing customer): CNClick to enter text. 

Note: Locate the customer number using the TCEQ’s Central Registry Customer Search. 

c. Name and title of the person signing the application. (Note: The person must be an 
executive official that meets signatory requirements in 30 TAC § 305.44.) 

Prefix: Click to enter text. Full Name (Last/First Name): Click to enter text. 

Title: Click to enter text. Credential: Click to enter text. 

d. Will the co-applicant have overall financial responsibility for the facility? 

☐ Yes  ☐ No 

Note: The entity with overall financial responsibility for the facility must apply as a co-
applicant, if not the facility owner. 

Item 4. Core Data Form (Instructions, Pages 27) 

a. Complete one Core Data Form (TCEQ Form 10400) for each customer (applicant and co-
applicant(s)) and include as an attachment. If the customer type selected on the Core Data 
Form is Individual, complete Attachment 1 of the Administrative Report. Attachment: 
Attachment A.B 

Item 5. Application Contact Information (Instructions, Page 27) 
Provide names of two individuals who can be contact for additional information about this 
application. Indicate if the individual can be contact about administrative or technical 
information, or both.  

a. ☒ Administrative Contact . ☒ Technical Contact 

Prefix: Click to enter text. Full Name (Last/First Name): Shoemaker, Marsha 

Title: Consultant Credential: Click to enter text. 

Organization Name: Enviro-Ag Engineering, Inc. 

Mailing Address: 3404 Airway Blvd City/State/Zip: Amarillo, TX  79118 

Phone No: 806/353-6123 Email: mshoemaker@enviroag.com 

b. ☒ Administrative Contact ☒ Technical Contact 

Prefix: Click to enter text. Full Name (Last/First Name): Nelson, Jennifer 

Title: Associate General Counsel Credential: Click to enter text. 

Organization Name: Seaboard Foods LLC 



TCEQ-10411 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Application Administrative Report Page 7 of 19 

Mailing Address: 9000 W 67th Street, Ste. 200 City/State/Zip: Shawnee Mission, KS  
66202 

Phone No: 913/261-2600 Email: Jennifer.Nelson@Seaboardfoods.com 

Attachment: Click to enter text. 

Item 6. Permit Contact Information (Instructions, Page 28) 
Provide two names of individuals that can be contacted throughout the permit term. 

a. Prefix: Click to enter text. Full Name (Last/First Name): Nelson, Jennifer 

Title: Associate General Counsel Credential: Click to enter text. 

Organization Name: Seaboard Foods LLC 

Mailing Address: 9000 W 67th Street, Ste. 200 City/State/Zip: Shawnee Missions, KS  
66202 

Phone No: 913/261-2600 Email: Jennifer.Nelson@seaboardfoods.com 

b. Prefix: Click to enter text. Full Name (Last/First Name): Benedict, Mike 

Title: Feedmill Manager Credential: Click to enter text. 

Organization Name: Seaboard Foods LLC 

Mailing Address: 4200 South Main Street City/State/Zip: Perryton, TX  79070 

Phone No: 806/434-1057 Email: mike.benedict@seaboardfoods.com 

Attachment: Click to enter text.  

Item 7. Billing Contact Information (Instructions, Page 28) 
The permittee is responsible for paying the annual fee. The annual fee will be assessed for 
permits in effect on September 1 of each year. The TCEQ will send a bill to the address 
provided in this section. The permittee is responsible for terminating the permit when it is no 
longer needed (form TCEQ-20029). 

Provide the complete mailing address where the annual fee invoice should be mailed and the 
name and phone number of the permittee’s representative responsible for payment of the 
invoice. 

Prefix: Click to enter text. Full Name (Last/First Name): Nelson, Jennifer 

Title:Associate General Counsel Credential: Click to enter text. 

Organization Name: Seaboard Foods LLC 

Mailing Address: 9000 W 67th Street, Ste. 200 City/State/Zip: Shawnee Mission, KS  
66202 

Phone No: 913/261-2600 Email: Jennifer.Nelson@seaboardfoods.com 

Item 8. DMR/MER Contact Information (Instructions, Page 28) 
Provide the name and mailing address of the person delegated to receive and submit DMRs or 
MERs. Note: DMR data must be submitted through the NetDMR system. An electronic reporting 
account can be established once the facility has obtained the permit number.  

Prefix: Click to enter text. Full Name (Last/First Name): Nelson, Jennifer 

Title: Associate General Counsel Credential: Click to enter text. 



TCEQ-10411 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Application Administrative Report Page 8 of 19 

Organization Name: Seaboard Foods LLC 

Mailing Address: 9000 W 67th Street, Ste. 200 City/State/Zip: Shawnee Mission, KS  
66202 

Phone No: 913/261/2600 Email: Jennifer.Nelson@seaboardfoods.com 

Item 9. Notice Information (Instructions, Pages 28) 

a. Individual Publishing the Notices 

Prefix: Click to enter text. Full Name (Last/First Name): Shoemaker, Marsha 

Title: Consultant Credential: Click to enter text. 

Organization Name: Enviro-Ag Engineering, Inc. 

Mailing Address: 3404 Airway Blvd City/State/Zip: Amarillo, TX 79118 

Phone No: 806/353-6123 Email: mshoemaker@enviroag.com 

b. Method for Receiving Notice of Receipt and Intent to Obtain a Water Quality Permit Package 
(only for NORI, NAPD will be sent via regular mail) 

☒ E-mail: mshoemaker@enviroag.com 

☐ Fax: Click to enter text. 

☒ Regular Mail (USPS) 

Mailing Address: 3404 Airway Blvd 

City/State/Zip Code: Amarillo, TX  79118 

c. Contact in the Notice 

Prefix: Click to enter text. Full Name (Last/First Name): Nelson, Jennifer 

Title: Associate General Counsel Credential: Click to enter text. 

Organization Name: Seaboard Foods LLC 

Phone No: 913/261-2600 Email: Jennifer.Nelson@seaboardfoods.com 

d. Public Viewing Location Information  

Note: If the facility or outfall is located in more than one county, provide a public viewing 
place for each county. 

Public building name: Perry Memorial Library Location within the building: To be 
located next to the Spanish section. 

Physical Address of Building: 22 SE 5th Ave 

City: Perryton, TX County: Ochiltree  

e. Bilingual Notice Requirements 

This information is required for new, major amendment, minor amendment or minor 
modification, and renewal applications. 

This section of the application is only used to determine if alternative language notices will 
be needed. Complete instructions on publishing the alternative language notices will be in 
your public notice package. 



TCEQ-10411 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Application Administrative Report Page 9 of 19 

Call the bilingual/ESL coordinator at the nearest elementary and middle schools and obtain 
the following information to determine if an alternative language notice(s) is required. 

1. Is a bilingual education program required by the Texas Education Code at the 
elementary or middle school nearest to the facility or proposed facility? 

☒ Yes  ☐ No   

If no, publication of an alternative language notice is not required; skip to Item 8 
(Regulated Entity and Permitted Site Information.) 

2. Are the students who attend either the elementary school or the middle school enrolled 
in a bilingual education program at that school?   

☒ Yes  ☐ No   

3. Do the students at these schools attend a bilingual education program at another 
location?   

☐ Yes  ☒ No    

4. Would the school be required to provide a bilingual education program, but the school 
has waived out of this requirement under 19 TAC §89.1205(g)? 

☐ Yes  ☐ No  ☒ N/A  

5. If the answer is yes to question 1, 2, 3, or 4, public notices in an alternative language are 
required. Which language is required by the bilingual program? Spanish 

f. Plain Language Summary Template – Complete the Plain Language Summary (TCEQ Form 
20972) and include as an attachment. Attachment: Attachment A.C 

g. Complete one Public Involvement Plan (PIP) Form (TCEQ Form 20960) for each application 
for a new permit or major amendment and include as an attachment. Attachment: 
Attachment A.D 

Item 10. Regulated Entity and Permitted Site Information (Instructions 
Page 29) 

a. TCEQ issued Regulated Entity Number (RN), if available: RN102176393 

Note: If your business site is part of a larger business site, a Regulated Entity Number (RN) 
may already be assigned for the larger site. Use the RN assigned for the larger site. Search 
the TCEQ’s Central Registry to determine the RN or to see if the larger site may already be 
registered as a Regulated Entity. If the site is found, provide the assigned RN. 

b. Name of project or site (the name known by the community where located): Perryton 
Feedmill 

c. Is the location address of the facility in the existing permit the same? 

☐ Yes  ☒ No  ☐ N/A (new permit) 

Note: If the facility is located in Bexar, Comal, Hays, Kinney, Medina, Travis, Uvalde, or 
Williamson County, additional information concerning protection of the Edwards Aquifer 
may be required. 

d. Owner of treatment facility: 

Prefix: Click to enter text. Full Name (Last/First Name): Click to enter text. 

or Organization Name: Seaboard Foods LLC 



TCEQ-10411 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Application Administrative Report Page 10 of 19 

Mailing Address: 9000 W 67th Street, Ste. 200 City/State/Zip: Shawnee Mission, KS  
66202 

Phone No: 913/261-2600 Email: Jennifer.Nelson@seaboardfoods.com 

e. Ownership of facility: ☐ Public ☒ Private ☐ Both ☐ Federal 

f. Owner of land where treatment facility is or will be: Seaboard Foods LLC 

Prefix: Click to enter text. Full Name (Last/First Name): Click to enter text. 

or Organization Name: Seaboard Foods LLC 

Mailing Address: 9000 W 67th Street, Ste. 200 City/State/Zip: Shawnee Mission KS  
66202 

Phone No: 913/261-2600 Email: Jennifer.Nelson@seaboardfoods.com 

Note: If not the same as the facility owner, attach a long-term lease agreement in effect for 
at least six years (In some cases, a lease may not suffice - see instructions). Attachment: 
Click to enter text. 

g. Owner of effluent TLAP disposal site (if applicable): Seaboard Foods LLC 

Prefix: Click to enter text. Full Name (Last/First Name): Click to enter text. 

or Organization Name: Seaboard Foods LLC 

Mailing Address: 9000 W 67th Street, Ste. 200 City/State/Zip: Shawnee Mission, KS  
66202 

Phone No: 913/261-2600 Email: Jennifer.Nelson@seaboardfoods.com 

Note: If not the same as the facility owner, attach a long-term lease agreement in effect for 
at least six years. Attachment: Click to enter text. 

h. Owner of sewage sludge disposal site (if applicable): 

Prefix: Click to enter text. Full Name (Last/First Name): Click to enter text. 

or Organization Name: Click to enter text. 

Mailing Address: Click to enter text. City/State/Zip: Click to enter text. 

Phone No: Click to enter text. Email: Click to enter text. 

Note: If not the same as the facility owner, attach a long-term lease agreement in effect for 
at least six years. Attachment: Click to enter text. 

Item 11. TDPES Discharge/TLAP Disposal Information (Instructions, 
Page 31) 

a. Is the facility located on or does the treated effluent cross Native American Land? 

☐ Yes  ☒ No 

b. Attach an original full size USGS Topographic Map (or an 8.5"×11" reproduced portion for 
renewal or amendment applications) with all required information. Check the box next to 
each item below to confirm it has been included on the map. 

☒ One-mile radius ☐ Three-miles downstream information 

☒ Applicant’s property boundaries ☐ Treatment facility boundaries 



TCEQ-10411 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Application Administrative Report Page 11 of 19 

☐ Labeled point(s) of discharge ☐ Highlighted discharge route(s) 

☐ Effluent disposal site boundaries ☒ All wastewater ponds 

☐ Sewage sludge disposal site ☒ New and future construction 

Attachment: Attachment A.E 

c. Is the location of the sewage sludge disposal site in the existing permit accurate?  

☐ Yes  ☐ No or New Permit 

If no, or a new application, provide an accurate location description: n/a 

d. Are the point(s) of discharge in the existing permit correct? 

☐ Yes  ☐ No or New Permit 

If no, or a new application, provide an accurate location description: n/a 

e. Are the discharge route(s) in the existing permit correct? 

☐ Yes  ☐ No or New Permit 

If no, or a new permit, provide an accurate description of the discharge route: n/a 

f. City nearest the outfall(s): Perryton, TX 

g. County in which the outfalls(s) is/are located: Ochiltree 

h. Is or will the treated wastewater discharge to a city, county, or state highway right-of-way, 
or a flood control district drainage ditch? 

☐ Yes  ☒ No 

If yes, indicate by a check mark if: ☐ Authorization granted ☐ Authorization pending 

For new and amendment applications, attach copies of letters that show proof of contact 
and provide the approval letter upon receipt. Attachment: n/a  

For all applications involving an average daily discharge of 5 MGD or more, provide the 
names of all counties located within 100 statute miles downstream of the point(s) of 
discharge: n/a 

i. For TLAPs, is the location of the effluent disposal site in the existing permit accurate?  

☒ Yes No or New Permit  ☐ Amendment to TLAP Permit 

If no, or a new application, provide an accurate location description: n/a-evaporation 

j. City nearest the disposal site: Perryton 

k. County in which the disposal site is located: Ochiltree 

l. For TLAPs, describe how effluent is/will be routed from the treatment facility to the 
disposal site: Pump transfers effluent from boiler & water softener backwash building flows 
immediately east/northeast of feedmill and discharges to evap pond. 

m. For TLAPs, identify the nearest watercourse to the disposal site to which rainfall runoff 
might flow if not contained: Unclassified Segment 0100 (Playa lake basin) located at lat. 36.35828, 
long. -100.91356 

  



TCEQ-10411 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Application Administrative Report Page 12 of 19 

Item 12. Miscellaneous Information (Instructions, Page 33) 

a. Did any person formerly employed by the TCEQ represent your company and get paid for 
service regarding this application? 

☒ Yes  ☐ No 

If yes, list each person: Marsha Shoemaker 

b. Do you owe any fees to the TCEQ? 

☐ Yes  ☒ No 

If yes, provide the following information: 

Account no.: Click to enter text.  

Total amount due: Click to enter text. 

c. Do you owe any penalties to the TCEQ? 

☐ Yes  ☒ No 

If yes, provide the following information: 

Enforcement order no.: Click to enter text.  

Amount due: Click to enter text. 

  





TCEQ-10411 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Application Administrative Report Page 14 of 19 

INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATER PERMIT APPLICATION 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 1.1 

The following information is required for new and amendment applications. 

Item 1. Affected Landowner Information (Instructions, Page 35) 

a. Attach a landowner map or drawing, with scale, as applicable. Check the box next to each 
item to confirm it has been provided. 

☒ The applicant’s property boundaries. 

☒ The facility site boundaries within the applicant’s property boundaries. 

☐ The distance the buffer zone falls into adjacent properties and the property boundaries 
of the landowners located within the buffer zone. 

☒ The property boundaries of all landowners surrounding the applicant’s property. (Note: 
if the application is a major amendment for a lignite mine, the map must include the 
property boundaries of all landowners adjacent to the new facility (ponds).) 

☐ The point(s) of discharge and highlighted discharge route(s) clearly shown for one mile 
downstream. 

☐ The property boundaries of the landowners located on both sides of the discharge route 
for one full stream mile downstream of the point of discharge. 

☐ The property boundaries of the landowners along the watercourse for a one-half mile 
radius from the point of discharge if the point of discharge is into a lake, bay, estuary, or 
affected by tides. 

☒ The boundaries of the effluent disposal site (e.g., irrigation area or subsurface drainfield 
site) and all evaporation/holding ponds within the applicant’s property. 

☒ The property boundaries of all landowners surrounding the applicant’s property 
boundaries where the effluent disposal site is located. 

☐ The boundaries of the sludge land application site (for land application of sewage sludge 
for beneficial use) and the property boundaries of landowners within one-quarter mile of 
the applicant’s property boundaries where the sewage sludge land application site is 
located. 

☐ The property boundaries of landowners within one-half mile in all directions from the 
applicant’s property boundaries where the sewage sludge disposal site (e.g., sludge 
surface disposal site or sludge monofil) is located. 

Attachment: Attachment A.F 

b. Check the box next to the format of the landowners list: 

☐ Readable/Writeable CD  ☒ Four sets of labels 

Attachment: A.F 

d. Provide the source of the landowners’ names and mailing addresses: Ochiltree County 
Appraisal Website 

e. As required by Texas Water Code § 5.115, is any permanent school fund land affected by 
this application? 



TCEQ-10411 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Application Administrative Report Page 15 of 19 

☐ Yes  ☒ No 

If yes, provide the location and foreseeable impacts and effects this application has on the 
land(s): Click to enter text. 

Item 2. Original Photographs (Instructions, Page 37) 
Provide original ground level photographs. Check the box next to each of the following items 
to indicate it is included. 

☐ At least one original photograph of the new or expanded treatment unit location. 

☐ At least two photographs of the existing/proposed point of discharge and as much area 
downstream (photo 1) and upstream (photo 2) as can be captured. If the discharge is to an 
open water body (e.g., lake, bay), the point of discharge should be in the right or left edge of 
each photograph showing the open water and with as much area on each respective side of 
the discharge as can be captured. 

☒ At least one photograph of the existing/proposed effluent disposal site. 

☒ A plot plan or map showing the location and direction of each photograph. 

Attachment: Attachment A.G 
 
  



TCEQ-10411 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Application Administrative Report Page 16 of 19 

 

INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATER PERMIT APPLICATION  

SUPPLEMENTAL PERMIT INFORMATION FORM (SPIF) 

This form applies to TPDES permit applications only. Complete and attach the Supplemental 
Permit information Form (SPIF) (TCEQ Form 20971). 

Attachment: Attachment A.H 

 

  



TCEQ-10411 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Application Administrative Report Page 19 of 19 

INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATER PERMIT APPLICATION 
CHECKLIST OF COMMON DEFICIENCIES 

Below is a list of common deficiencies found during the administrative review of industrial 
wastewater permit applications. To ensure the timely processing of this application, please 
review the items below and indicate each item is complete and in accordance applicable rules 
at 30 TAC Chapters 21, 281, and 305 by checking the box next to the item. If an item is not 
required this application, indicate by checking N/A where appropriate. Please do not submit 
the application until all items below are addressed. 

☒ Core Data Form (TCEQ Form No. 10400) 
(Required for all applications types. Must be completed in its entirety and signed. 
Note: Form may be signed by applicant representative.) 

☒ Correct and Current Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Forms 
(TCEQ Form Nos. 10055 and 10411. Version dated 5/10/2019 or later.) 

☒ Water Quality Permit Payment Submittal Form (Page 14) 
(Original payment sent to TCEQ Revenue Section. See instructions for mailing address.) 

☒ 7.5 Minute USGS Quadrangle Topographic Map Attached 
(Full-size map if seeking “New” permit. 
8 ½ x 11 acceptable for Renewals and Amendments.) 

☐ N/A ☐ Current/Non-Expired, Executed Lease Agreement or Easement Attached 

☐ N/A ☒ Landowners Map 
(See instructions for landowner requirements.) 

Things to Know:  
• All the items shown on the map must be labeled. 
• The applicant’s complete property boundaries must be delineated which 

includes boundaries of contiguous property owned by the applicant. 
• The applicant cannot be its own adjacent landowner. You must identify the 

landowners immediately adjacent to their property, regardless of how far they 
are from the actual facility. 

• If the applicant’s property is adjacent to a road, creek, or stream, the 
landowners on the opposite side must be identified. Although the properties 
are not adjacent to applicant’s property boundary, they are considered 
potentially affected landowners. If the adjacent road is a divided highway as 
identified on the USGS topographic map, the applicant does not have to 
identify the landowners on the opposite side of the highway. 

☐ N/A ☒ Landowners Cross Reference List 
(See instructions for landowner requirements.) 

☐ N/A ☒ Landowners Labels or CD-RW attached 
(See instructions for landowner requirements.) 

☒ Original signature per 30 TAC § 305.44 – Blue Ink Preferred 
(If signature page is not signed by an elected official or principle executive officer,  
a copy of signature authority/delegation letter must be attached.) 

☒ Plain Language Summary 



Prepared By: 

 
    

 

 

3404 Airway Boulevard   ♦   Amarillo, Texas 79118   ♦   Tel 806/353-6123   ♦    Fax 806/353-4132 

 

INDUSTRIAL 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

 

Attachments 

 

 

 

Prepared For: 

Seaboard Foods LLC 

Perryton Feedmill 

12025 W State Hwy 15 

Perryton, TX  79070 

 

 

 

April 23, 2024 

   



i           Administrative Report 

Table of Contents 
LIST OF FIGURES .......................................................................................................................... i 
A.A: FEE PAYMENT .................................................................................................................... 1 
A.B: CORE DATA FORM ........................................................................................................... 2 
A.C: PLAIN LANGUAGE SUMMARY (PLS) ................................................................................ 3 
A.D: PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PLAN (PIP) ................................................................................... 4 
A.E: 7.5-MINUTE USGS TOPOGRAPHIC MAP ........................................................................... 5 
A.F: AFFECTED LANDOWNER INFORMATION .......................................................................... 7 
A.G: PHOTOGRAPHS ................................................................................................................ 9 
A.H: SPIF ...................................................................................................................................10 
 

 

LIST OF FIGURES 
Figure 1: 7.5-Minute USGS Map ............................................................................................... 6 
Figure 2: Adjacent Property Owners Map ............................................................................. 8 
 



1           Administrative Report 

A.A: FEE PAYMENT 
 

  



TCEQ-10411 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Application Administrative Report Page 17 of 19 

WATER QUALITY PERMIT 

PAYMENT SUBMITTAL FORM 

Use this form to submit the Application Fee, if mailing the payment. (Instructions, Page 36-
37) 

• Complete items 1 through 5 below. 
• Staple the check or money order in the space provided at the bottom of this document. 
• Do not mail this form with the application form. 
• Do not mail this form to the same address as the application. 
• Do not submit a copy of the application with this form as it could cause duplicate 

permit entries. 

Mail this form and the check or money order to: 

BY REGULAR U.S. MAIL BY OVERNIGHT/EXPRESS MAIL 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
Financial Administration Division Financial Administration Division 
Cashier’s Office, MC-214 Cashier’s Office, MC-214 
P.O. Box 13088 12100 Park 35 Circle 
Austin, Texas 78711-3088 Austin, Texas 78753 

Fee Code: WQP Permit No: WQ0005231000 

1. Check or Money Order Number: 16158 

2. Check or Money Order Amount: 350.00 

3. Date of Check or Money Order: 4/24/24 

4. Name on Check or Money Order: Enviro-Ag Engineering, Inc. 

5. APPLICATION INFORMATION 

Name of Project or Site: Perryton Feedmill 

Physical Address of Project or Site: 12025 W SH 15, Perryton, TX  79070 

If the check is for more than one application, attach a list which includes the name of each 
Project or Site (RE) and Physical Address, exactly as provided on the application. 
Attachment: Click to enter text. 

Staple Check or Money Order in This Space 



2           Administrative Report 

A.B: CORE DATA FORM 
  



TCEQ-10400 (11/22) Page 1 of 3 

          TCEQ Core Data Form  

 

For detailed instruc�ons on comple�ng this form, please read the Core Data Form Instruc�ons or call 512-239-5175. 

SECTION I: General Information 
 

1. Reason for Submission (If other is checked please describe in space provided.) 

 New Permit, Registra�on or Authoriza�on (Core Data Form should be submitted with the program application.) 

 Renewal (Core Data Form should be submitted with the renewal form)    Other Amendment to WQ0005231-000 

2. Customer Reference Number (if issued) Follow this link to search 
for CN or RN numbers in 

Central Registry** 

3. Regulated En�ty Reference Number (if issued) 

  CN 603155748   RN 102176393 

SECTION II: Customer Information 
 

4. General Customer Informa�on                                       5. Effec�ve Date for Customer Informa�on Updates (mm/dd/yyyy)  4/3/24 

 New Customer                                             Update to Customer Informa�on                      Change in Regulated En�ty Ownership 
Change in Legal Name (Verifiable with the Texas Secretary of State or Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts)                            

The Customer Name submitted here may be updated automatically based on what is current and active with the Texas Secretary of State 
(SOS) or Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts (CPA). 

6. Customer Legal Name (If an individual, print last name first: eg: Doe, John) If new Customer, enter previous Customer below:   

Seaboard Foods LLC       

7. TX SOS/CPA Filing Number 

0800522057 

8. TX State Tax ID (11 digits) 

32059312341 

9. Federal Tax ID  

(9 digits) 

      

10. DUNS Number (if 
applicable) 

      

11. Type of Customer:    Corpora�on   Individual     Partnership:  General  Limited 

Government:  City  County  Federal  Local   State  Other        

                            

  Sole Proprietorship  Other: LLC 

12. Number of Employees 

 0-20      21-100       101-250       251-500       501 and higher 

13. Independently Owned and Operated? 

 Yes                   No 

14. Customer Role (Proposed or Actual) – as it relates to the Regulated Entity listed on this form. Please check one of the following 

Owner                                 Operator                              Owner & Operator 
Occupa�onal Licensee        Responsible Party                VCP/BSA Applicant                       

 Other:                                                                                                        

15. Mailing  

Address:  

      

9000 W 67th Street 

City  Shawnee Mission State  KS ZIP  66202 ZIP + 4       

16. Country Mailing Informa�on (if outside USA) 17. E-Mail Address (if applicable) 

      Jennifer_Nelson@Seaboardfoods.com 

18. Telephone Number 19. Extension or Code 20. Fax Number (if applicable) 

 TCEQ Use Only 

https://www15.tceq.texas.gov/crpub/
https://www15.tceq.texas.gov/crpub/
https://www15.tceq.texas.gov/crpub/


TCEQ-10400 (11/22) Page 2 of 3 

(  913  ) 261-2600            (       )     -       

SECTION III: Regulated Entity Information 
21. General Regulated En�ty Informa�on (If ‘New Regulated Entity” is selected, a new permit application is also required.)                              

 New Regulated En�ty       Update to Regulated En�ty Name       Update to Regulated En�ty Informa�on         

The Regulated Entity Name submitted may be updated, in order to meet TCEQ Core Data Standards (removal of organizational endings such 
as Inc, LP, or LLC). 

22. Regulated En�ty Name (Enter name of the site where the regulated action is taking place.)  

Perryton Feedmill 

23. Street Address of 
the Regulated En�ty:             

(No PO Boxes) 

12025 West State Hwy 15 

      

City  Perryton State  TX ZIP  79072 ZIP + 4       

24. County Ochiltree 

If no Street Address is provided, fields 25-28 are required. 

25. Descrip�on to  

Physical Loca�on: 
      

26. Nearest City    State Nearest ZIP Code 

Perryton TX 79070 

Latitude/Longitude are required and may be added/updated to meet TCEQ Core Data Standards. (Geocoding of the Physical Address may be 
used to supply coordinates where none have been provided or to gain accuracy).   

27. La�tude (N) In Decimal:  36.34183 28. Longitude (W) In Decimal:  -100.92683 

Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds 

                                    

29. Primary SIC Code  

(4 digits) 

30. Secondary SIC Code  

(4 digits) 

31. Primary NAICS Code 
 (5 or 6 digits) 

32. Secondary NAICS Code 

(5 or 6 digits) 

2048                  

33. What is the Primary Business of this en�ty?    (Do not repeat the SIC or NAICS description.) 

Feedmill for Swine Feed 

34. Mailing  

Address:  

9000 W 67 Street, Ste. 200 

      

City  Shawnee Mission State  KS ZIP  66202 ZIP + 4       

35. E-Mail Address:  Jennifer_Nelson@Seaboardfoods.com      

36. Telephone Number 37. Extension or Code 38. Fax Number (if applicable) 

( 913 ) 261-2600          (     )    -       

 

39. TCEQ Programs and ID Numbers Check all Programs and write in the permits/registra�on numbers that will be affected by the updates submited on this 
form. See the Core Data Form instruc�ons for addi�onal guidance.   

 





3           Administrative Report 

A.C: PLAIN LANGUAGE SUMMARY (PLS) 
  



TCEQ-20972 (08/31/2023)  Page 1 of 4 
Wastewater Individual Permit Application, Plain Language Template 

 
TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

PLAIN LANGUAGE SUMMARY FOR TPDES OR 
TLAP PERMIT APPLICATIONS 

Plain Language Summary Template and Instructions for Texas 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (TPDES) and Texas 
Land Application (TLAP) Permit Applications 
 
Applicants should use this template to develop a plain language summary as required by 
Title 30, Texas Administrative Code (30 TAC), Chapter 39, Subchapter H. Applicants may 
modify the template as necessary to accurately describe their facility as long as the summary 
includes the following information: (1) the function of the proposed plant or facility; (2) the 
expected output of the proposed plant or facility; (3) the expected pollutants that may be 
emitted or discharged by the proposed plant or facility; and (4) how the applicant will control 
those pollutants, so that the proposed plant will not have an adverse impact on human health 
or the environment. 
 
Fill in the highlighted areas below to describe your facility and application in plain language. 
Instructions and examples are provided below. Make any other edits necessary to improve 
readability or grammar and to comply with the rule requirements.  
 
If you are subject to the alternative language notice requirements in 30 TAC Section 39.426, 
you must provide a translated copy of the completed plain language summary in the 
appropriate alternative language as part of your application package. For your convenience, 
a Spanish template has been provided below.  
 
ENGLISH TEMPLATE FOR TPDES or TLAP NEW/RENEWAL/AMENDMENT APPLICATIONS 
INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATER/STORMWATER 
The following summary is provided for this pending water quality permit application being 
reviewed by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality as required by 30 TAC Chapter 
39.  The information provided in this summary may change during the technical review of the 
application and is not a federal enforceable representation of the permit application. 

Seaboard Foods LLC  (CN603155748) operates Perryton Feedmill (RN102176393), a feedmill 
operation. The facility is located at 12025 West Highway 15, in Perryton, Ochiltree County, 
Texas 79070. This amendment application for TCEQ Permit No. WQ0005231000 is to 
authorize the disposal of additional boiler blowdown and water treatment wastes at a max 
average flow not to exceed 24,000 gallons per day via evaporation. This permit will not 
authorize a discharge of pollutants into water in the state. 

Discharges from the facility are expected to contain total dissolved solids. Boiler blowdown 
and water treatment wastes, consisting of water softener backwash and regeneration wastes 
is treated by evaporation. 
 
  

https://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtac$ext.ViewTAC?tac_view=4&ti=30&pt=1&ch=39
https://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtac$ext.TacPage?sl=T&app=9&p_dir=N&p_rloc=66532&p_tloc=&p_ploc=1&pg=17&p_tac=&ti=30&pt=1&ch=39&rl=351


TCEQ-20972 (08/31/2023)  Page 2 of 4 
Wastewater Individual Permit Application, Plain Language Template 

PLANTILLA EN ESPAÑOL PARA SOLICITUDES NUEVAS/RENOVACIONES/ENMIENDAS DE 
TPDES o TLAP 
 
AGUAS RESIDUALES INDUSTRIALES /AGUAS PLUVIALES 
 
El siguiente resumen se proporciona para esta solicitud de permiso de calidad del agua 
pendiente que está siendo revisada por la Comisión de Calidad Ambiental de Texas según lo 
requerido por el Capítulo 39 del Código Administrativo de Texas 30. La información 
proporcionada en este resumen puede cambiar durante la revisión técnica de la solicitud y no 
es una representación ejecutiva fedérale de la solicitud de permiso. 
 
Seaboard Foods, LLC (CN6031555748) opera Perryton Feedmill (RN102176393), una 
instalación de fabricación de piensos. La instalación está ubicada en 12025 West Highway 15, 
en Perryton, Condado de Ochiltree, Texas 79070. Esta solicitud de enmienda para el Permiso 
TCEQ No. WQ0005231000 es para autorizar la eliminación de desechos adicionales de purga 
de calderas y de tratamiento de agua a un flujo promedio máximo que no exceda los 24.000 
galones por día a través de la evaporación.. Este permiso no autorizará una descarga de 
contaminantes en el agua en el estado. 

Se espera que las descargas de la instalación contengan sólidos disueltos totales. Los 
desechos de purga de calderas y de tratamiento de aguas, que consisten en el retrolavado de 
descalcificadores y residuos de regeneración, se tratan por la evaporación.  
  



TCEQ-20972 (08/31/2023)  Page 3 of 4 
Wastewater Individual Permit Application, Plain Language Template 

INSTRUCTIONS 
1. Enter the name of applicant in this section. The applicant name should match the 

name associated with the customer number. 

2. Enter the Customer Number in this section. Each Individual or Organization is issued a 
unique 11-digit identification number called a CN (e.g. CN123456789). 

3. Choose “operates” in this section for existing facility applications or choose “proposes 
to operate” for new facility applications.  

4. Enter the name of the facility in this section. The facility name should match the name 
associated with the regulated entity number.  

5. Enter the Regulated Entity number in this section. Each site location is issued a unique 
11-digit identification number called an RN (e.g. RN123456789). 

6. Choose the appropriate article (a or an) to complete the sentence.  

7. Enter a description of the facility in this section. For example: steam electric generating 
facility, nitrogenous fertilizer manufacturing facility, etc.  

8. Choose “is” for an existing facility or “will be” for a new facility. 

9. Enter the location of the facility in this section. 

10. Enter the City nearest the facility in this section. 

11. Enter the County nearest the facility in this section. 

12. Enter the zip code for the facility address in this section. 

13. Enter a summary of the application request in this section. For example: renewal to 
discharge 25,000 gallons per day of treated domestic wastewater, new application to 
discharge process wastewater and stormwater on an intermittent and flow-variable 
basis, or major amendment to reduce monitoring frequency for pH, etc. If more than 
one outfall is included in the application, provide applicable information for each 
individual outfall. 

14. List all pollutants expected in the discharge from this facility in this section. If 
applicable, refer to the pollutants from any federal numeric effluent limitations that 
apply to your facility.  

15. Enter the discharge types from your facility in this section (e.g., stormwater, process 
wastewater, once through cooling water, etc.) 

16. Choose the appropriate verb tense to complete the sentence.  

17. Enter a description of the wastewater treatment used at your facility. Include a 
description of each process, starting with initial treatment and finishing with the 
outfall/point of disposal. Use additional lines for individual discharge types if 
necessary. 

Questions or comments concerning this form may be directed to the Water Quality Division’s 
Application Review and Processing Team by email at WQ-ARPTeam@tceq.texas.gov or by 
phone at (512) 239-4671. 

  

mailto:WQ-ARPTeam@tceq.texas.gov


TCEQ-20972 (08/31/2023)  Page 4 of 4 
Wastewater Individual Permit Application, Plain Language Template 

Example 
Individual Industrial Wastewater Application 

The following summary is provided for this pending water quality permit application being 
reviewed by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality as required by 30 TAC Chapter 
39. The information provided in this summary may change during the technical review of the 
application and are not federal enforceable representations of the permit application. 

ABC Corporation (CN600000000) operates the Starr Power Station (RN10000000000), a two-
unit gas-fired electric generating facility. Unit 1 has a generating capacity of 393 megawatts 
(MWs) and Unit 2 has a generating capacity of 528 MWs. The facility is located at 1356 Starr 
Street, near the City of Austin, Travis County, Texas 78753. 

This application is for a renewal to discharge 870,000,000 gallons per day of once through 
cooling water, auxiliary cooling water, and also authorizes the following waste streams 
monitored inside the facility (internal outfalls) before it is mixed with the other wastewaters 
authorized for discharge via main Outfall 001, referred to as “previously monitored effluents” 
(low-volume wastewater, metal-cleaning waste, and stormwater (from diked oil storage area 
yards and storm drains)) via Outfall 001. Low-volume waste sources, metal-cleaning waste, 
and stormwater drains on a continuous and flow-variable basis via internal Outfall 101.  

The discharge of once through cooling water via Outfall 001 and low-volume waste and 
metal-cleaning waste via Outfall 101 from this facility is subject to federal effluent limitation 
guidelines at 40 CFR Part 423. The pollutants expected from these discharges based on 40 
CFR Part 423 are: free available chlorine, total residual chlorine, total suspended solids, oil 
and grease, total iron, total copper, and pH. Temperature is also expected from these 
discharges. Additional potential pollutants are included in the Industrial Wastewater 
Application Technical Report, Worksheet 2.0. 

Cooling water and boiler make-up water are supplied by Lake Starr Reservoir. The City of 
Austin municipal water plant (CN600000000, PWS 00000) supplies the facility’s potable water 
and serves as an alternate source of boiler make-up water. Water from the Lake Starr 
Reservoir is withdrawn at the intake structure and treated with sodium hypochlorite to 
prevent biofouling and sodium bromide as a chlorine enhancer to improve efficacy and then 
passed through condensers and auxiliary equipment on a once-through basis to cool 
equipment and condense exhaust steam.  

Low-volume wastewater from blowdown of boiler Units 1 and 2 and metal-cleaning wastes 
receive no treatment prior to discharge via Outfall 101. Plant floor and equipment drains and 
stormwater runoff from diked oil storage areas, yards, and storm drains are routed through 
an oil and water separator prior to discharge via Outfall 101. Domestic wastewater, 
blowdown, and backwash water from the service water filter, clarifier, and sand filter are 
routed to the Starr Creek Domestic Sewage Treatment Plant, TPDES Permit No. 
WQ0010000001, for treatment and disposal. Metal-cleaning waste from equipment cleaning is 
generally disposed of off-site. 



4           Administrative Report 

A.D: PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PLAN (PIP) 
  



       

   
  

  
  

 

     
   

 
 

 

        
    

 

   

  
      

                
    

 

   

  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   
    

              
      

    

  

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Public Involvement Plan Form 
for Permit and Registration Applications 

The Public Involvement Plan is intended to provide applicants and the agency with information about 
how public outreach will be accomplished for certain types of applications in certain geographical 
areas of the state. It is intended to apply to new activities; major changes at existing plants, facilities, 
and processes; and to activities which are likely to have significant interest from the public. This 
preliminary screening is designed to identify applications that will benefit from an initial assessment 
of the need for enhanced public outreach. 

All applicable sections of this form should be completed and submitted with the permit or registration 
application. For instructions on how to complete this form, see TCEQ-20960-inst. 

Section 1. Preliminary Screening 

New Permit or Registration Application 
New Activity – modification, registration, amendment, facility, etc. (see instructions) 

If neither of the above boxes are checked, completion of the form is not required and does not 
need to be submitted. 

Section 2. Secondary Screening 

Requires public notice, 

Considered to have significant public interest,  and  

Located within any of the following  geographical  locations:  

• Austin
• Dallas
• Fort Worth
• Houston
• San Antonio
• West Texas
• Texas Panhandle
• Along the Texas/Mexico Border
• Other geographical locations should be decided on a case-by-case basis

If all the above boxes are not checked, a Public Involvement Plan is not necessary.
Stop after Section 2 and submit the form. 

Public Involvement Plan not applicable to this application. Provide brief explanation. 

TCEQ-20960 (02-09-2023) Page 1 of 4 



       

    

                                              

                                 
                                   

   

  

 

 

 

 

 
    

 

 
 

  

Section 3. Application Information 

Type  of  Application  (check all  that  apply):  

Air Initial Federal Amendment Standard Permit  Title V 

Waste Municipal Solid Waste Industrial and Hazardous Waste Scrap Tire 
Radioactive Material Licensing Underground Injection Control 

Water Quality 

Texas Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (TPDES)    

Texas  Land Application Permit (TLAP)   

State Only Concentrated  Animal Feeding Operation (CAFO)  

Water Treatment Plant Residuals  Disposal Permit  

Class B Biosolids Land Application Permit 

Domestic Septage Land  Application Registration  

Water Rights New Permit 

New Appropriation of Water  

New  or existing reservoir  

Amendment to an Existing Water Right 

Add  a  New Appropriation of Water  

Add a New or Existing  Reservoir  

Major Amendment that could affect other water rights or the environment  

Section 4. Plain Language Summary 

Provide a brief description of planned activities. 

TCEQ-20960 (02-09-2023) Page 2 of 4 



       

      
 

    
 

       
       

 

 

                                                   
 

     

 

  

   

    

 

  

  

Section 5. Community and Demographic Information 

Community information can be found using EPA’s EJ Screen, U.S. Census Bureau information, or 
generally available demographic tools. 

Information gathered in this section can assist with the determination of whether alternative 
language notice is necessary. Please provide the following information. 

(City) 

(County)  

(Census Tract)  
Please indicate which of these three is the level used for gathering the following information. 

City    County     Census Tract 

(a) Percent of people over 25 years of age who at least graduated from high school

(b) Per capita income for population near the specified location

(c) Percent of minority population and percent of population by race within the specified location

(d) Percent of Linguistically Isolated Households by language within the specified location

(e) Languages commonly spoken in area by percentage

(f) Community and/or Stakeholder Groups

(g) Historic public interest or involvement

TCEQ-20960 (02-09-2023) Page 3 of 4 



       

      

  
    

 

Section 6. Planned Public Outreach Activities 

(a) Is this application subject to the public participation requirements of Title 30 Texas
Administrative Code (30 TAC) Chapter 39?

Yes       

   

  

  

 

          

       

         

        

           
         

 

        

  

          

 
   

 

 

  

 

 

No 

(b) If yes, do you intend at this time to provide public outreach other than what is required by rule?

Yes No 

If Yes, please describe. 

If you answered “yes” that this application is subject to 30 TAC Chapter 39, 
answering the remaining questions in Section 6 is not required. 

(c) Will you provide notice of this application in alternative languages?  

Yes No 

Please refer to Section 5. If more than 5% of the population potentially affected by your 
application is Limited English Proficient, then you are required to provide notice in the 
alternative language. 

If yes, how will you provide notice in alternative languages?  

Publish in alternative language newsp aper 

Posted  on Commissioner’s Integrated Database We bsite 

Mailed by TC EQ’s O ffice of the Chief C lerk 

Other (specify)  

(d) Is there an opportunity  for some type of  public meeting, including after notice? 

         Yes No

(e) If a public meeting is held, will  a translator be  provided if requested?   

 Yes      No

(f) Hard copies of the application will be available at the following  (check all that apply): 

 TCEQ Regional Office         TCEQ Central Office                

 Public Place (specify) 

Section 7. Voluntary Submittal 

For applicants  voluntarily providing this Public Involvement  Plan, who  are  not subject to formal
public participation requirements.  

 

     

Will you provide notice of this application, including notice in alternative languages? 

Yes       No 

What types of notice will be provided? 

Publish in alternative language newspa per 

Posted on Commissioner’s Integrated Database Web site 

Mailed by TCEQ’s Office of the Chief C lerk 

Other (specify)  

TCEQ-20960 (02-09-2023) Page 4 of 4 



5           Administrative Report 

A.E: 7.5-MINUTE USGS TOPOGRAPHIC MAP 
Figure 1 show the required information and 1-mile radius overlain on a seamless digital 
version of the original 7.5-Minute USGS Topographic quadrangle map of the area at 
native 1:24000 scale. 

  



Enviro-Ag Engineering, Inc.

TEL (806) 353-6123  FAX (806) 353-4132
AMARILLO, TEXAS  79118

3404 Airway Boulevard
ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS

Seaboard Foods LLC
Perryton Feedmill

Perryton, Ochiltree County, TX

7.5-Min. USGS Quadrangle Map

Date:  Apr. 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-MILE RADIUS FROM FEEDMILL BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEEDMILL  BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENVIRO-AG

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Source:	USDA-NRCS.  Geospatial Data Gateway.  Available at: :	USDA-NRCS.  Geospatial Data Gateway.  Available at: USDA-NRCS.  Geospatial Data Gateway.  Available at: http://datagateway.nrcs.usda.gov/.  Digital Raster Graphic .  Digital Raster Graphic County Mosaic by NRCS - Accessed 4/2016.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1320'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1320'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2640'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND: : Denotes Feedmill Area (including Evaporation Ponds)



7           Administrative Report 

A.F: AFFECTED LANDOWNER INFORMATION 
  



Parcel ID Property Owner: Address: City, State & Zip

15316 SEABOARD FOODS LLC 9000 WEST 67TH STREET SHAWNEE MISSION, KS 66202

15315, 15317 MONTGOMERY GARY T 13350 COUNTY ROAD U PERRYTON, TX 79070 

15319 STEED DAN EARL PO BOX 281 GROOM, TX 79039 

15264 PECKENPAUGH DAVID B PO BOX 253 FARNSWORTH, TX 79033

15269, 15268 PSHIGODA BRIAN & TAMARACHENA 12444 FM 3045 PERRYTON, TX 79070 

15267 THOMPSON JOEL D PO BOX 215 FARNSWORTH, TX 79033

15270 LEATHERMAN EVELYN ESTATE GAYNELLE HULSEY, 8409 BAXTER DR AMARILLO, TX 79119

15273 SYMONS DEBRA SUE 14688 W LOOP 143 PERRYTON, TX 79070

15273 SYMONS PHILIP 701 S DRAKE ST PERRYTON, TX 79070 

15273 SYMONS JED P 14905 COUNTY ROAD 20 PERRYTON, TX 79070 

18593 ELLIOTT FAMILY FARMS LLC & ELLIOTT DOROTHY ESTATE TRUST 13008 BURNT OAK RD OKLAHOMA CITY, OK 73120

18596 CDH TRUST DTD 10-22-93 % CAROL HEFNER STEFFENS TRUSTEE #10, 25 HIGHLAND PARK VLG DALLAS, TX 75205

15311 TEVIS TREV M 11750 FM 1267 PERRYTON, TX 79070 

15311 TEVIS DENZEL D 914 SW 9TH AVE PERRYTON, TX 79070 

210086 SOUTHWESTERN PUBLIC SERVICE ATTN PROPERTY TAX DEPARTMENT PO BOX 1979 DENVER, CO 80201

15313 NORRIS LAND COMPANY PO BOX 1106 PERRYTON, TX 79070 

15265, 15266 TAYLOR WESTON CLARK & KINZY LYNN TAYLOR 14061 COUNTY ROAD 9 PERRYTON, TX 79070



Enviro-Ag Engineering, Inc.

TEL (806) 353-6123  FAX (806) 353-4132
AMARILLO, TEXAS  79118

3404 Airway Boulevard
ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS

Seaboard Foods LLC
Perryton Feedmill

Perryton, Ochiltree County, TX

Adjacent Property Owners Map 

Date:  Apr. 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-Mile Radius

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1320'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1320'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2640'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
Source:	Ochiltree County Appraisal District.  Property Search and :	Ochiltree County Appraisal District.  Property Search and Ochiltree County Appraisal District.  Property Search and BIS Interactive Map.  Available at: https://www.ochiltreecad.org/ - Accessed 4/2024. - Accessed 4/2024.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENVIRO-AG

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING, INC.



9  Administrative Report 

A.G: PHOTOGRAPHS



 

Photo #1 – Looking North-Northwest of Feedmill 

 

 

Photo #2– Looking North-Northwest of Feedmill 

 



 

Photo #3 – Looking East from County Road on West side of Feedmill 

 

 

Photo #4– Looking Southeast-East from County Road on West side of Feedmill 



10           Administrative Report 

A.H: SPIF 
 

n/a – No TPDES  

 

 

  



TCEQ-10055 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 1 of 83 

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATER PERMIT APPLICATION 
TECHNICAL REPORT 1.0 

The following information is required for all applications for a TLAP or an individual TPDES 
discharge permit. 

For additional information or clarification on the requested information, please refer to the 
Instructions for Completing the Industrial Wastewater Permit Application1 available on the 
TCEQ website. Please contact the Industrial Permits Team at 512-239-4671 with any questions 
about this form. 

If more than one outfall is included in the application, provide applicable information for each 
individual outfall. If an item does not apply to the facility, enter N/A to indicate that the item 
has been considered. Include separate reports or additional sheets as clearly cross-referenced 
attachments and provide the attachment number in the space provided for the item the 
attachment addresses. 

NOTE: This application is for an industrial wastewater permit only. Additional authorizations 
from the TCEQ Waste Permits Division or the TCEQ Air Permits Division may be needed. 

Item 1. Facility/Site Information (Instructions, Page 39) 

a. Describe the general nature of the business and type(s) of industrial and commercial 
activities. Include all applicable SIC codes (up to 4). 

Feedmill for making swine feed for surrounding swine facilities owned by Seaboard Foods 
LLC.   SIC 2048 

b. Describe all wastewater-generating processes at the facility. 

Seaboard’s Perryton Feedmill generates wastewater from boiler blowdown and water softener 
backwash. The boilers are used to produce steam to flake grains necessary feed preparation. 
Typically, the steam used in the feed preparation occurs at a rate of 4% water content held in 
the feed itself. Consequently, the gallons of water required for the operation are based on 
11,000 tons of prepared feed per week. Water softening equipment utilizing a deionizing 
system is currently used to protect the boiler system from hard water. As a result, the water 
softening system will discharge water on a backwash/regeneration cycle. The boiler blowdown 
occurs at a 10% rate. As a result, the total wastewater generated from the boiler blowdown 
and water softener backwash is 24,000 gallons per day (MAX GPD). 

 
1 
https://www.tceq.texas.gov/permitting/wastewater/industrial/TPDES_industrial_wastewater_st
eps.html 

https://www.tceq.texas.gov/permitting/wastewater/industrial/TPDES_industrial_wastewater_steps.html
https://www.tceq.texas.gov/permitting/wastewater/industrial/TPDES_industrial_wastewater_steps.html
https://www.tceq.texas.gov/permitting/wastewater/industrial/TPDES_industrial_wastewater_steps.html


TCEQ-10055 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 2 of 83 

c. Provide a list of raw materials, major intermediates, and final products handled at the 
facility. 

Materials List 

Raw Materials Intermediate Products Final Products 

Water Steam Prepared Feed Rations 

Grain  Wastewater from Boiler 
Blowdown 

Choline  Wastewater from Water 
Softener Backwash 

Lysine   

Soybeans   

   

   

   

   

   

   

Attachment: n/a 

d. Attach a facility map (drawn to scale) with the following information: 

• Production areas, maintenance areas, materials-handling areas, waste-disposal areas, 
and water intake structures. 

• The location of each unit of the WWTP including the location of wastewater collection 
sumps, impoundments, outfalls, and sampling points, if significantly different from 
outfall locations. 

Attachment: Figure 3 of Engineering Report 

e. Is this a new permit application for an existing facility? 

☐   Yes ☒   No 

If yes, provide background discussion: Click to enter text. 

f. Is/will the treatment facility/disposal site be located above the 100-year frequency flood 
level. 

☒   Yes ☐   No 

List source(s) used to determine 100-year frequency flood plain: USGS 7.5 Minute Series 
Quadrangle Topographic Map 

If no, provide the elevation of the 100-year frequency flood plain and describe what 
protective measures are used/proposed to prevent flooding (including tail water and 
rainfall run-on controls) of the treatment facility and disposal area: Click to enter text. 

Attachment: Click to enter text. 



TCEQ-10055 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 3 of 83 

g. For new or major amendment permit applications, will any construction operations result 
in a discharge of fill material into a water in the state? 

☐   Yes ☒   No ☐   N/A (renewal only) 

h. If yes to Item 1.g, has the applicant applied for a USACE CWA Chapter 404 Dredge and Fill 
permit? 

☐   Yes ☐   No 

If yes, provide the permit number: Click to enter text. 

If no, provide an approximate date of application submittal to the USACE: Click to enter 
text. 

Item 2. Treatment System (Instructions, Page 40) 

a. List any physical, chemical, or biological treatment process(es) used/proposed to treat 
wastewater at this facility. Include a description of each treatment process, starting with 
initial treatment and finishing with the outfall/point of disposal. 

No other treatment processes are proposed. 

b. Attach a flow schematic with a water balance showing all sources of water and wastewater 
flow into the facility, wastewater flow into and from each treatment unit, and wastewater 
flow to each outfall/point of disposal. 

Attachment: Figure 4 of Engineering Report 

Item 3. Impoundments (Instructions, Page 40) 
Does the facility use or plan to use any wastewater impoundments (e.g., lagoons or ponds?) 

☒   Yes ☐   No 

If no, proceed to Item 4. If yes, complete Item 3.a for existing impoundments and Items 3.a - 
3.e for new or proposed impoundments. NOTE: See instructions, Pages 40-42, for additional 
information on the attachments required by Items 3.a – 3.e. 



TCEQ-10055 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 4 of 83 

a. Complete the table with the following information for each existing, new, or proposed 
impoundment. Attach additional copies of the Impoundment Information table, if needed. 

Use Designation: Indicate the use designation for each impoundment as Treatment (T), 
Disposal (D), Containment (C), or Evaporation (E). 

Associated Outfall Number:  Provide an outfall number if a discharge occurs or will occur. 

Liner Type:  Indicate the liner type as Compacted clay liner (C), In-situ clay liner (I), 
Synthetic/plastic/rubber liner (S), or Alternate liner (A). NOTE: See instructions for further 
detail on liner specifications. If an alternate liner (A) is selected, include an attachment that 
provides a description of the alternate liner and any additional technical information 
necessary for an evaluation.   

Leak Detection System: If any leak detection systems are in place/planned, enter Y for yes. 
Otherwise, enter N for no. 

Groundwater Monitoring Wells and Data: If groundwater monitoring wells are in 
place/planned, enter Y for yes. Otherwise, enter N for no. Attach any existing groundwater 
monitoring data. 

Dimensions:  Provide the dimensions, freeboard, surface area, storage capacity of the 
impoundments, and the maximum depth (not including freeboard). For impoundments with 
irregular shapes, submit surface area instead of length and width. 

Compliance with 40 CFR Part 257, Subpart D: If the impoundment is required to be in 
compliance with 40 CFR Part 257, Subpart D, enter Y for yes. Otherwise, enter N for no. 

Date of Construction: Enter the date construction of the impoundment commenced 
(mm/dd/yy). 

Impoundment Information 

Parameter Pond # Pond # Pond # Pond # 

Use Designation: (T) (D) (C) or (E) E E   

Associated Outfall Number E1 E2   

Liner Type (C) (I) (S) or (A) C C   

Alt. Liner Attachment Reference     

Leak Detection System, Y/N N N   

Groundwater Monitoring Wells, Y/N N N   

Groundwater Monitoring Data 
Attachment 

N N   

Pond Bottom Located Above The 
Seasonal High-Water Table, Y/N 

Y Y   

Length (ft) 239.7’ 605.7   

Width (ft) 236.4’ 344.1’   

Max Depth From Water Surface (ft), 
Not Including Freeboard 

6.5’ 605’   

Freeboard (ft) 2’ 2’   

Surface Area (acres) 1.30 4.78   



TCEQ-10055 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 5 of 83 

Parameter Pond # Pond # Pond # Pond # 

Storage Capacity (gallons) 1,596,670 
as-built 

6,526,796 

proposed 

  

40 CFR Part 257, Subpart D, Y/N N N   

Date of Construction 12/18/2018 Proposed   

Attachment: Attachment T.E 

The following information (Items 3.b – 3.e) is required only for new or proposed 
impoundments. 

b. For new or proposed impoundments, attach any available information on the following 
items. If attached, check yes in the appropriate box. Otherwise, check no or not yet 
designed. 

1. Liner data 

☒   Yes ☐   No ☐   Not yet designed 

2. Leak detection system or groundwater monitoring data 

☐   Yes ☒   No ☐   Not yet designed 

3. Groundwater impacts  

☐   Yes ☒   No ☐   Not yet designed 

NOTE: Item b.3 is required if the bottom of the pond is not above the seasonal high-
water table in the shallowest water-bearing zone. 

Attachment: Liner Specifications – Refer to Engineering Report 

For TLAP applications: Items 3.c – 3.e are not required, continue to Item 4. 

c. Attach a USGS map or a color copy of original quality and scale which accurately locates 
and identifies all known water supply wells and monitor wells within ½-mile of the 
impoundments. 

Attachment: Click to enter text. 

d. Attach copies of State Water Well Reports (e.g., driller’s logs, completion data, etc.), and 
data on depths to groundwater for all known water supply wells including a description of 
how the depths to groundwater were obtained. 

Attachment: Click to enter text. 

e.  Attach information pertaining to the groundwater, soils, geology, pond liner, etc. used to 
assess the potential for migration of wastes from the impoundments or the potential for 
contamination of groundwater or surface water. 

Attachment: Click to enter text. 



TCEQ-10055 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 6 of 83 

Item 4. Outfall/Disposal Method Information (Instructions, 
Page 42) 

Complete the following tables to describe the location and wastewater discharge or disposal 
operations for each outfall for discharge, and for each point of disposal for TLAP operations. 

If there are more outfalls/points of disposal at the facility than the spaces provided, copies of 
pages 6 and/0r numbered accordingly (i.e., page 6a, 6b, etc.) may be used to provide 
information on the additional outfalls. 

For TLAP applications: Indicate the disposal method and each individual irrigation area I, 
evaporation pond E, or subsurface drainage system S by providing the appropriate letter 
designation for the disposal method followed by a numerical designation for each disposal 
area in the space provided for Outfall number (e.g. E1 for evaporation pond 1, I2 for irrigation 
area No. 2, etc.). 

Outfall Longitude and Latitude 

Outfall No. Latitude (Decimal Degrees) Longitude (Decimal Degrees) 

E1 36.3429 -100.9250 

E2 36.3436 -100.9257 

   

Outfall Location Description 

Outfall No. Location Description 

E1 Near southwest corner of Evaporation Pond #1 

E2 Near southwest corner of Evaporation Pond #2 

  

Description of Sampling Point(s) (if different from Outfall location) 

Outfall No. Description of sampling point 

E1 At inlet of Evaporation Pond #1 

E2 At inlet of Evaporation Pond #2 

  

Outfall Flow Information – Permitted and Proposed 

Outfall No. 
Permitted 
Daily Avg 
Flow (MGD) 

Permitted 
Daily Max 
Flow (MGD) 

Proposed 
Daily Avg 
Flow (MGD) 

Proposed 
Daily Max 
Flow (MGD) 

Anticipated 
Discharge Date 
(mm/dd/yy) 

E1 & E2 0.00198  0.011 0.024  

      

      



TCEQ-10055 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 7 of 83 

Outfall Discharge – Method and Measurement 

Outfall No. 
Pumped Discharge? 
Y/N 

Gravity Discharge? 
Y/N 

Type of Flow Measurement 
Device Used 

E1/E2 Y N Flow Meter 

    

    

Outfall Discharge – Flow Characteristics 

Outfall No. 
Intermittent 
Discharge? 
Y/N 

Continuous 
Discharge? 
Y/N 

Seasonal 
Discharge? 
Y/N 

Discharge 
Duration 
(hrs/day) 

Discharge 
Duration 
(days/mo) 

Discharge 
Duration 
(mo/yr) 

E1/E2 Y N N Up to 18 20 to 24 12 

       

       

Outfall Wastestream Contributions 

Outfall No. E1 & E2 

Contributing Wastestream Volume (MGD) Percent (%) of Total Flow 

Boiler Blowdown 0.0157 65.6% 

Water Softener Regeneration 0.0083 34.4% 

 Total >0.024 (MAX)  

   

   

   

   

   

   

Outfall No. Click to enter text. 

Contributing Wastestream Volume (MGD) Percent (%) of Total Flow 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   



TCEQ-10055 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 8 of 83 

Outfall No. Click to enter text. 

Contributing Wastestream Volume (MGD) Percent (%) of Total Flow 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

Attachment: Click to enter text. 

Item 5. Blowdown and Once-Through Cooling Water 
Discharges (Instructions, Page 43) 

a. Indicate if the facility currently or proposes to:  

☒   Yes ☐   No  Use cooling towers that discharge blowdown or other wastestreams 

☒   Yes ☐   No  Use boilers that discharge blowdown or other wastestreams 

☐   Yes ☒   No  Discharge once-through cooling water 

NOTE: If the facility uses or plans to use cooling towers or once-through cooling water, 
Item 12 is required. 

b. If yes to any of the above, attach an SDS with the following information for each chemical 
additive.  

• Manufacturers Product Identification Number 

• Product use (e.g., biocide, fungicide, corrosion inhibitor, etc.) 

• Chemical composition including CASRN for each ingredient 

• Classify product as non-persistent, persistent, or bioaccumulative 

• Product or active ingredient half-life 

• Frequency of product use (e.g., 2 hours/day once every two weeks) 

• Product toxicity data specific to fish and aquatic invertebrate organisms 

• Concentration of whole product or active ingredient, as appropriate, in wastestream. 

In addition to each SDS, attach a summary of the above information for each specific 
wastestream and the associated chemical additives. Specify which outfalls are affected. 

Attachment: Appendix K of Engineering Report 

c. Cooling Towers and Boilers 



TCEQ-10055 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 9 of 83 

If the facility currently or proposes to use cooling towers or boilers that discharge 
blowdown or other wastestreams to the outfall(s), complete the following table. 

Cooling Towers and Boilers 

Type of Unit 
Number of 
Units 

Daily Avg Blowdown 
(gallons/day) 

Daily Max Blowdown 
(gallons/day) 

Cooling Towers n/a   

Boilers 2 0.0072 0.0157 

Item 6. Stormwater Management (Instructions, Page 44) 
Will any existing/proposed outfalls discharge stormwater associated with industrial activities, 
as defined at 40 CFR § 122.26(b)(14), commingled with any other wastestream? 

☐   Yes ☒   No 

If yes, briefly describe the industrial processes and activities that occur outdoors or in a 
manner which may result in exposure of the activities or materials to stormwater: Click to 
enter text. 

Item 7. Domestic Sewage, Sewage Sludge, and Septage 
Management and Disposal (Instructions, Page 44) 

Domestic Sewage - Waste and wastewater from humans or household operations that is 
discharged to a wastewater collection system or otherwise enters a treatment works. 

a. Check the box next to the appropriate method of domestic sewage and domestic sewage 
sludge treatment or disposal. Complete Worksheet 5.0 or Item 7.b if directed to do so. 

☐ Domestic sewage is routed (i.e., connected to or transported to) to a WWTP permitted to 
receive domestic sewage for treatment, disposal, or both. Complete Item 7.b. 

☐ Domestic sewage disposed of by an on-site septic tank and drainfield system. Complete 
Item 7.b. 

☐ Domestic and industrial treatment sludge ARE commingled prior to use or disposal. 

☐ Industrial wastewater and domestic sewage are treated separately, and the respective 
sludge IS NOT commingled prior to sludge use or disposal. Complete Worksheet 5.0. 

☐ Facility is a POTW. Complete Worksheet 5.0. 

☐ Domestic sewage is not generated on-site. 

☒ Other (e.g., portable toilets), specify and Complete Item 7.b: Domestic sewage is treated 
separately onsite by use of a permitted OSSF at the feedmill 

b. Provide the name and TCEQ, NPDES, or TPDES Permit No. of the waste-disposal facility 
which receives the domestic sewage/septage. If hauled by motorized vehicle, provide the 
name and TCEQ Registration No. of the hauler. 

Domestic Sewage Plant/Hauler Name 

Plant/Hauler Name Permit/Registration No. 

n/a  



TCEQ-10055 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 10 of 83 

Plant/Hauler Name Permit/Registration No. 

  

Item 8. Improvements or Compliance/Enforcement 
Requirements (Instructions, Page 45) 

a. Is the permittee currently required to meet any implementation schedule for compliance or 
enforcement? 

☐   Yes ☒   No 

b. Has the permittee completed or planned for any improvements or construction projects? 

☒   Yes ☐   No 

c. If yes to either 8.a or 8.b, provide a brief summary of the requirements and a status 
update: Construction of Evaporation Pond #2 

Item 9. Toxicity Testing (Instructions, Page 45) 
Have any biological tests for acute or chronic toxicity been made on any of the discharges or 
on a receiving water in relation to the discharge within the last three years?  

☐   Yes ☒   No 

If yes, identify the tests and describe their purposes: Click to enter text. 

Additionally, attach a copy of all tests performed which have not been submitted to the TCEQ 
or EPA. Attachment: Click to enter text. 

Item 10. Off-Site/Third Party Wastes (Instructions, Page 45) 

a. Does or will the facility receive wastes from off-site sources for treatment at the facility, 
disposal on-site via land application, or discharge via a permitted outfall? 

☐   Yes ☒   No 

If yes, provide responses to Items 10.b through 10.d below. 

If no, proceed to Item 11. 

b. Attach the following information to the application: 

• List of wastes received (including volumes, characterization, and capability with on-site 
wastes). 

• Identify the sources of wastes received (including the legal name and addresses of the 
generators). 

• Description of the relationship of waste source(s) with the facility’s activities. 

Attachment: Click to enter text. 

c. Is or will wastewater from another TCEQ, NPDES, or TPDES permitted facility commingled 
with this facility’s wastewater after final treatment and prior to discharge via the final 
outfall/point of disposal? 

☐   Yes ☐   No 



TCEQ-10055 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 11 of 83 

If yes, provide the name, address, and TCEQ, NPDES, or TPDES permit number of the 
contributing facility and a copy of any agreements or contracts relating to this activity. 

Attachment: Click to enter text. 

d. Is this facility a POTW that accepts/will accept process wastewater from any SIU and has/is 
required to have an approved pretreatment program under the NPDES/TPDES program? 

☐   Yes ☐   No 

If yes, Worksheet 6.0 of this application is required. 

Item 11. Radioactive Materials (Instructions, Page 46) 

a. Are/will radioactive materials be mined, used, stored, or processed at this facility? 

☐   Yes ☒   No 

If yes, use the following table to provide the results of one analysis of the effluent for all 
radioactive materials that may be present. Provide results in pCi/L. 

Radioactive Materials Mined, Used, Stored, or Processed 

Radioactive Material Name Concentration (pCi/L) 

  

  

  

  

b. Does the applicant or anyone at the facility have any knowledge or reason to believe that 
radioactive materials may be present in the discharge, including naturally occurring 
radioactive materials in the source waters or on the facility property? 

☐   Yes ☒   No 

If yes, use the following table to provide the results of one analysis of the effluent for all 
radioactive materials that may be present. Provide results in pCi/L. Do not include 
information provided in response to Item 11.a. 

Radioactive Materials Present in the Discharge 

Radioactive Material Name Concentration (pCi/L) 

  

  

  

  

Item 12. Cooling Water (Instructions, Page 46) 

a. Does the facility use or propose to use water for cooling purposes? 

☐   Yes ☒   No 

If no, stop here. If yes, complete Items 12.b thru 12.f. 



TCEQ-10055 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 12 of 83 

b. Cooling water is/will be obtained from a groundwater source (e.g., on-site well). 

☐   Yes ☐   No 

If yes, stop here. If no, continue. 

c. Cooling Water Supplier 

1. Provide the name of the owner(s) and operator(s) for the CWIS that supplies or will 
supply water for cooling purposes to the facility. 

Cooling Water Intake Structure(s) Owner(s) and Operator(s) 

CWIS ID     

Owner     

Operator     

2. Cooling water is/will be obtained from a Public Water Supplier (PWS) 

☐   Yes ☐   No 

If no, continue. If yes, provide the PWS Registration No. and stop here: PWS No. Click to 
enter text. 

3. Cooling water is/will be obtained from a reclaimed water source? 

☐   Yes ☐   No 

If no, continue. If yes, provide the Reuse Authorization No. and stop here: Click to enter 
text. 

4. Cooling water is/will be obtained from an Independent Supplier 

☐   Yes ☐   No 

If no, proceed to Item 12.d. If yes, provide the actual intake flow of the Independent 
Supplier’s CWIS that is/will be used to provide water for cooling purposes and proceed: 
Click to enter text. 

d. 316(b) General Criteria 

1. The CWIS(s) used to provide water for cooling purposes to the facility has or will have a 
cumulative design intake flow of 2 MGD or greater. 

☐   Yes ☐   No 

2. At least 25% of the total water withdrawn by the CWIS is/will be used at the facility 
exclusively for cooling purposes on an annual average basis. 

☐   Yes ☐   No 

3. The CWIS(s) withdraw(s)/propose(s) to withdraw water for cooling purposes from 
surface waters that meet the definition of Waters of the United States in 40 CFR § 
122.2. 

☐   Yes ☐   No 

If no, provide an explanation of how the waterbody does not meet the definition of 
Waters of the United States in 40 CFR § 122.2: Click to enter text. 



TCEQ-10055 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 13 of 83 

If yes to all three questions in Item 12.d, the facility meets the minimum criteria to be subject 
to the full requirements of Section 316(b) of the CWA. Proceed to Item 12.f.  

If no to any of the questions in Item 12.d, the facility does not meet the minimum criteria to 
be subject to the full requirements of Section 316(b) of the CWA; however, a determination is 
required based upon BPJ. Proceed to Item 12.e. 

e. The facility does not meet the minimum requirements to be subject to the fill requirements 
of Section 316(b) and uses/proposes to use cooling towers. 

☐   Yes ☐   No 

If yes, stop here. If no, complete Worksheet 11.0, Items 1.a, 1.b.1-3 and 6, 2.b.1, and 3.a to 
allow for a determination based upon BPJ.  

f. Oil and Gas Exploration and Production 

1. The facility is subject to requirements at 40 CFR Part 435, Subparts A or D. 

☐   Yes ☐   No 

If yes, continue. If no, skip to Item 12.g. 

2. The facility is an existing facility as defined at 40 CFR § 125.92(k) or a new unit at an 
existing facility as defined at 40 CFR § 125.92(u). 

☐   Yes ☐   No 

If yes, complete Worksheet 11.0, Items 1.a, 1.b.1-3 and 6, 2.b.1, and 3.a to allow for a 
determination based upon BPJ. If no, skip to Item 12.g.3. 

g. Compliance Phase and Track Selection 

1. Phase I – New facility subject to 40 CFR Part 125, Subpart I 

☐   Yes ☐   No 

If yes, check the box next to the compliance track selection, attach the requested 
information, and complete Worksheet 11.0, Items 2 and 3, and Worksheet 11.2. 

☐   Track I – AIF greater than 2 MGD, but less than 10 MGD 

• Attach information required by 40 CFR §§ 125.86(b)(2)-(4). 

☐   Track I – AIF greater than 10 MGD 

• Attach information required by 40 CFR § 125.86(b). 

☐   Track II 

• Attach information required by 40 CFR § 125.86(c). 

Attachment: Click to enter text. 

2. Phase II – Existing facility subject to 40 CFR Part 125, Subpart J 

☐   Yes ☐   No 

If yes, complete Worksheets 11.0 through 11.3, as applicable. 

3. Phase III – New facility subject to 40 CFR Part 125, Subpart N 

☐   Yes ☐   No 



TCEQ-10055 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 14 of 83 

If yes, check the box next to the compliance track selection and provide the requested 
information. 

☐   Track I – Fixed facility 

• Attach information required by 40 CFR § 125.136(b) and complete Worksheet 
11.0, Items 2 and 3, and Worksheet 11.2. 

☐   Track I – Not a fixed facility 

• Attach information required by 40 CFR § 125.136(b) and complete Worksheet 
11.0, Item 2 (except CWIS latitude/longitude under Item 2.a). 

☐   Track II – Fixed facility 

• Attach information required by 40 CFR § 125.136(c) and complete Worksheet 
11.0, Items 2 and 3. 

Attachment: Click to enter text. 

Item 13. Permit Change Requests (Instructions, Page 48) 
This item is only applicable to existing permitted facilities. 

a. Is the facility requesting a major amendment of an existing permit?  

☒   Yes ☐   No 

If yes, list each request individually and provide the following information: 1) detailed 
information regarding the scope of each request and 2) a justification for each request. 
Attach any supplemental information or additional data to support each request. 

Feedmill expansion with addition of second boiler and water softening system.  Expansion will 
include the construction of Evaporation Pond #2 to handle the increased discharge of boiler 
blowdown and water softener backwash activities. 

b. Is the facility requesting any minor amendments to the permit? 

☐   Yes ☒   No 

If yes, list and describe each change individually. 



TCEQ-10055 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 15 of 83 

Click to enter text. 

c. Is the facility requesting any minor modifications to the permit? 

☐   Yes ☒   No 

If yes, list and describe each change individually. 

Click to enter text. 

Item 14. Laboratory Accreditation (Instructions, Page 49) 
All laboratory tests performed must meet the requirements of 30 TAC Chapter 25, 
Environmental Testing Laboratory Accreditation and Certification, which includes the following 
general exemptions from National Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (NELAP) 
certification requirements: 

• The laboratory is an in-house laboratory and is: 

o periodically inspected by the TCEQ; or 

o located in another state and is accredited or inspected by that state; or 

o performing work for another company with a unit located in the same site; or 

o performing pro bono work for a governmental agency or charitable 
organization. 

• The laboratory is accredited under federal law. 

• The data are needed for emergency-response activities, and a laboratory accredited 
under the Texas Laboratory Accreditation Program is not available. 

• The laboratory supplies data for which the TCEQ does not offer accreditation. 

The applicant should review 30 TAC Chapter 25 for specific requirements.  

The following certification statement shall be signed and submitted with every application. See 
the Signature Page section in the Instructions, for a list of designated representatives who may 
sign the certification. 

CERTIFICATION: 

I certify that all laboratory tests submitted with this application meet the requirements of 
30 TAC Chapter 25, Environmental Testing Laboratory Accreditation and Certification. 





TCEQ-10053 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 35 of 83 

INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATER PERMIT APPLICATION 
WORKSHEET 3.0: LAND APPLICATION OF EFFLUENT 

This worksheet is required for all applications for a permit to disposal of wastewater by land 
application (i.e., TLAP)). 

Item 1. Type of Disposal System (Instructions, Page 69) 
Check the box next to the type of land disposal requested by this application: 

 

☐   Irrigation 

☒   Evaporation 

☐   Evapotranspiration beds  

☐   Drip irrigation system

☐   Subsurface application 

☐   Subsurface soils absorption 

☐   Surface application 

☐   Other, specify: Click to enter text. 

Item 2. Land Application Area (Instructions, Page 69) 

Land Application Area Information 

Effluent Application 
(gallons/day) 

Irrigation Acreage 
(acres) 

Describe land use & 
indicate type(s) of crop(s) 

Public Access? 
(Y/N) 

n/a – total 
evaporation 

n/a n/a n/a 

    

    

    

Item 3. Annual Cropping Plan (Instructions, Page 69) 
Attach the required cropping plan that includes each of the following: 

• Cool and warm season plant species 

• Breakdown of acreage and percent of total acreage for each crop 

• Crop growing season 

• Harvesting method/number of harvests 

• Minimum/maximum harvest height 

• Crop yield goals 

• Soils map 

• Nitrogen requirements per crop 

• Additional fertilizer requirements 

• Supplemental watering requirements 

• Crop salt tolerances 

• Justification for not removing existing vegetation to be irrigated 

Attachment: n/a 



TCEQ-10053 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 36 of 83 

Item 4. Well and Map Information (Instructions, Page 70) 

a. Check each box to confirm the required information is shown and labeled on the attached 
USGS map: 

☐   The exact boundaries of the land application area 

☒   On-site buildings 

☒   Waste-disposal or treatment facilities 

☒   Effluent storage and tailwater control facilities 

☒   Buffer zones 

☒   All surface waters in the state onsite and within 500 feet of the property boundaries 

☒   All water wells within ½-mile of the disposal site, wastewater ponds, or property 
boundaries 

☒   All springs and seeps onsite and within 500 feet of the property boundaries 

Attachment: Attachment T-C 

b. List and cross reference all water wells located on or within 500 feet of the disposal site, 
wastewater ponds, or property boundaries in the following table. Attach additional pages as 
necessary to include all of the wells. 

Well and Map Information Table 

Well ID Well Use Producing? 
Y/N/U 

Open, cased, capped, 
or plugged? 

Proposed Best 
Management Practice 

Attached 
Table C-1 & 
Figure C-1 

    

     

     

     

     

     

Attachment: Attachment T-C 

c. Groundwater monitoring wells or lysimeters are/will be installed around the land 
application site or wastewater ponds.  

☐   Yes ☒   No 

If yes, provide the existing/proposed location of the monitoring wells or lysimeters on the 
site map attached for Item 4.a. Additionally, attach information on the depth of the wells or 
lysimeters, sampling schedule, and monitoring parameters for TCEQ review, possible 
modification, and approval. 

Attachment: Click to enter text. 

d. Attach a short groundwater technical report using 30 TAC § 309.20(a)(4) as guidance. 
Attachment: 



TCEQ-10053 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 37 of 83 

Item 5. Soil Map and Soil Information (Instructions, Page 71) 
Check each box to confirm that the following information is attached: 

a. ☒   USDA NRCS Soil Survey Map depicting the area to be used for land application with the 
locations identified by fields and crops. 

b. ☐   Breakdown of acreage and percent of total acreage for each soil type. 

c. ☐   Copies of laboratory soil analyses. Attachment: Click to enter text. 

Item 6. Effluent Monitoring Data (Instructions, Page 72) 

a. Completion of Table 14 is required for all renewal and major amendment applications. 
Complete the table with monitoring data for the previous two years for all parameters 
regulated in the current permit. An additional table has been provided with blank headers 
for parameters regulated in the current permit which are not listed in Table 14. 

Table 14 for Outfall No.: E1 Samples are (check one): ☐   Composite ☒   Grab 

Date 
(mo/yr) 

Daily Avg 
Flow (gpd) 

BOD5 
(mg/L) 

TSS 
(mg/L) 

Nitrogen 
(mg/L) 

Conductivity 
(mmhos/cm) 

Total 
acres 
irrigated 

Hydraulic 
Application rate 
(acre-feet/month) 

12/2023 0.00319       

11/2023 0.00507       

10/2023 0.00334       

09/2023 0.00497       

08/2023 0.00231       

07/2023 0.00541       

06/2023 0.00580       

05/2023 0.00826       

04/2023 0.00675       

03/2023 0.00581       

02/2023 0.00615       

01/2023 0.00688       

12/2022 0.00692       

11/2022 0.00745       

10/2022 0.00724       

09/2022 0.00727       

08/2022 0.00633       

07/2022 0.00452       

06/2022 0.00419       

05/2022 0.00472       

04/2022 0.00422       



TCEQ-10053 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 38 of 83 

Date 
(mo/yr) 

Daily Avg 
Flow (gpd) 

BOD5 
(mg/L) 

TSS 
(mg/L) 

Nitrogen 
(mg/L) 

Conductivity 
(mmhos/cm) 

Total 
acres 
irrigated 

Hydraulic 
Application rate 
(acre-feet/month) 

03/2022 0.00656       

02/2022 0.00220       

01/2022 0.00375       

b. Use this table to provide effluent analysis for parameters regulated in the current permit 
which are not listed in Table 14. 

Additional Parameter Effluent Analysis 

Date (mo/yr) TDS pH      

12/2023 22100 8.9      

11/2023 13900 8.4      

10/2023 21500 8.85      

09/2023 23900 8.9      

08/2023 20500 8.35      

07/2023 24400 8.63      

06/2023 24800 8.49       

05/2023 29800 8.77      

04/2023 30600 8.94      

03/2023 27300 8.65      

02/2023 29100 8.85      

01/2023 29700 8.75      

12/2022 29700 8.39      

11/2022 34500 8.46      

10/2022 37000 8.4      

09/2022 35500 8.52      

08/2022 36000 8.6      

07/2022 28700 8.68      

06/2022 23400 8.85      

05/2022 23600 8.84      

04/2022 18100 8.92      

03/2022 21800 8.89      

02/2022 18600 8.82      

01/2022 23200 8.85      



TCEQ-10053 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 39 of 83 

c. Attach an explanation of all persistent excursions to permitted parameters and corrective 
actions taken. Attachment: This amendment application has taken into account the increased flow 
and corrective action is to construct an additional evaporation pond. 

Item 7. Pollutant Analysis (Instructions, Page 72) 

a. Provide the date range of all sampling events conducted to obtain the analytical data 
submitted with this application (e.g., 05/01/2018-05/30/2018): 4/3/24 

b. ☒   Check the box to confirm all samples were collected no more than 12 months prior to 
the date of application submittal. 

c. Complete Tables 15 and 16. 

Table 15 for Outfall No.: E1 Samples are (check one): ☐   Composite ☒   Grab 

Pollutant Sample 1 
(mg/L) 

Sample 2 
(mg/L) 

Sample 3 
(mg/L) 

Sample 4 
(mg/L) 

BOD (5-day) 162    

CBOD (5-day) 32.9    

Chemical oxygen demand 115    

Total organic carbon 3.11    

Dissolved oxygen 9.29    

Ammonia nitrogen 0.750    

Total suspended solids 198    

Nitrate nitrogen <0.1    

Total organic nitrogen 12.15    

Total phosphorus 1.76    

Oil and grease 2.67    

Total residual chlorine <0.10    

Total dissolved solids 16,100    

Sulfate 866    

Chloride 10,200    

Fluoride 9.51    

Total alkalinity (mg/L as CaCO3) 354    

Temperature (°F) -    

pH (standard units) 8.86 onsite 
pH testing 

   

Table 16 for Outfall No.: E1 Samples are (check one): ☐   Composite ☒   Grab 

Pollutant Sample 1 
(µg/L) 

Sample 2 
(µg/L) 

Sample 3 
(µg/L) 

Sample 4 
(µg/L) 

MAL (µg/L) 

Aluminum, total 539    2.5 



TCEQ-10053 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 40 of 83 

Pollutant Sample 1 
(µg/L) 

Sample 2 
(µg/L) 

Sample 3 
(µg/L) 

Sample 4 
(µg/L) 

MAL (µg/L) 

Antimony, total <8.47    5 

Arsenic, total 20.2    0.5 

Barium, total 298    3 

Beryllium, total <0.0605    0.5 

Cadmium, total 0.108    1 

Chromium, total 7.52    3 

Chromium, hexavalent <3.0    3 

Chromium, trivalent 4.52    N/A 

Copper, total 913    2 

Cyanide, available <2.38    2/10 

Lead, total 0.823    0.5 

Mercury, total 0.00662    0.005/0.0005 

Nickel, total 21.5    2 

Selenium, total 35.3    5 

Silver, total 0.449    0.5 

Thallium, total 0.372    0.5 

Zinc, total 29.1    5.0 

 



TCEQ-10053 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 41 of 83 

INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATER PERMIT APPLICATION 
WORKSHEET 3.1: SURFACE LAND APPLICATION AND 

APPLICATION 

This worksheet is required for all applications for a permit to disposal of wastewater by 
surface land application or evaporation. 

Item 1. Edwards Aquifer (Instructions, Page 73) 

a. Is the facility subject to 30 TAC Chapter 213, Edwards Aquifer Rules? 

☐   Yes ☒   No 

If no, proceed to Item 2. If yes, complete Items 1.b and 1.c. 

b. Check the box next to the subchapter applicable to the facility. 

☐   30 TAC Chapter 213, Subchapter A 

☐   30 TAC Chapter 213, Subchapter B 

c. If 30 TAC Chapter 213, Subchapter A applies, attach either: 1) a Geologic Assessment (if 
conducted in accordance with 30 TAC § 213.5) or 2) a report that contains the following: 

• A description of the surface geological units within the proposed land application site 
and wastewater pond area. 

• The location and extent of any sensitive recharge features in the land application site 
and wastewater pond area  

• A list of any proposed BMPs to protect the recharge features. 

Attachment: Click to enter text. 

Item 2. Surface Spray/Irrigation (Instructions, Page 73) 

a. Provide the following information on the irrigation operations:  

Area under irrigation (acres): n/a 

Design application rate (acre-ft/acre/yr): n/a 

Design application frequency (hours/day): n/a 

Design application frequency (days/week): n/a 

Design total nitrogen loading rate (lbs nitrogen/acre/year): n/a 

Average slope of the application area (percent): n/a 

Maximum slope of the application area (percent): n/a 

Irrigation efficiency (percent): n/a 

Effluent conductivity (mmhos/cm): n/a 

Soil conductivity (mmhos/cm): n/a 

Curve number: n/a 

Describe the application method and equipment: n/a total evaporation 



TCEQ-10053 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 42 of 83 

b. Attach a detailed engineering report which includes a water balance, storage volume 
calculations, and a nitrogen balance. Attachment: Click to enter text. 

Item 3. Evaporation Ponds (Instructions, Page 74) 

a. Daily average effluent flow into ponds: 0.011  gallons per day 

b. Attach a separate engineering report of evaporation calculations for average long-term and 
worst-case critical conditions. Attachment: Attachment T.E 

Item 4.  Evapotranspiration Beds (Instructions, Page 74) 

a. Provide the following information on the evapotranspiration beds: 

Number of beds: n/a 

Area of bed(s) (acres): Click to enter text. 

Depth of bed(s) (feet): Click to enter text. 

Void ratio of soil in the beds: Click to enter text. 

Storage volume within the beds (include units): Click to enter text. 

Description of any lining to protect groundwater: Click to enter text. 

b. Attach a certification by a licensed Texas professional engineer that the liner meets TCEQ 
requirements. Attachment: Click to enter text. 

c. Attach a separate engineering report with water balance, storage volume calculations, and 
description of the liner. Attachment: Click to enter text. 

Item 5.  Overland Flow (Instructions, Page 74) 

a. Provide the following information on the overland flow:  

Area used for application (acres): n/a 

Slopes for application area (percent): Click to enter text. 

Design application rate (gpm/foot of slope width): Click to enter text. 

Slope length (feet): Click to enter text. 

Design BOD5 loading rate (lbs BOD5/acre/day): Click to enter text. 

Design application frequency (hours/day): Click to enter text. 

Design application frequency (days/week): Click to enter text. 

b. Attach a separate engineering report with the method of application and design 
requirements according to 30 TAC § 217.212. Attachment: Click to enter text.



TCEQ-10053 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Permit Application Technical Report Page 43 of 83 

INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATER PERMIT APPLICATION 
WORKSHEET 3.2: SUBSURFACE IRRIGATION (NON-DRIP) 

This worksheet is required for all applications for a permit to disposal of wastewater by 
subsurface land application. 

☐   Check the box to confirm the Class V Injection Well Inventory/Authorization Form 
(Worksheet 9.0) has been submitted to the TCEQ UIC Permits Team as directed. 

Item 1. Edwards Aquifer (Instructions, Page 75) 
a. The subsurface system is/will be located on the Edwards Aquifer Recharge Zone, as 

mapped by TCEQ?   

☐   Yes ☐   No 

b. The subsurface system is/will be located on the Edwards Aquifer Transition Zone, as 
mapped by TCEQ?   

☐   Yes ☐   No 

If yes to Item 1.a or 1.b, the subsurface system may be prohibited by 30 TAC § 213.8. Contact 
the Water Quality Assessment Section at (512) 239-4671 for a preapplication meeting. 

Item 2. Subsurface Application (Instructions, Page 75) 
a. Check the box next to the type of subsurface land disposal system requested: 

☐   Conventional drainfield, beds, or trenches 

☐   Low pressure dosing 

☐   Other: Click to enter text. 

b. Provide the following information on the irrigation operations: 

Application area (acres): Click to enter text. 

Area of drainfield (square feet): Click to enter text. 

Application rate (gal/square ft/day): Click to enter text. 

Depth to groundwater (feet): Click to enter text. 

Area of trench (square feet): Click to enter text. 

Dosing duration per area (hours): Click to enter text. 

Number of beds: Click to enter text. 

Dosing amount per area (inches/day): Click to enter text. 

Soil infiltration rate (inches/hour): Click to enter text. 

Storage volume (gallons): Click to enter text. 

Area of bed(s) (square feet): Click to enter text. 

Soil classification: Click to enter text. 

c. Attach a separate engineering report using 30 TAC § 309.20, Subchapter C, Land Disposal 
of Sewage Effluent as guidance, excluding items b(3)(A) and b(3)(B). Include a description of 
the schedule of dosing basin rotation. Attachment: Click to enter text. 






















    



































     
    
    
    
    

    
    
    

 
























    



































     
    
    
    
    

   
    
    

 


























    



































     
    
    
    
  

    
   
    

 
























    



































     
    
    
  
  

    
    
    

 


























    



































     
    
    

 




























 



















   

      



 

   

      



   

   

      

 

   

   

      

 

    

    

   

      

 

    

    

    

   

      

 

    

 
























 



















   

      

 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

   

      

 

    

   

      

 

    

    

   

      

 

    

   

      

 

    

   

      

 

   

    

 






















 



















   

      

 

   

   

      

 

   

   

      

 

   

   

      

 

    

   

      



  

   

      

 

   

   

      

 

 


 

   

      

 

 
























 



















   

      

 

   

   

      

 

   

   

      

 

    

   

      

 

   

   

      

 

   

   

      

 

   

   

      

 

   

   

      

 

 






















 



















   

      

 

   

   

      

 

   

   

      

 

   

   

      

 

   

   

      

 

   



  



  



 
























  



  





    



    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

 






















  



    

  

    



    



   



    

   

    

  

    

 

    



 
























  



    





 
 





















 












 








      

      

      





      

      

       

      

       





      

      

      





      

      

      






      

      

      

      





      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      





 
















 







      

      

      

      





      

      

      

      






      






      





      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      





       

      

      





      

 














 







          





        

        

        






      





      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      





      

     





      





          





        

        






      

 
















 







      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      





      

       





      





          





         

        






      





    

 














 







      

      

      





       





      






      





    





      





       





      






      





    

    





       

 
















 







         






      

      





      

      





      

      

      

      

      

      





      

      

      

      

      

      





          

          





           

           

           

           






 














 







      





      

      

      





      

      

      





          





           

           






      





      

      

      





      

      

      





          





           

           

 
















 








      

      





      

      

      

      

      

      





      

      





      

      





          

          





           

           






      

      

      





      

      

      

      

 














 







      

      

      

      

      





           





        





      

      

      





      

      

      





           

           

           






      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

 
















 







      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

 














 







      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      





      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      





          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          





      

      





           

           

           

 
















 







           

           

           

           

           

           

           






      

      





      

      





          





           






      





      





      

      

      





      

      

      

 














 







      





      





      





          





           

           






      





      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

 
















 







      





          





           






      





      

      

      

      





      

      

      

      

      

      





      

      





      

      





       

       

       

       

 














 







           

           

           

           





      






      

      

      

       





      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      





      

      





 
















 







          

          

          

          





           

           

           






      





      

      





      





          





           






      





     






      

 














 







      





       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       






    





      





      





       

       

       






      





      

      





       

 
















 







        

        






      





      

      

      





      

      





      





        

        

 




 
 

 







 











Prepared By: 

 
    

 

 

3404 Airway Boulevard   ♦   Amarillo, Texas 79118   ♦   Tel 806/353-6123   ♦    Fax 806/353-4132 

 

INDUSTRIAL TECHNICAL 
REPORT 
 

 

Attachments 

 

 

 

Prepared For: 

Seaboard Foods LLC 

Perryton Feedmill 

12025 W State Hwy 15 

Perryton, TX  79070 

 

 

 

April 23, 2024 

   



i                 Technical Report 

Table of Contents 
LIST OF FIGURES .......................................................................................................................... i 
LIST OF TABLES ............................................................................................................................. i 
T.A: FACILITY MAP .................................................................................................................... 1 
T.B: TREATMENT SYSTEM ............................................................................................................ 3 
T.C: WELL INFORMATION & GROUNDWATER REPORT ............................................................ 5 
T.D: SOILS MAP & INFORMATION ............................................................................................12 
T.E: ENGINEERING REPORT – EVAPORATION .........................................................................13 
T.F: SDSs ....................................................................................................................................14 
 

LIST OF FIGURES 
Figure A-1: Facility Map ........................................................................................................... 2 
Figure B-1: Wastewater Process Flow Diagram ..................................................................... 4 
Figure C-1: Well Map ............................................................................................................... 7 
Figure C-2: Geologic Atlas .....................................................................................................11 
 

LIST OF TABLES 
Table C-1: Water Well Information Table for Wells within 1/2-Mile of Applicant's Property 
Boundaries ................................................................................................................................ 8 
 

  



1                 Technical Report 

T.A: FACILITY MAP 
 

 

  



ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS
3404 Airway Boulevard

AMARILLO, TEXAS  79118
TEL (806) 353-6123  FAX (806) 353-4132

Enviro-Ag Engineering, Inc.Seaboard Foods LLC
Perryton Feedmill

Perryton, Ochiltree County, TX

Facility Map
Figure A-1

Date:  Apr 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE HWY 15

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY RD 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT  DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT  DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECEIVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAREHOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPERATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOADOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOILER ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAIN STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTSIDE GRAIN STORAGE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER RUNOFF BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER RUNOFF BASIN (to be closed)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE BLDG

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT  DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOYBEAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAT STORAGE & PRODUCT INGREDIENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLECTION VAULT AND LIFT STATION (SHOWN SCHEMATIC ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISHARGE PIPE WITH CONCRETE SLOPE PROTECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVAPORATION POND #1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF BERM

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF BERM

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOADOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXP DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXP DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVAPORATION POND #2

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISHARGE PIPE WITH CONCRETE SLOPE PROTECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FARMLAND-PIVOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER RUNOFF BASIN (to be closed)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
120'

AutoCAD SHX Text
120'

AutoCAD SHX Text
240'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENVIRO-AG

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING, INC.



3                 Technical Report 

T.B: TREATMENT SYSTEM 
The existing treatment system is described in the attached design report. No changes to 
the treatment system are proposed as part of this renewal.  

Figure B-1 is a schematic diagram of the water and wastewater flows. 

 

  



Enviro-Ag Engineering, Inc.

TEL (806) 353-6123  FAX (806) 353-4132
AMARILLO, TEXAS  79118

3404 Airway Boulevard
ENGINEERING CONSULTANTSWastewater Process Flow Diagram

Figure B-1
Seaboard Foods LLC - Perryton Feedmill

Perryton
Ochiltree County, TX

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENVIRO-AG

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seaboard Foods LLC - Perryton Feedmill -  Wastewater Generation Water Balance & Process Flow Diagram

AutoCAD SHX Text
Water Well for Prepared Feed Process 644,600 gal (water) a week

AutoCAD SHX Text
Boilers for Feed Preparation 580,140 gal (water) per 11,000 ton prepared feed per week

AutoCAD SHX Text
Steam Used in Feed Preparation at 4% Water Content 556,934 gal (water) per 11,000 tons prepared feed per week

AutoCAD SHX Text
Boiler Blowdown at 10% Rate Based on 10 Cycles 55,693 gal per week (wastewater generated)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Water Softening Systems at 5% Regeneration Rate 64,460 gal (wastewater generated) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Evaporation Pond 1 120,153 gal per week (wastewater) or 24,000 gal per day

AutoCAD SHX Text
Prepared Feed per Week (tons)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Water Usage per Week (gallons)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Steam Used in Feed per Week (gallons)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Boiler Blowdown per Week (gallons)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Water Softener Discharge per Week (gallons)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Total Discharge to Evap Ponds per Week (gallons)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Total (Design) Discharge to Evap Ponds (gallons per day)

AutoCAD SHX Text
11,000

AutoCAD SHX Text
644,600

AutoCAD SHX Text
556,934

AutoCAD SHX Text
55,693

AutoCAD SHX Text
64,460

AutoCAD SHX Text
120,153

AutoCAD SHX Text
24,000

AutoCAD SHX Text
Total ~ 120,153



5                 Technical Report 

T.C: WELL INFORMATION & GROUNDWATER REPORT 
Figure C-1, Well Map is attached as required. There are no springs, seeps, faults or 
sinkholes onsite or within 500 feet of the property. The numbered wells correlate to the 
wells shown in the Well and Map Information Table. Available logs and/or plugging 
reports are included at the end of this section. No new wells have been drilled since the 
last TCEQ submittal.  Data sources are discussed below. 

North Plains Groundwater Conservation District Records 
Numerous wells were identified by the district as being located on and within 1 mile of 
the property. Should an abandoned penetration be encountered anywhere on the 
property at any time, the penetration will be marked, reported to the district, inspected 
and properly sealed to avoid a potential impact to the underlying aquifer. 

TWDB Water Information Integration & Dissemination (WIID) 
The TWDB WIID online database was reviewed for artificial penetrations. The database 
revealed several water wells registered with the TWDB as being located on and around 
the subject property. Any WIID well found to be mapped incorrectly, either upon review 
of the well log, or by onsite visual inspection, is shown in the correct location in Figure C-
1. 

Railroad Commission Records 
A search of the Railroad Commission (RRC) database files was performed.  Numerous 
existing penetrations for oil and gas were identified on the subject properties.  RRC 
database information is included as an attachment to this document. Per TCEQ 
Recharge Feature Guidance Document RG-433, oil and gas wells have protective 
measures in place required by the RRC and TCEQ Surface Casing Team.  The oil and gas 
operator must cement the outer casing that will protect the fresh water above the 
hydrocarbon production interval.  A map of the well locations is included in the 
supporting documentation. 

USDA Natural Resource Conservation Service 
The historical NRCS Soil Survey of Ochiltree County (1973) was reviewed for locations of 
wells and surface water features. No features are survey shows wells and several areas of 
Randall clay present on the subject properties. 

Other Artificial Features 
Other man-made features, such as stormwater detention basins and an existing 
evaporation wastewater pond, exist on the subject property. All evaporation ponds are 
or will be lined in accordance with TCEQ rules. This application is for total evaporation. 

Current Landowner 
A Seaboard Foods representative was contacted regarding the presence and status of 
any existing wells on the property. Based on a site inspection, the representative 
confirmed the locations of the active and known capped or plugged water wells. 



6                 Technical Report 

On-Site Inspection 
The property and off-site areas were inspected both on the ground and by historical 
mapping. Only those off-site areas visible from public right-of-way areas were reviewed 
during site reconnaissance. All visible water wells (irrigation, domestic/stock) were 
documented during the on-site inspection. No public water supply wells are located 
within 500 feet of the property boundary. 

All well data listed in Table C-1 is based on information received from the water district, 
TCEQ and TWDB files, on-site inspection, and interviews of persons knowledgeable of the 
property. The well identification number corresponds to the map labels shown in Figure 
C-1, and the District/State ID corresponds to the number found on well logs, as 
applicable. 

References 
North Plains Groundwater Conservation District. Dumas, Texas, Interactive Map and Records 

Search, March & April 2024, from https://map.northplainsgcd.org/# 
TCEQ and Texas Water Development Board, Files Search, April 2024. 
Texas Water Development Board. Water Data Interactive, Retrieved April 2024, from 

https://www3.twdb.texas.gov/apps/waterdatainteractive/groundwaterdataviewer 
USDA NRCS, Soil Survey of Ochiltree County, Texas, 1973.  

https://map.northplainsgcd.org/
https://www3.twdb.texas.gov/apps/waterdatainteractive/groundwaterdataviewer


Enviro-Ag Engineering, Inc.

TEL (806) 353-6123  FAX (806) 353-4132
AMARILLO, TEXAS  79118

3404 Airway Boulevard
ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS

Seaboard Foods LLC
Perryton Feedmill

Perryton, Ochiltree County, TX

Well Map
Figure C-1

Date:  Apr. 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEEDMILL  BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-MILE RADIUS FROM FEEDMILL BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENVIRO-AG

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND: : Denotes Water Well  Denotes Oil/Gas Well  Denotes Plugged Oil/Gas Well  Denotes Feedmill & Evaporation Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text
Source:	USDA-NRCS.  Geospatial Data Gateway.  Available at: :	USDA-NRCS.  Geospatial Data Gateway.  Available at: USDA-NRCS.  Geospatial Data Gateway.  Available at: http://datagateway.nrcs.usda.gov/.  2020 National Ag. Imagery Program Mosiac - Accessed 11/2020.



Table C-1:  Water Well Information Table for Wells within 1/2-Mile of Applicant's Property Boundaries

Well ID Well Use Producing? Open, Cased, or Plugged? Proposed Best Management Practice
OC-1124 Industrial In Use Cased
OC-3987 Domestic Not in Use Cased to be Plugged
OC-0294 Irrigation Appears to be in use Cased
- Domestic Appears to be in use Unknown
OC-0459 Livestock Appears to be in use Cased
OC-6985 Irrigation Appears to be in use Cased
OC-0816 Irrigation Appears to be in use Cased
OC-11102 Irrigation Appears to be in use Cased
OC-0860 Irrigation NPWD notes to be plugged Plugged
OC-9973 Irrigation Appears to be in use Cased
OC-1074 Irrigation Appears to be in use Cased
OC-7826 Rig Supply Appears to be in use Unknown

Note:  Well ID numbers are taken from North Plains Groundwater Conservation District Data.  



North Plains GCD Map

NPWD Map-South

Created: April 23rd 2024, 5:28pm

3,000 ft



North Plains GCD Map

NPWD Map-North

Created: April 23rd 2024, 5:27pm

3,000 ft



North Plains GCD Map

NPWD Map-North

Created: April 23rd 2024, 5:27pm

Plugged Capped

Cancelled Registered

District Section Block Survey TWDB Drillers Reports

TWDB Groundwater Wells (Water Quality) TWDB Plugging Reports

























Esri, HERE, Garmin, INCREMENT P, NGA, USGS

April 24, 2024
0 0.25 0.50.13 mi

0 0.4 0.80.2 km

1:18,056



Public GIS Viewer Legend
 

  Page 1 of 3 

Well Number

Well Locations

Permitted Location

Dry Hole

Oil

Gas

Oil / Gas

Plugged Oil

Plugged Gas

Canceled / Abandoned Location

Plugged Oil / Gas

Injection / Disposal

Core Test

Sulfur Test

Storage from Oil

Storage from Gas

Shut-In Oil

Shut-In Gas

Injection / Disposal from Oil

Injection / Disposal from Gas

Injection / Disposal from Oil / Gas

Geothermal

Brine Mining

Water Supply

Water Supply from Oil

Water Supply from Gas

Water Supply from Oil / Gas

Observation

Observation from Oil

Observation from Gas

Observation from Oil / Gas

Storage

Service

Service from Oil

Service from Gas

Service from Oil / Gas

Storage from Oil / Gas

Injection / Disposal from Storage

Injection / Disposal from Storage / 
Oil

Injection / Disposal from Storage / 
Gas 

Injection / Disposal from Storage / 
Oil / Gas 

Observation from Storage

Observation from Storage / Oil

Observation from Storage / Gas

Observation from Storage / Oil / 
Gas

Service from Storage

Service from Storage / Oil

Service from Storage / Gas

Service from Storage / Oil / Gas

Plugged Storage

Plugged Storage / Oil

Public GIS Viewer Legend
 

  Page 2 of 3 

Plugged Storage / Gas

Plugged Storage Oil / Gas

Brine Mining

Brine Mining / Oil

Brine Mining / Gas 

Brine Mining / Oil / Gas 

Injection / Disposal from Brine 
Mining

Injection / Disposal from Brine 
Mining / Oil

Injection / Disposal from Brine 
Mining / Gas

Injection / Disposal from Brine 
Mining / Oil / Gas

Observation from Brine Mining

Observation from Brine Mining / 
Oil

Observation from Brine Mining / 
Gas

Observation from Brine Mining / 
Oil / Gas

Service from Brine Mining

Service from Brine Mining / Oil

Service from Brine Mining / Gas

Service from Brine Mining / Oil / 
Gas

Plugged Brine Mining

Plugged Brine Mining / Oil

Plugged Brine Mining / Gas

Plugged Brine Mining / Oil / Gas

Storage / Brine Mining

Storage / Brine Mining / Oil

Storage / Brine Mining / Gas

Storage / Brine Mining / Oil / Gas

Injection / Disposal from Storage / 
Brine Mining

Injection / Disposal from Storage / 
Brine Mining / Oil

Injection / Disposal from Storage / 
Brine Mining / Gas

Injection / Disposal from Storage / 
Brine Mining / Oil / Gas

Observation from Storage / Brine 
Mining

Observation from Storage / Brine 
Mining / Oil

Observation from Storage / Brine 
Mining / Gas

Observation from Storage / Brine 
Mining / Oil / Gas

Plugged Storage / Brine Mining

Plugged Storage / Brine Mining / 
Oil

Plugged Storage / Brine Mining / 
Gas

Plugged Storage / Brine Mining / 
Oil / Gas

Orphan Wells

Commercial Disposal

Injection/Disposal

HCTS Deeper than 15,000 ft.

Public GIS Viewer Legend
 

  Page 3 of 3 

High Cost Tight Sands

EOR H13 Oil Wells

Well Logs

Horiz/Dir Surface Locations

Horizontal Well

Directional Well

Horizontal/Directional Lines

LPGAS Sites

QPipelines

Pipelines

Bay Tracts

Offshore Areas

Offshore Tracts

Water Lines

Subdivisions

Railroads

Surveys

Quads

Alert Areas

Water

City Limits

Counties

Operator Cleanup Program Sites

Active

Closed

Voluntary Cleanup Program Sites

VCP, Accepted

VCP, Closed

Brownfield Response Program Sites

Brownfield, Accepted

Brownfield, Closed

Commercial Waste Disposal Sites &
Discharge Permits

Commercial Waste Disposal 

Discharge Permits

Oil and Gas Districts

AED Districts

Pipeline Safety Regions

 

 



9                 Technical Report 

Groundwater Technical Report 
The purpose of this section is to provide information on the geologic features and 
groundwater resources in the area of the Perryton Feedmill property and to identify Best 
Management Practices (BMP)s that will be used to protect these resources. 

Geomorphologic/Geologic Features 
The Pullman-Randall association in this area of Ochiltree County are immediately 
underlain by the Blackwater Draw Formation.  The Blackwater Draw Formation consists of 
quartz sand, fine to medium grained, silty, calcareous, caliche nodules with distinct soil 
profile locally and in Texas mostly Illinoian.  The Ogallala Formation consists of sand, silt, 
clay, gravel and caliche.   

A limited geotechnical investigation was performed utilizing available information 
through existing well logs mentioned previously and utilizing a USDA-NRCS Web Soil Survey 
of the property.  Additionally, a core sample of the soil was taken in the vicinity of the 
existing evaporation pond cell location and tested for permeability.  As a result of this 
investigation, it was found that a significant amount of clay soil exists on-site and could 
be available for use in the construction of the soil liner.   

Existing well log OC-1124 (dated 12-16-1997) reveals that the depth to groundwater is 
approximately 321 feet.  The Web Soil Survey for the immediate area reveals that the 
existing predominant soil is a Sherm clay loam at ground surface to a depth of at least 80 
inches.  The hydrologic soil group for the area is C.   

Outcrops/Stream Interception 
Recharge to the Ogallala aquifer can occur by the infiltration of precipitation on an 
outcrop or stream interception (Knowles et al., 1984). No outcrops or stream interceptions 
are located on the subject property.  

Topographic Depressions 
The USGS Quadrangle Map does not identify the presence of topographic depressions.  

Excessive Slopes 
No slopes of greater than 8 percent are present in the areas of the evaporation ponds. 

Other Large-Scale Conduits 
No faults, fractured sediments, caves, sinkholes, solution cavities, vugs or concentrated 
or extensive animal burrowing were observed during an on-site visit, nor were any 
identified on the geologic atlas, Soil Surveys or USGS maps. 

Aquifer 
The Ogallala aquifer, the major water-bearing unit in the High Plains of Texas, provides 
water to all or parts of 46 counties. Vertical hydrologic communication also occurs 
between the Ogallala and the underlying Cretaceous, Jurassic, and Triassic formations 
in many areas and between the overlying Quaternary Blackwater Draw Formation where 
present.  



10                 Technical Report 

The Blackwater Draw Formation consists of a thin sheet-like body of clayey sand and silt 
that contains a number of buried soil horizons.  The sediments of the Blackwater Draw 
Formation texturally grade from a sandy loam in the southwest portion of the northern 
High Plains to mostly a clay loam in the southern Texas Panhandle.  

The Ogallala is composed primarily of sand, gravel, clay, and silt deposited during the 
Tertiary Period. Ground water, under water-table conditions, moves slowly through the 
Ogallala Formation in a southeastward direction toward the caprock edge or eastern 
escarpment of the High Plains. The saturated thickness of the aquifer is generally greater 
in the northern part of the region and thinner in the southern part where the formation 
overlaps Cretaceous rocks. 

Recharge to the Ogallala occurs principally by infiltration of precipitation on the surface 
and, to a lesser extent, by upward leakage from underlying formations. Only about one 
inch of the precipitation actually reaches the water table annually because rainfall in 
minimal, the evaporation rate is high, and the infiltration rate is slow. The highest recharge 
infiltration rates occur in areas overlain by sandy soils and in playa-lake basins (Ashworth 
and Hopkins, 1995). 

Water Wells 
All water wells within a 1/2-mile radius of the property are identified in the previous 
section, and all available well logs are attached. 

Best Management Practices 
The existing and proposed irrigation systems are designed to irrigate cropland and hay 
land areas at designed application rates that will not exceed the infiltration rate of the 
soil. Due to the low application rates, no pooling, ponding or tailwater is anticipated in 
sprinkler irrigated areas. Surface irrigation systems will be designed to minimize the 
creation of tailwater. Any tailwater from these fields will be contained within the field 
border. All irrigation and evaporation ponds are and will be properly lined in accordance 
with TCEQ rules.  

References 
Ashworth and Hopkins, November 1995. Aquifers of Texas. Report 345, Texas Water Development 

Board. 
Bureau of Economic Geology, The University of Texas at Austin, Geologic Atlas of Texas – 

Perryton Sheet.  Online version retrieved December 2020, 
https://txpub.usgs.gov/txgeology/ 

Knowles, T., Nordstrom, P., Klemt, W. B., Report 288, “Evaluating the Ground Water Resources of 
the High Plains of Texas”. Texas Department of Water Resources, Volume 1, May 1984. 

USDA NRCS, Soil Survey of Ochiltree County, Texas, 1973. 
USDA NRCS, Web Soil Survey, Retrieved April 2024. http://websoilsurvey.nrcs.usda.gov/app/ 

 

 

  

https://txpub.usgs.gov/txgeology/
http://websoilsurvey.nrcs.usda.gov/app/


Enviro-Ag Engineering, Inc.

TEL (806) 353-6123  FAX (806) 353-4132
AMARILLO, TEXAS  79118

3404 Airway Blvd.
ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS

Seaboard Foods LLC
Perryton Feedmill

Ochiltree County, TX

Geologic Atlas of Texas
Figure C-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENVIRO-AG

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UNo Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text
Legend:  :  Qbd- Quaternary Blackwater Draw Formation    

AutoCAD SHX Text
Source: Geologic Atlas of Texas, Perryton Sheet, 1970.: Geologic Atlas of Texas, Perryton Sheet, 1970.



12                 Technical Report 

T.D: SOILS MAP & INFORMATION 
   



Soil Map—Ochiltree County, Texas

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

4/23/2024
Page 1 of 3

40
22

40
0

40
22

60
0

40
22

80
0

40
23

00
0

40
23

20
0

40
23

40
0

40
23

60
0

40
23

80
0

40
24

00
0

40
24

20
0

40
24

40
0

40
24

60
0

40
22

40
0

40
22

60
0

40
22

80
0

40
23

00
0

40
23

20
0

40
23

40
0

40
23

60
0

40
23

80
0

40
24

00
0

40
24

20
0

40
24

40
0

40
24

60
0

326900 327100 327300 327500 327700 327900 328100 328300 328500

326900 327100 327300 327500 327700 327900 328100 328300 328500

36°  21' 5'' N
10

0°
  5

5'
 4

9'
' W

36°  21' 5'' N

10
0°

  5
4'

 3
7'
' W

36°  19' 48'' N

10
0°

  5
5'

 4
9'
' W

36°  19' 48'' N

10
0°

  5
4'

 3
7'
' W

N

Map projection: Web Mercator   Corner coordinates: WGS84   Edge tics: UTM Zone 14N WGS84
0 500 1000 2000 3000

Feet
0 150 300 600 900

Meters
Map Scale: 1:11,600 if printed on A portrait (8.5" x 11") sheet.



MAP LEGEND MAP INFORMATION

Area of Interest (AOI)
Area of Interest (AOI)

Soils
Soil Map Unit Polygons

Soil Map Unit Lines

Soil Map Unit Points

Special Point Features
Blowout

Borrow Pit

Clay Spot

Closed Depression

Gravel Pit

Gravelly Spot

Landfill

Lava Flow

Marsh or swamp

Mine or Quarry

Miscellaneous Water

Perennial Water

Rock Outcrop

Saline Spot

Sandy Spot

Severely Eroded Spot

Sinkhole

Slide or Slip

Sodic Spot

Spoil Area

Stony Spot

Very Stony Spot

Wet Spot

Other

Special Line Features

Water Features
Streams and Canals

Transportation
Rails

Interstate Highways

US Routes

Major Roads

Local Roads

Background
Aerial Photography

The soil surveys that comprise your AOI were mapped at 
1:20,000.

Please rely on the bar scale on each map sheet for map 
measurements.

Source of Map: Natural Resources Conservation Service
Web Soil Survey URL: 
Coordinate System: Web Mercator (EPSG:3857)

Maps from the Web Soil Survey are based on the Web Mercator 
projection, which preserves direction and shape but distorts 
distance and area. A projection that preserves area, such as the 
Albers equal-area conic projection, should be used if more 
accurate calculations of distance or area are required.

This product is generated from the USDA-NRCS certified data as 
of the version date(s) listed below.

Soil Survey Area: Ochiltree County, Texas
Survey Area Data: Version 19, Sep 5, 2023

Soil map units are labeled (as space allows) for map scales 
1:50,000 or larger.

Date(s) aerial images were photographed: Aug 10, 2022—Sep 
8, 2022

The orthophoto or other base map on which the soil lines were 
compiled and digitized probably differs from the background 
imagery displayed on these maps. As a result, some minor 
shifting of map unit boundaries may be evident.

Soil Map—Ochiltree County, Texas

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

4/23/2024
Page 2 of 3



Map Unit Legend

Map Unit Symbol Map Unit Name Acres in AOI Percent of AOI

PuA Sherm clay loam, 0 to 1 
percent slopes

331.2 100.0%

Totals for Area of Interest 331.2 100.0%

Soil Map—Ochiltree County, Texas

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

4/23/2024
Page 3 of 3



13                 Technical Report 

T.E: ENGINEERING REPORT – EVAPORATION 
  





1                 Engineering Report 
Seaboard Foods-Perryton Feedmill 

 

Executive Summary 
Seaboard Foods LLC (Seaboard) proposes the construction of a second evaporation 
pond based on the feedmill expansion.  The second evaporation pond cell will be utilized 
for the disposal of wastewater generated from the additional boiler blowdown and water 
softener regeneration.  The pond will allow the wastewater to be disposed of through 
evaporation.  The feedmill is located at 12025 West State Highway 15 near Perryton, Texas, 
being the northeast corner of the intersection of State Highway 15 and County Road 9 in 
Ochiltree County.  Seaboard seeks the permittance of a max daily flow of 24,000 GPD.  
The feedmill utilizes two boilers to produce steam to flake grains necessary for feed rations 
for Seaboard’s surrounding swine facilities.  The boiler blowdown and water softener 
backwash wastewater will first gravity drain and collect at an underground sump basin 
and then pumped to the evaporation ponds where the wastewater will be discharged.  
The feedmill generally operates Monday through Saturday from 5:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m., 
where there may be occasions when operations will be longer and up to 24 hours a day.  
The existing evaporation pond cell is a 3-foot constructed clay soil lined pond at 1.29 
acres in area and 4.91 acre-feet in volume capacity.  The design proposed for the new 
evaporation pond cell is a 3-foot constructed clay soil lined pond being 4 acres in area 
and 20 acre-feet in volume capacity.  The following report describes in better detail the 
process of wastewater generation and design of the evaporation pond cell. 

Wastewater Generation Process 
Seaboard’s Perryton Feedmill generates wastewater from boiler blowdown and water 
softener backwash.  The boilers are used to produce steam to flake grains necessary feed 
preparation.  Typically, the steam used in the feed preparation occurs at a rate of 4% 
water content held in the feed itself.  Consequently, the gallons of water required for the 
operation are based on 11,000 tons of prepared feed per week. Water softening 
equipment utilizing a deionizing system is currently used to protect the boiler system from 
hard water. As a result, the water softening system will discharge water on a 
backwash/regeneration cycle. The boiler blowdown occurs at a 10% rate. As a result, the 
total wastewater generated from the boiler blowdown and water softener backwash is 
24,000 gallons per day (GPD).  Figure B-1 of the Industrial Technical Report illustrates the 
process flow diagram for the wastewater generation components and also provides 
detailed water balance data for the wastewater generated.  Additionally, the boiler 
utilizes chemical additives for protection of equipment.  These chemical additives can 
be found in Attachment T.F of the Industrial Technical Report. 

As shown on Figure B-1 of the Industrial Technical Report, Seaboard seeks the 
permittance of a max daily flow of 24,000 GPD and average daily flow of 11,000 GPD to 
be discharged to the newly proposed and existing evaporation pond cells.  Other 
sources of water entering the proposed evaporation pond will be rainfall directly over 
the pond.  Additionally, a small area drain exists outside the boiler room building and 



2                 Engineering Report 
Seaboard Foods-Perryton Feedmill 

captures less than 1,000 square feet of paved area during rainfall events.  All other rainfall 
drainage will be directed away from the pond.   

Evaporation Pond Design 
The existing proposed evaporation pond for Seaboard’s Perryton Feedmill is single pond 
cell (Pond 1) and was designed per TCEQ’s required critical condition (worst case) for 
storage capacity as well as evaluated for the adequacy of the surface area to 
evaporate all wastewater volume under average rainfall conditions.  The existing pond 
will be expanded and with an additional cell.  Wastewater will be directed via pipe to 
either the existing Evaporation Pond #1 or the new Evaporation Pond #2.  These structures 
will act in series and provide overall evaporative storage.   

The evaporation ponds are sized to provide adequate storage volume to satisfy a one-
year worst case condition being the lowest net annual evaporation from the past 25 
years of climatological data.  The source where these values were taken from was the 
Texas Water Development Board, Quadrangle 107 for the period of record from 1998 
through 2022.  In addition to satisfying the critical condition storage capacity, the pond 
was sized to provide enough additional capacity for a 25-year/24-hour storm event.  The 
required storage capacity for the pond based on the critical condition evaluation is 24 
ac-ft.  The existing pond provides 4.91 ac-ft of storage volume with two feet of freeboard 
provided.  The new pond design provides an additional 20 ac-ft of storage volume with 
two feet of freeboard.  The ponds were then evaluated for the adequacy of the surface 
area to evaporate all wastewater on a yearly basis under average rainfall conditions.  
The surface area was determined adequate when the required storage volume over a 
year period was equal to or less than zero.  The total design provides approximately 6 
acres of evaporative surface area and results in a net storage volume of less than zero.  
Tables 1 and 2 show the critical and average condition evaluations.    

The new evaporation pond for Seaboard’s Perryton Feedmill will be a 3-foot constructed 
clay soil lined pond.  Refer to the Evaporation Pond Construction Plans and specifications 
included for the construction of Pond 2 and 3-foot clay soil liner.   

The evaporation ponds are located within the watershed area of an existing playa lake 
(Unclassified Segment 0100) located northeast of the Seaboard Foods LLC property.  The 
existing and proposed ponds are located within the 100-year flood plain of the playa 
lake as determined from the USGS 7.5-Minute Series Quadrangle Map for Farnsworth, TX.  
Additionally, the proposed pond location was reviewed with existing wetland locations 
available through the U.S. F&W National Wetlands Inventory.  As a result, no wetlands 
exist on the property and the immediate area.   

Geotechnical Investigation 
A limited geotechnical investigation was performed utilizing available information 
through existing well logs, utilizing a USDA-NRCS Web Soil Survey and core samples 
collected as part of the construction of Evaporation Pond #1.  As a result of this 
investigation, it was found that a significant amount of clay soil exists on-site and could 
be available for use in the construction of the soil liner in Evaporation Pond #2.   



3                 Engineering Report 
Seaboard Foods-Perryton Feedmill 

Initial core sample collected on 2-8-2017 and tested for permeability revealed a 
hydraulic conductivity of 3.4 x 10-8  cm/sec.  Existing well log OC-1124 (dated 12-16-1997) 
reveals that the depth to groundwater is approximately 321 feet.  The Web Soil Survey for 
the immediate area reveals that the existing predominant soil is a Sherm clay loam at 
ground surface to a depth of at least 80 inches.  The hydrologic soil group for the area is 
C.  All information can be found in Attachment T.C & T.D of the Industrial Technical 
Report. 

 

 

 

 

 



Effluent Flow 0.024 MGD
Pond Surface Acres 3.952 acres (effective)
Pond Storage Volume 24.93 acre-feet
Pond Surface Area 6.08 acres (overall)

Evap Storage
Flow to Ponds Evap Rate From Ponds Precip Rate Precip to Pond Requirements

Month # of Days (acre-feet) (feet) (acre-feet) (feet) (acre-feet) (acre-feet)
January 31 2.28 0.59 2.34 0.04 0.27 0.21
February 28 2.06 0.18 0.69 0.05 0.31 1.68

March 31 2.28 0.33 1.28 0.06 0.39 1.38
April 30 2.21 0.36 1.44 0.35 2.11 2.89
May 31 2.28 0.37 1.46 0.67 4.08 4.91
June 30 2.21 0.44 1.74 0.31 1.89 2.36
July 31 2.28 0.53 2.09 0.32 1.92 2.10

August 31 2.28 0.59 2.33 0.22 1.35 1.31
September 30 2.21 0.58 2.31 0.06 0.34 0.25

October 31 2.28 0.29 1.14 0.33 2.02 3.16
November 30 2.21 0.32 1.25 0.16 0.96 1.92
December 31 2.28 0.18 0.72 0.17 1.03 2.60

24.76

through 2022.   Downloaded from https://waterdatafortexas.org/lake-evaporation-rainfall on 4/10/24.
*Texas Water Development Board Lake Evaporation and Precipitation data for Quadrangle 107 for the period of record 1998

critical condition evaluation and average condition evaluation.

Pond Storage Volume (the pond could contain all wastewater discharged when evaporation is lowest).

The following is a summary of calculations performed in determining the Total Storage Necessary:

Table 1. Evaporation Ponds #1 & 2 - Critical Condition Evaluation

Total Storage Necessary

30 Texas Administrative Code (TAC), Chapter 309, Subchapter C outlines procedures used to determine appropriate 
design for irrigation systems at domestic wastewater treatment plants.  Appropriate evaporation pond sizing is determined 
based upon these procedures using best professional judgement (BPJ).  These procedures consist of two evaluations:  

The critical condition evaluation is designed to evaluate the storage capacity of the pond(s) under a "worst case scenario."  
The worst case scenario is defined as the 25 year lowest net evaporation* assuming daily flow to the pond at the permitted   
rate. The pond's storage capacity is considered adequate when the Total Storage Necessary is less than or equal to the 



conditions. 

The following is a summary of calculations performed in determining the Total Storage Necessary:

0.024 MGD
3.952 acres (effective)
24.93 acre-feet

Pond Surface Acres 6.08 acres (overall)
Evap  Storage

Flow to Ponds Evap Rate From Ponds Precip Rate Precip to Pond Requirements
Month # of Days (acre-feet) (feet) (acre-feet) (feet) (acre-feet) (acre-feet)
January 31 2.28 0.24 0.96 0.05 0.32 1.65
February 28 2.06 0.25 1.01 0.05 0.31 1.37

March 31 2.28 0.44 1.73 0.13 0.81 1.37
April 30 2.21 0.54 2.12 0.15 0.90 0.99
May 31 2.28 0.54 2.14 0.22 1.35 1.49
June 30 2.21 0.74 2.93 0.26 1.59 0.87
July 31 2.28 0.79 3.12 0.21 1.28 0.45

August 31 2.28 0.70 2.77 0.23 1.43 0.94
September 30 2.21 0.58 2.29 0.11 0.69 0.61

October 31 2.28 0.44 1.74 0.19 1.15 1.69
November 30 2.21 0.34 1.35 0.06 0.35 1.21
December 31 2.28 0.25 1.00 0.07 0.40 1.69

14.32

through 2022.   Downloaded from https://waterdatafortexas.org/lake-evaporation-rainfall on 4/10/24.

Pond Surface Acres
Effluent Flow 

Total Storage Necessary

*Texas Water Development Board Lake Evaporation and Precipitation data for Quadrangle 107 for the period of record 1998

Table 2. Evaporation Ponds #1 & 2 - Average Condition Evaluation

The pond(s) must have enough surface area to evaporate all the flow to the pond(s) under average rainfall conditions. The pond
is considered adequately sized when the Total Storage Necessary is less than or equal to zero. If this value is greater than zero,
the pond’s surface must be increased or the effluent flow reduced to ensure that no accumulation occurs during average 

Pond Storage Volume



Prepared By: 

 
    

 

 

3404 Airway Boulevard   ♦   Amarillo, Texas 79118   ♦   Tel 806/353-6123   ♦    Fax 806/353-4132 

 

CONSTRUCTION & LINER 
SPECIFICATIONS 
 

 

 

 

Perryton Feedmill 

 

 

Prepared For: 

Seaboard Foods LLC 

Perryton Feedmill 

12025 W State Hwy 15 

Perryton, TX  79070 

 

 

 

April 25, 2024 

   



1                 Seaboard Foods LLC 
Perryton Feedmill 

Construction & Liner Specifications -Pond #2 

The following specifications should be followed in the construction of evaporation pond 
#2 including the compacted clay liner at Seaboard Foods LLC – Perryton Feedmill.  Any 
proposed changes to these specifications must be approved by the Engineer prior to 
implementation. 

1.0 Purpose 
The purpose of these specifications is to provide specifications for the pond construction 
and proper installation of a clay liner. 

2.0 Introduction 
Seaboard Foods LLC – Perryton Feedmill is an existing facility located at 12025 W State 
Hwy 15 near Perryton, Texas being the northeast corner of the intersection of State Hwy 
15 and County Rd 9.  Based on the State rules for industrial wastewater ponds, the clay 
liner shall be constructed according to the specifications discussed herein.  

3.0 Site Preparation 
The construction site shall be cleared of any rocks, brush, trees, boulders, sod, crop roots 
or rubbish.  After stripping, the foundation area shall be prepared to assure a bond with 
the liner material by removing loose, dry material, scarifying, discing, adjusting moisture 
content and compacting as necessary. 

4.0 Embankment Construction 
The following minimum standards for the construction of pond embankments, where the 
water impounded against the embankment at the spillway elevation is three feet or 
greater from original ground shall be considered to be designed with an embankment.  
Embankment construction specifications are as follows: 

a) Soils used shall be free of foreign material such as trash, brush or fallen trees 
b) The embankment shall be construction in 6-inch thick lifts and compacted to 95% 

of Standard Proctor at +3% to -1% of optimum moisture content.  There is a 
minimum of two moisture and compaction tests required per lift.  

c) Upon completion, all embankment walls shall be stabilized to prevent erosion or 
deterioration 

d) Embankment construction must be accompanied by laboratory certified 
compaction tests in accordance with ASTM D698 or equivalent testing standards. 

During embankment construction, the moisture and compaction should be tested for 
every compacted lift using a nuclear moisture-density meter, or equivalent, at a rate of 
approximately three tests per embankment per lift.  All compaction readings shall be 
recorded and properly documented as specified in Part 8 of this document.   

5.0 Liner Material 
It is anticipated that the liner material for the pond will be located within the pond 
excavation area.  As liner excavation takes place, the material shall continue to be field 
inspected for homogeneity by a qualified geotechnical technician.  If unanticipated soil 



2                 Seaboard Foods LLC 
Perryton Feedmill 

Construction & Liner Specifications -Pond #2 

materials are encountered during excavation, these materials shall be field sampled and 
laboratory tested to determine their suitability as liner material.   

Any material which will not meet the hydraulic conductivity criteria will not be used.  If 
sufficient amounts of suitable liner material are not available at this site, the Engineer may 
approve materials from borrow areas, or the addition of soil amendments, such as 
bentonite.  If soil amendments are required, the Engineer shall specify the mixing ratio in 
order to achieve the desired hydraulic conductivity. 

The pond shall be over-excavated to a depth of 30 in below the intended pond floor 
with the first layer being a compacted 6-inch in-situ so that a 36-in thick compacted clay 
liner can be installed and the required final pond dimensions achieved.  If sand or rock is 
encountered, the Engineer may require these areas to be over-excavated and 
additional suitable liner material be placed in these areas. 

6.0 Liner Construction 
The pond shall be excavated so that once the liner has been installed the final dimensions 
are as shown on the plans.  The minimum compacted liner thickness (floor and sidewalls) 
shall be 36 inches.   Proposed Pond #2 shall utilize the first 6-in in-situ soil as the first liner lift.  
This lift shall be scarified, moisture conditioned and recompacted in place per 
specifications described below.   The remaining 5 liner lifts will be stockpiled then placed 
back into the pond per the Engineer’s soil liner specifications.  The final compacted 
thickness of the soil liner will be 36 inches.  

The liner material shall be free of sod, roots, frozen soil, stones over three (3) inches in 
diameter and other objectionable material.  Only materials specified for use as liner 
material are to be used.  The distribution and gradation of materials shall be such that 
there will be no lenses, pockets, streaks or layers of material differing substantially in 
texture or gradation from the preferred material.  The liner sub-grade shall be proof-rolled 
prior to the installation of the compacted clay liner.  

The clay liner shall be constructed using a maximum of six 6-in thick lifts (compacted 
thickness). A sheepsfoot roller or wheel rolling shall be used as the compaction tool 
(minimum of two passes per lift).  The clay shall be compacted to a minimum of 95% of 
Standard Proctor (ASTM D-698) at   -1 to plus of optimum moisture.  When properly 
compacted (95% of maximum dry density at optimum moisture content), the liner shall 
have a hydraulic conductivity of 1.0x10-7 cm/sec or better to meet the TCEQ 
requirements.  

If sufficient amounts of suitable liner material are not available on the site, the Engineer 
may approve materials from borrow areas or the addition of soil amendments, such as 
bentonite.  The Engineer shall specify the mixing ratio in order to achieve the desired 
hydraulic conductivity.  If any area of the pond floor (beneath the liner) must be 
constructed by placing fill material, the fill material should come from stockpiles of the 
candidate liner material defined in these specifications and be placed to meet the 95% 
maximum dry density at the specified moisture content.  Prior to adding this material, the 
native grade should be developed as defined in Section 1.0. 



3                 Seaboard Foods LLC 
Perryton Feedmill 

Construction & Liner Specifications -Pond #2 

7.0 Final Compacted Clay Liner Surface 
The top surface of the final compacted clay liner lift should be constructed using a 
sheepsfoot roller. This procedure should leave the finished surface rough to reduce the 
potential for surface erosion. 

8.0 Liner Evaluation 
During construction of the liner, the moisture and compaction should be tested for every 
compacted lift using a nuclear moisture-density meter, or equivalent, according to the 
schedule in Table 1. 

Table 1: Moisture and Compaction Testing Requirements 

Pond Walls: No. Tests Per Lift 
Floor: No. Tests 
Per Lift  Total Tests/Lift 

Pond #2 8 4 12 

Note:  All density tests shall be evenly distributed throughout the surface area of the pond. 

All compaction/moisture readings shall be recorded and properly documented with the 
following information: 

• project name 
• date 
• test method used 
• site name 
• technician name 
• location of reading 
• percent compaction 
• wet density, pcf 
• dry density, pcf 
• moisture content, % 
• lift number 
• minimum compaction required 
• acceptable moisture limits 
• lab name, report number and standard proctor test results used to obtain field 

measurements 

Any readings that fall below the minimum compaction/moisture requirements shall be 
documented.  When minimum compaction/moisture content requirements are not met, 
the problem area shall be reworked and reevaluated until the compaction requirements 
are met.  All retest information shall be documented.  For each re-worked area, a 
minimum of two passing compaction/moisture tests must be provided. 

In all cases water will be required to bring moisture content of the liner material up to the 
desired level.  The amount of water required should be sufficient to bring the moisture 
level of the mixture to the optimum moisture content.  Immediately after the water is 



4                 Seaboard Foods LLC 
Perryton Feedmill 

Construction & Liner Specifications -Pond #2 

applied, it should be thoroughly mixed with the soil to prevent ponding and enable the 
compaction equipment to operate. 

Once the compacted clay liner has been constructed, the Engineer shall make a final 
inspection and Shelby tube core samples shall be collected by the Engineer or Engineer’s 
Representative from the floor and sidewalls of the waste storage pond as follows and 
delivered to Enviro-Ag Engineering, Inc. for permeability testing: 

 Pond #2:  2 cores from floor, 4 cores from sidewalls   

The thickness of the compacted clay liner shall be determined at the time the cores are 
collected.  The core holes shall be backfilled with a 30% sodium bentonite mixture to 
prevent seepage.  The cores shall be tested for permeability (ASTM D-5084 or approved 
equivalent).   Results of the permeability tests and liner thickness evaluations shall be 
reported to the Engineer in a final report for the pond. 

The following verifications for all pond liner designs must be met: 

Liner thickness:  36" (minimum) 

Coefficient of permeability: 1.0 x 10-7 cm/sec (maximum) 

 

9.0 Final Report 
The following information is required in a report for the pond from the testing laboratory: 

• Liner thickness documentation  
• Moisture/density test readings taken during the installation of each compacted lift 
• Coefficients of permeability from the Shelby tube cores 
• Map showing the locations of test readings and soil cores 

10.0 Pond Construction 
The pond shall be constructed to the lines and grades shown on the plans without 
reference to quantities represented on the plans.  The margin of tolerance is 0.1 ft. 

11.0 Pond Certification 
The finished pond shall be inspected by the Engineer. Based on the inspection and the 
final report from the geotechnical laboratory, the Engineer shall certify that the pond 
meets or exceeds TCEQ requirements for soil liner. 

12.0 Inspections 
Periodic inspections of the pond and liner construction will be performed during the 
construction process.  The Contractor shall contact the Engineer at each of the following 
construction stages: 

• When the over-excavation for the liner is reached for the pond. 
• When the first 6-inch lift of the soil liner is complete. 
• When the final 6-inch lift is complete. 
• If any unanticipated soils/rock is encountered during excavation. 



5                 Seaboard Foods LLC 
Perryton Feedmill 

Construction & Liner Specifications -Pond #2 

The Engineer/Engineer’s Technician will perform inspections of the pond construction 
during the above construction stages.  Other unannounced inspections may take place 
at the discretion of the Engineer.  Any problems or concerns that may result from the 
inspections shall be discussed with the Contractor immediately.  The Engineer shall 
prepare a written record of each inspection that shall include the following: 

• Date & time 
• Weather conditions 
• The reason for the inspection 
• The approximate stage of construction 
• Any details observed during the inspection 
• Any details discussed with the Contractor during the inspection 

13.0 Attachments 
See attached site plan. 

 
 

 

  

 





































F1 F2 F3 F4

F5 F6 F7 F8

NS1 NS2

ES
2

W
S2

W
S1

ES
1

SS1 SS2

151.0

15
1.

0

Scale: N.T.S.

ENVIROTECH
2500 North 11th Street -, Enid, Oklahoma 73701

Phone (580) 234-8780, Fax (580) 237-4302
C.A. #1960 - Expiration Data: 6-30-2016

www.envirotechconsulting.com

Seaboard Perryton Evaporation Pond
 Testing Grid 18334-00

Moisture Density Testing

O c h i l t r e e  C o u n t y ,   T e x a s

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING  &  CONSULTING , INC.



Client:  
Address:  

Soil Information

Project:   Perryton Evaporative Lagoon Proctor:

Project ID:  018334-00 Max Dry Density (pcf):

Troxler ID: 34563  Test Date: 9/7/2018 Optimum Moisture (%):

Troxler Model: 3430

Moist Std:                                                                  553  Density Std: 1999 Proctor:

Moist offset:                                                               N/A Density offset: N/A Max Dry Density (pcf):

Optimum Moisture (%):

Proctor:

Allowable Moisture Range:   Embankment -1/+3, Clay Optimum and Above Max Dry Density (pcf):

Necessary % Proctor:   95% Optimum Moisture (%):

Test No Pr Lift Time Tech
Depth of 

Test 
(inches)

Wet 
Density 

(pcf)

Moisture 
Content (%)

% Proctor 
(calc)

Dry 
Density 
(calc)

P/F

1 Onsite Fill 1 15:30 ZB 6 114.0 19.8% 97.6% 95.2 Pass*

2 Onsite Fill 1 15:40 ZB 6 119.8 21.7% 101.0% 98.4 PASS

3 Onsite Fill 1 15:50 ZB 6 117.8 19.8% 100.9% 98.3 Pass*

4 Onsite Fill 1 16:00 ZB 6 118.9 22.9% 99.2% 96.7 PASS

5 Onsite Fill 1 16:07 ZB 6 120.4 20.2% 102.7% 100.2 Pass*

6 Onsite Fill 1 16:12 ZB 6 120.1 20.4% 102.3% 99.8 Pass*

7 Onsite Fill 1 16:16 ZB 6 116.7 22.8% 97.5% 95.0 PASS

8 Onsite Fill 1 16:20 ZB 6 118.3 22.4% 99.1% 96.7 PASS

Envirotech Engineering & Consulting. Inc Date

Visual Description: Dark Brown Clay

 FIELD NUCLEAR DENSITY TEST (ASTM D-6938)

Seaboard Farms, LLC
2801 Hurliman Road, Guymon, OK 73942

Onsite Fill

97.5

21.8%

Visual Description: Brown Clay

Clay Liner

97.6

19.8%

Grid SS1

Visual Description:

Location or Grid Number

Grid NS1

Grid NS2

Grid ES2

Grid ES1

Grid SS2

Grid WS1

Grid WS2

9/10/2018

* These tests were approved by Tyler Williams, PE with 
Envirotech prior to receiving the plans with the correct moisture 

requirements. All future tests will be held to the appropriate 
moisture requirements.

2500 N. 11th Street  I  Enid, OK  73701
(580) 234-8780  I  Fax (580) 237-4302        



Client:  
Address:  

Soil Information

Project:   Perryton Evaporative Lagoon Proctor:

Project ID:  018334-00 Max Dry Density (pcf):

Troxler ID: 34563  Test Date: 9/10/2018 Optimum Moisture (%):

Troxler Model: 3430

Moist Std:                                                                  585  Density Std: 1981 Proctor:

Moist offset:                                                               N/A Density offset: N/A Max Dry Density (pcf):

Optimum Moisture (%):

Proctor:

Allowable Moisture Range:   Embankment -1/+3, Clay Optimum and Above Max Dry Density (pcf):

Necessary % Proctor:   95% Optimum Moisture (%):

Test No Pr Lift Time Tech
Depth of 

Test 
(inches)

Wet 
Density 

(pcf)

Moisture 
Content (%)

% Proctor 
(calc)

Dry 
Density 
(calc)

P/F

9 Onsite Fill 2 16:10 ZB 12 126.1 21.0% 106.9% 104.2 PASS

10 Onsite Fill 2 16:20 ZB 12 125.2 23.9% 103.6% 101.0 PASS

11 Onsite Fill 2 16:35 ZB 12 122.9 21.2% 104.0% 101.4 PASS

12 Onsite Fill 2 16:55 ZB 12 124.6 21.5% 105.2% 102.6 PASS

13 Onsite Fill 2 17:20 ZB 12 120.9 21.9% 101.7% 99.2 PASS

14 Onsite Fill 2 17:30 ZB 12 126.7 21.3% 107.1% 104.5 PASS

15 Onsite Fill 2 17:40 ZB 12 120.3 22.4% 100.8% 98.3 PASS

16 Onsite Fill 2 17:50 ZB 12 122.8 21.3% 103.8% 101.2 PASS

17 Onsite Fill 3 16:15 ZB 6 127.0 21.1% 107.6% 104.9 PASS

18 Onsite Fill 3 16:25 ZB 6 126.0 22.9% 105.2% 102.5 PASS

19 Onsite Fill 3 16:45 ZB 6 121.0 21.7% 102.0% 99.4 PASS

20 Onsite Fill 3 17:00 ZB 6 124.6 21.7% 105.0% 102.4 PASS

21 Onsite Fill 3 17:10 ZB 6 122.9 22.9% 102.6% 100.0 PASS

22 Onsite Fill 3 17:35 ZB 6 124.5 23.3% 103.6% 101.0 PASS

23 Onsite Fill 3 17:45 ZB 6 119.3 21.8% 100.5% 97.9 PASS

24 Onsite Fill 3 17:55 ZB 6 121.3 22.2% 101.8% 99.3 PASS

Envirotech Engineering & Consulting. Inc Date
9/12/2018

Grid SS2

Grid SS1

Grid WS1

Grid WS2

Grid ES1

Grid NS1

Grid NS2

Grid ES2

Grid ES1

Grid SS2

Grid SS1

Grid WS1

Grid WS2

Grid NS1

Grid NS2

Grid ES2

Visual Description:

21.8%

 FIELD NUCLEAR DENSITY TEST (ASTM D-6938)

Seaboard Farms, LLC
2801 Hurliman Road, Guymon, OK 73942

Onsite Fill

97.5

Location or Grid Number

Visual Description: Brown Clay

Clay Liner

97.6

19.8%

Visual Description: Dark Brown Clay

2500 N. 11th Street  I  Enid, OK  73701
(580) 234-8780  I  Fax (580) 237-4302        



Client:  
Address:  

Soil Information

Project:   Perryton Evaporative Lagoon Proctor:

Project ID:  018334-00 Max Dry Density (pcf):

Troxler ID: 34563  Test Date: 9/11/2018 Optimum Moisture (%):

Troxler Model: 3430

Moist Std:                                                                  563  Density Std: 2009 Proctor:

Moist offset:                                                               N/A Density offset: N/A Max Dry Density (pcf):

Optimum Moisture (%):

Proctor:

Allowable Moisture Range:   Embankment -1/+3, Clay Optimum and Above Max Dry Density (pcf):

Necessary % Proctor:   95% Optimum Moisture (%):

Test No Pr Lift Time Tech
Depth of 

Test 
(inches)

Wet 
Density 

(pcf)

Moisture 
Content (%)

% Proctor 
(calc)

Dry 
Density 
(calc)

P/F

25 Onsite Fill 4 16:30 ZB 6 122.4 21.0% 103.8% 101.2 PASS

26 Onsite Fill 4 16:41 ZB 6 126.0 22.4% 105.6% 102.9 PASS

27 Onsite Fill 4 16:50 ZB 6 122.7 22.2% 103.0% 100.4 PASS

28 Onsite Fill 4 16:55 ZB 6 129.2 21.8% 108.8% 106.1 PASS

29 Onsite Fill 4 17:10 ZB 6 125.8 21.8% 105.9% 103.3 PASS

30 Onsite Fill 4 17:14 ZB 6 117.9 22.3% 98.9% 96.4 PASS

31 Onsite Fill 4 17:18 ZB 6 120.9 21.6% 102.0% 99.4 PASS

32 Onsite Fill 4 17:25 ZB 6 124.5 21.9% 104.8% 102.1 PASS

Envirotech Engineering & Consulting. Inc Date
9/12/2018

Grid WS1

Grid WS2

Grid SS1

Visual Description:

Location or Grid Number

Grid NS1

Grid NS2

Grid ES2

Grid ES1

Grid SS2

Visual Description: Dark Brown Clay

 FIELD NUCLEAR DENSITY TEST (ASTM D-6938)

Seaboard Farms, LLC
2801 Hurliman Road, Guymon, OK 73942

Onsite Fill

97.5

21.8%

Visual Description: Brown Clay

Clay Liner

97.6

19.8%

2500 N. 11th Street  I  Enid, OK  73701
(580) 234-8780  I  Fax (580) 237-4302        



Client:  
Address:  

Soil Information

Project:   Perryton Evaporative Lagoon Proctor:

Project ID:  018334-00 Max Dry Density (pcf):

Troxler ID: 34563  Test Date: 9/25/2018 Optimum Moisture (%):

Troxler Model: 3430

Moist Std:                                                                  563  Density Std: 2009 Proctor:

Moist offset:                                                               N/A Density offset: N/A Max Dry Density (pcf):

Optimum Moisture (%):

Proctor:

Allowable Moisture Range:   Embankment -1/+3, Clay Optimum and Above Max Dry Density (pcf):

Necessary % Proctor:   95% Optimum Moisture (%):

Test No Pr Lift Time Tech
Depth of 

Test 
(inches)

Wet 
Density 

(pcf)

Moisture 
Content (%)

% Proctor 
(calc)

Dry 
Density 
(calc)

P/F

33 Clay Liner 1 15:20 JB 6 113.5 19.8% 97.1% 94.7 PASS

34 Clay Liner 1 15:22 JB 6 110.8 18.8% 95.6% 93.3 PASS

35 Clay Liner 1 15:25 JB 6 111.6 18.9% 96.2% 93.9 PASS

36 Clay Liner 1 15:30 JB 6 114.2 20.6% 97.0% 94.7 PASS

37 Clay Liner 1 15:32 JB 6 124.9 20.6% 106.1% 103.6 PASS

38 Clay Liner 1 15:35 JB 6 123.0 21.8% 103.5% 101.0 PASS

39 Clay Liner 1 15:40 JB 6 123.4 21.9% 103.7% 101.2 PASS

40 Clay Liner 1 15:45 JB 6 112.1 18.9% 96.6% 94.3 PASS

41 Onsite Fill #2 5 15:50 JB 6 129.6 16.9% 106.7% 110.9 PASS

42 Onsite Fill #2 5 17:55 JB 6 130.3 17.0% 107.2% 111.4 PASS

43 Onsite Fill #2 5 18:00 JB 6 129.9 16.4% 107.4% 111.6 PASS

44 Onsite Fill #2 5 18:05 JB 6 130.9 15.1% 109.5% 113.7 PASS

45 Onsite Fill #2 5 18:10 JB 6 129.5 16.1% 107.4% 111.5 PASS

46 Onsite Fill #2 5 18:15 JB 6 130.1 15.4% 108.5% 112.7 PASS

Envirotech Engineering & Consulting. Inc Date

Visual Description: Dark Brown Clay

 FIELD NUCLEAR DENSITY TEST (ASTM D-6938)

Seaboard Farms, LLC
2801 Hurliman Road, Guymon, OK 73942

Onsite Fill

97.5

21.8%

Visual Description: Brown Clay

Clay Liner

97.6

19.8%

Grid NS2

Onsite Fill #2

103.9

15.9%

Visual Description: Tan Clay with Caliche

Location or Grid Number

Grid SS1

Grid SS2

Grid ES1

Grid ES2

Grid NS1

Grid WS1

Grid WS2

Grid F5

Grid F1

Grid F2

Grid F7

Grid F4

Grid F8

9/27/2018

2500 N. 11th Street  I  Enid, OK  73701
(580) 234-8780  I  Fax (580) 237-4302        



Client:  
Address:  

Soil Information

Project:   Perryton Evaporative Lagoon Proctor:

Project ID:  018334-00 Max Dry Density (pcf):

Troxler ID: 34563  Test Date: 10/1/2018 Optimum Moisture (%):

Troxler Model: 3430

Moist Std:                                                                  551  Density Std: 2014 Proctor:

Moist offset:                                                               N/A Density offset: N/A Max Dry Density (pcf):

Optimum Moisture (%):

Proctor:

Allowable Moisture Range:   Embankment -1/+3, Clay Optimum and Above Max Dry Density (pcf):

Necessary % Proctor:   95% Optimum Moisture (%):

Test No Pr Lift Time Tech
Depth of 

Test 
(inches)

Wet 
Density 

(pcf)

Moisture 
Content (%)

% Proctor 
(calc)

Dry 
Density 
(calc)

P/F

47 Clay Liner 2 17:00 JB 6 121.3 19.0% 104.4% 101.9 PASS

48 Clay Liner 2 17:04 JB 6 119.5 19.1% 102.8% 100.3 PASS

49 Clay Liner 2 17:08 JB 6 119.6 19.1% 102.9% 100.4 PASS

50 Clay Liner 2 17:12 JB 6 119.8 19.9% 102.4% 99.9 PASS

51 Clay Liner 1 17:15 JB 6 118.7 19.2% 102.0% 99.6 PASS

52 Clay Liner 1 17:19 JB 6 120.3 19.4% 103.2% 100.8 PASS

53 Clay Liner 1 17:23 JB 6 120.8 19.7% 103.4% 100.9 PASS

54 Clay Liner 1 17:27 JB 6 120.3 19.6% 103.1% 100.6 PASS

55 Clay Liner 1 17:31 JB 6 119.3 20.6% 101.4% 98.9 PASS

56 Clay Liner 1 17:35 JB 6 120.9 20.0% 103.2% 100.8 PASS

57 Clay Liner 1 17:38 JB 6 122.5 20.8% 103.9% 101.4 PASS

58 Clay Liner 1 17:42 JB 6 121.7 20.7% 103.3% 100.8 PASS

59 Clay Liner 1 17:46 JB 6 122.6 21.3% 103.6% 101.1 PASS

60 Clay Liner 1 17:50 JB 6 125.5 20.7% 106.5% 104.0 PASS

61 Clay Liner 1 17:55 JB 6 124.5 19.7% 106.6% 104.0 PASS

62 Clay Liner 1 18:00 JB 6 119.8 20.9% 101.5% 99.1 PASS

Envirotech Engineering & Consulting. Inc .

Visual Description: Dark Brown Clay

 FIELD NUCLEAR DENSITY TEST (ASTM D-6938)

Seaboard Farms, LLC
2801 Hurliman Road, Guymon, OK 73942

Onsite Fill

97.5

21.8%

Visual Description: Brown Clay

Clay Liner

97.6

19.8%

Grid E2

Onsite Fill #2

103.9

15.9%

Visual Description: Tan Clay with Caliche

Location or Grid Number

Grid W1

Grid W2

Grid S1

Grid S2

Grid E1

Grid N1

Grid N2

Grid F1

Grid F2

Grid F3

Grid F4

Grid F8

Grid F7

Grid F6

Grid F5

10/9/2018

2500 N. 11th Street  I  Enid, OK  73701
(580) 234-8780  I  Fax (580) 237-4302        



Client:  
Address:  

Soil Information

Project:   Perryton Evaporative Lagoon Proctor:

Project ID:  018334-00 Max Dry Density (pcf):

Troxler ID: 34563  Test Date: 10/2/2018 Optimum Moisture (%):

Troxler Model: 3430

Moist Std:                                                                  549  Density Std: 2011 Proctor:

Moist offset:                                                               N/A Density offset: N/A Max Dry Density (pcf):

Optimum Moisture (%):

Proctor:

Allowable Moisture Range:   Embankment -1/+3, Clay Optimum and Above Max Dry Density (pcf):

Necessary % Proctor:   95% Optimum Moisture (%):

Test No Pr Lift Time Tech
Depth of 

Test 
(inches)

Wet 
Density 

(pcf)

Moisture 
Content (%)

% Proctor 
(calc)

Dry 
Density 
(calc)

P/F

63 Clay Liner 3 17:00 JB 6 110.4 19.0% 95.1% 92.8 PASS

64 Clay Liner 3 17:05 JB 6 111.1 19.7% 95.1% 92.8 PASS

65 Clay Liner 3 17:10 JB 6 118.6 20.3% 101.0% 98.6 PASS

66 Clay Liner 3 17:15 JB 6 119.0 19.8% 101.8% 99.3 PASS

67 Clay Liner 2 17:20 JB 6 117.9 20.2% 100.5% 98.1 PASS

68 Clay Liner 2 17:25 JB 6 119.0 20.7% 101.0% 98.6 PASS

69 Clay Liner 2 17:30 JB 6 118.0 19.7% 101.0% 98.6 PASS

70 Clay Liner 2 17:35 JB 6 118.2 21.1% 100.0% 97.6 PASS

71 Clay Liner 2 17:40 JB 6 119.4 20.8% 101.3% 98.8 PASS

72 Clay Liner 2 17:42 JB 6 117.5 20.7% 99.7% 97.3 PASS

73 Clay Liner 2 17:44 JB 6 124.3 19.3% 106.8% 104.2 PASS

74 Clay Liner 2 17:48 JB 6 120.1 21.5% 101.3% 98.8 PASS

75 Clay Liner 2 17:52 JB 6 119.5 19.3% 102.6% 100.2 PASS

76 Clay Liner 2 17:56 JB 6 120.1 19.2% 103.2% 100.8 PASS

77 Clay Liner 2 17:58 JB 6 120.6 19.4% 103.5% 101.0 PASS

78 Clay Liner 2 18:00 JB 6 116.4 19.1% 100.1% 97.7 PASS

Envirotech Engineering & Consulting. Inc .

Visual Description: Dark Brown Clay

 FIELD NUCLEAR DENSITY TEST (ASTM D-6938)

Seaboard Farms, LLC
2801 Hurliman Road, Guymon, OK 73942

Onsite Fill

97.5

21.8%

Visual Description: Brown Clay

Clay Liner

97.6

19.8%

Grid E2

Onsite Fill #2

103.9

15.9%

Visual Description: Tan Clay with Caliche

Location or Grid Number

Grid W1

Grid W2

Grid S1

Grid S2

Grid E1

Grid N1

Grid N2

Grid F4

Grid F3

Grid F2

Grid F1

Grid F5

Grid F6

Grid F7

Grid F8

10/9/2018

2500 N. 11th Street  I  Enid, OK  73701
(580) 234-8780  I  Fax (580) 237-4302        



Client:  
Address:  

Soil Information

Project:   Perryton Evaporative Lagoon Proctor:

Project ID:  018334-00 Max Dry Density (pcf):

Troxler ID: 34563  Test Date: 10/4/2018 Optimum Moisture (%):

Troxler Model: 3430

Moist Std:                                                                  557  Density Std: 2016 Proctor:

Moist offset:                                                               N/A Density offset: N/A Max Dry Density (pcf):

Optimum Moisture (%):

Proctor:

Allowable Moisture Range:   Embankment -1/+3, Clay Optimum and Above Max Dry Density (pcf):

Necessary % Proctor:   95% Optimum Moisture (%):

Test No Pr Lift Time Tech
Depth of 

Test 
(inches)

Wet 
Density 

(pcf)

Moisture 
Content (%)

% Proctor 
(calc)

Dry 
Density 
(calc)

P/F

79 Clay Liner 4 17:00 JB 6 117.1 19.2% 100.7% 98.2 PASS

80 Clay Liner 4 17:04 JB 6 118.3 19.5% 101.4% 99.0 PASS

81 Clay Liner 4 17:07 JB 6 117.0 19.9% 100.0% 97.6 PASS

82 Clay Liner 4 17:11 JB 6 118.8 19.1% 102.2% 99.7 PASS

83 Clay Liner Final 17:14 JB 6 112.0 19.0% 96.4% 94.1 PASS

84 Clay Liner Final 17:17 JB 6 111.9 19.4% 96.0% 93.7 PASS

85 Clay Liner Final 17:20 JB 6 110.8 19.3% 95.2% 92.9 PASS

86 Clay Liner Final 17:22 JB 6 119.7 19.6% 102.5% 100.1 PASS

87 Clay Liner Final 17:25 JB 6 115.9 19.8% 99.1% 96.7 PASS

88 Clay Liner Final 17:28 JB 6 118.6 19.8% 101.4% 99.0 PASS

89 Clay Liner Final 17:31 JB 6 118.0 19.1% 101.5% 99.1 PASS

90 Clay Liner Final 17:35 JB 6 112.9 19.9% 96.5% 94.2 PASS

Envirotech Engineering & Consulting. Inc .

Visual Description: Dark Brown Clay

 FIELD NUCLEAR DENSITY TEST (ASTM D-6938)

Seaboard Farms, LLC
2801 Hurliman Road, Guymon, OK 73942

Onsite Fill

97.5

21.8%

Visual Description: Brown Clay

Clay Liner

97.6

19.8%

Grid F5

Onsite Fill #2

103.9

15.9%

Visual Description: Tan Clay with Caliche

Location or Grid Number

Grid W1

Grid W2

Grid N1

Grid N2

Grid F1

Grid F6

Grid F2

Grid F3

Grid F7

Grid F8

Grid F4

10/9/2018

2500 N. 11th Street  I  Enid, OK  73701
(580) 234-8780  I  Fax (580) 237-4302        



Client:  
Address:  

Soil Information

Project:   Perryton Evaporative Lagoon Proctor:

Project ID:  018334-00 Max Dry Density (pcf):

Troxler ID: 34563  Test Date: 10/16/2018 Optimum Moisture (%):

Troxler Model: 3430

Moist Std:                                                                  565  Density Std: 2031 Proctor:

Moist offset:                                                               N/A Density offset: N/A Max Dry Density (pcf):

Optimum Moisture (%):

Proctor:

Allowable Moisture Range:   Embankment -1/+3, Clay Optimum and Above Max Dry Density (pcf):

Necessary % Proctor:   95% Optimum Moisture (%):

Test No Pr Lift Time Tech
Depth of 

Test 
(inches)

Wet 
Density 

(pcf)

Moisture 
Content (%)

% Proctor 
(calc)

Dry 
Density 
(calc)

P/F

91 Onsite Fill #2 Final 11:20 ZB 6 123.2 17.7% 100.7% 104.7 PASS

92 Onsite Fill #2 Final 11:30 ZB 6 126.0 18.7% 102.2% 106.1 PASS

93 Onsite Fill #2 Final 12:10 ZB 6 125.9 20.0% 101.0% 104.9 PASS

94 Onsite Fill #2 Final 12:00 ZB 6 125.6 21.6% 99.4% 103.3 PASS

95 Onsite Fill #2 3 11:49 ZB 12 127.6 20.2% 102.2% 106.2 PASS

96 Onsite Fill #2 3 11:38 ZB 12 123.6 18.3% 100.6% 104.5 PASS

97 Onsite Fill #2 Final 11:55 ZB 6 125.4 19.8% 100.7% 104.7 PASS

98 Onsite Fill #2 Final 11:44 ZB 6 125.3 19.7% 100.7% 104.7 PASS

Envirotech Engineering & Consulting. Inc .

Visual Description: Dark Brown Clay

 FIELD NUCLEAR DENSITY TEST (ASTM D-6938)

Seaboard Farms, LLC
2801 Hurliman Road, Guymon, OK 73942

Onsite Fill

97.5

21.8%

Visual Description: Brown Clay

Clay Liner

97.6

19.8%

Grid ES2

Onsite Fill #2

103.9

15.9%

Visual Description: Tan Clay with Caliche

Location or Grid Number

Grid NS!

Grid NS2

Grid SS1

Grid SS2

Grid ES1

Grid ES1

Grid ES2

10/17/2018

2500 N. 11th Street  I  Enid, OK  73701
(580) 234-8780  I  Fax (580) 237-4302        



14                 Technical Report 

T.F: SDSs 
 



Summary of Chemical Additives to Wastestream for Outfall E‐1: 

1. Oxytrol 2030 – Used for Industrial Water Treatment prior to Boiler.  Contains Sodium Bisulfite. 

2. Neutramine – Used for Industrial Water Treatment prior to Boiler.  Contains Ethanol, 2‐

(Diethylamino) and Hexahydroaniline. 

3. Boiler Power 640 – Used for Industrial Water Treatment prior to Boiler.  Contains Polymaleic 

Acid, Sodium Hydroxide and Sodium Bisulfite. 



  Oxytrol 2030   Page  1   

 SAFETY DATA SHEET 

 
3463 Astrozon Court 

Colorado Springs Co 80910 
1. IDENTIFICATION 
  
GHS Product Identifier:                                                                                                               Oxytrol 2030   
 
 
Synonyms:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               None 
General Description:                                                                                                                                                                                         Industrial Water 
                                                  treatment product                                           
 
SDS Identification Code:          
Revision Date:                                                              
 24 hour Emergency Response: 800-535-5053 
 
Recommended Use:                                                                                                                                                                                 Reduce or prevent oxygen corrosion 
 
2. HAZARD IDENTIFICATION 
 
Hazard Classification:          Skin irritation, category 2 
                                              Eye irritation, category 2 
 
Signal Word:                                                               Danger 
Hazard Statements(s):          H315: Causes skin irritation 
                                             H319: Causes serious eye irritation 
 
Pictograms of related hazards: 

                                                         
 
Precautionary Statements: 
P264: Wash hands thoroughly after handling 
P270: Do not eat, drink or smoke when using this product. 
P280: Wear protective gloves/protective clothing/eye protection/face protection 
P302+P352: IF ON SKIN: Wash with plenty of soap and water. 
P332+P313: If skin irritation occurs: Get medical advice/attention. 
P362: Take off contaminated clothing and wash before reuse. 
P321: Specific treatment (see First Aid Measures on Safety Data Sheet) 
P305+P351+P338: IF IN EYES: Rinse cautiously with water for several minutes. Remove contact lenses. 
if present and easy to do. Continue rinsing. 
P337+P313: If eye irritation persists: Get Medical advice/attention. 
Description of other Hazards: Not available 

HEALTH HAZARD  1 

FIRE HAZARD  0

REACTIVITY  1

Rating Scale 
4=Extreme 
3=High 
2=Moderate 
1=Slight 
0=Insignificant 



  Oxytrol 2030   Page  2   

 
3. COMPOSITION/INFORMATION ON INGREDIENTS 
 
Chemical Name % by weight    TWA/TLV 
Sodium Bisulfite <15 1.2 ppm 
(CAS Reg No. 7631-90-5) 
 
The balance of components comprise proprietary information. 
 
4. FIRST-AID MEASURES 
 
Eye contact:                                                        Flush eyes IMMEDIATELY and gently with large volumes of water for 15 
                  minutes. Use finger to assure that eye lids are separated and that the eye is being 
                                                irrigated. Obtain medical assistance promptly. 
 
Skin contact:                   Flush affected area promptly with large quantities of water for 15 minutes. Except 
                                                In the most minor, superficial and localized burns, cover the affected area with a  
                                                Sterile dressing or clean sheeting and transport for medical care. DO NOT APPLY 
                                                GREASES OR OINTMENTS.    
 
Ingestion:                             In the event of ingestion administer 3-4 glasses of milk or water. DO NOT  
                                                INDUCE VOMITING. Obtain medical care and hospital treatment as soon 
                                                as possible. 
 
Inhalation:                           Move affected person to uncontaminated atmosphere. If breathing has stop- 
                                                ped or is impaired, give  assisted respiration (mouth to mouth), supplemental 
                                                oxygen should be given if available. Assure that victim does not aspirate vomited  
                                                material by use of postural drainage. Assure that mucous does not obstruct the  
                                                airway.  Seek medical attention.                
   
Note to Physician:          The product has effects similar to those of Sodium hydroxide and is highly  
                                               injurious to all tissues. Chemical pneumonitis, pulmonary edema, laryngeal 
                                               edema and delayed scarring of the airway or other affected organs may occur 
                                               following exposure. There is no specific treatment. Clinical management is  
                                               based upon supportive treatment, which is similar to that for thermal burns. 
                                               victims with major skin contact should be maintained under medical obser- 
                                               vation for at least 24 hours due to possibility of delayed reaction. 
5. FIRE-FIGHTING MEASURES 
 
Extinguishing Media:    Water fog. Foam. Dry Chemical powder. Carbon dioxide (CO2). Use extinguishing 
                                               agent suitable for type of surrounding fire. 
 
Unsuitable extinguishing 
Media:                            Do not use a solid water stream as it may scatter and spread fire. Do not use  
                                               halogenated extinguishing agents. 
 
Specific hazards             The product itself does not burn. May decompose upon heating to produce 
arising from                    corrosive and/or toxic fumes.  
the chemical                     
 



  Oxytrol 2030   Page  3   

Special protective           Fire fighters should enter the area only if they are protected from all contact 
Equipment and               with the material.  Full protective clothing, including self-contained breathing 
Precautions for               apparatus, coat pants, gloves, boots and bands around legs, arms and waist,     
Firefighters                     should be worn. No skin surface should be exposed. 
 
Fire-fighting                   In case of fire and/or explosion do not breathe fumes. Move containers from 
Equipment/                     fire area if you can do so without risk. Use water spray to cool unopened contain 
Instructions                     ers. 
 
 
6. ACCIDENTAL RELEASE MEASURES 

 
Personal Precautions:     Wear protective equipment to prevent skin and eye contact. Avoid breathing in 
                                                vapors. May be a slipping hazard. Work up wind or increase ventilation. Contain/ 
                                                prevent run off into drains and waterways. Use absorbent (soil, sand or other inert 
                                                material).  Collect and seal in properly labeled containers or drums for disposal. 
 
Environmental                Clear area of all unprotected personnel. If contamination of sewers or waterways  
Precautions:                    has occurred advise local emergency services. 
 
Methods for clean-up: 
Small spill:                     Use absorbent (soil, sand or other inert material). Collect and seal in properly  
                                               labeled containers or drums for disposal. 
 
Large spill:                     Use absorbent (soil, sand or other inert material). Collect and seal in properly  
                                               labeled containers or drums for disposal. 
 
7. HANDLING AND STORAGE 
 
Handling:                       Avoid contact with eyes, skin and clothing. Avoid breathing vapors. Refer to  
                                              “Exposure Controls/Personal Protection,” Section 8, of the MSDS. 
 
Storage:                          Keep containers tightly closed when not in use. Do not store near food, foodstuff, 
                                               drugs or potable water supplies. Storage must only be in original containers. If 
                                               exposed to temperatures below freezing point (40ºF, 5º C), assure product reaches 
                                                                                         50ºF, 10º C, prior to use. Gently agitate contents of container. Vigorous agitation is  
                                               not required. 
 
Notes:                           Please Note: Freezing will not harm product performance. Simply bring to room  
                                            temperature and allowing it to warm up. It is not recommended to heat or to put a  
                                            heating device into contact with the liquid product. 
 
 
8. EXPOSURE CONTROLS/PERSONAL PROTECTION 
                                             
Exposure Limits:                                                                                            Not Available 
OSHA Permissible Exposure Limits (PELs):                                                Not Available 
American Conference of Governmental Industrial Hygienists (ACGIH):     Not Available 
Threshold Limit Values (TLVs):                                                                    Not Available 



  Oxytrol 2030   Page  4   

Other Exposure Limits:                                                                                  Not Available 
 
Engineering Controls:   Natural ventilation should be adequate under normal use conditions. If inhalation 
                                              risk exists: Use with local exhausts ventilation or while wearing suitable mist  
                                              respirator. Keep containers closed when not in use. Maintain eye wash fountain 
                                              and quick-drench facilities in work area. 
 
Personal Protection:      Use chemical safety glasses with side shields, goggles, or face shield are  
Eye Protection:              recommended. 
                                              
Hand Protection:           Wear protective gloves 
Skin Protection:            Wear clean body-covering clothing or apron 
Respiratory Protection: Mist respirator as needed 
 

       
 
 
9. PHYSICAL AND CHEMICAL PROPERTIES 
 
Property                                                   Value                                              
Appearance:                                                       Dark Brown 
Odor:                                                                  Pungent 
pH(neat):                                                            5-6 
Specific Gravity:                                                Not Available                                               
Relative Density:                                                9.45 lb/gallon 
Melting/Freezing Point:                                     Not available                                
Initial Boiling Point and Boiling range:             212º 
Flash Point:                                                        N/A 
Solubility (water):                                              Complete (water) 
Intrinsic Viscosity:                                             Not available 
Flammability (solid, gas):                                  Not available 
Upper/Lower flammability limits:                     Not available 
Vapor Pressure:                                                 Not available 
Evaporation rate:                                               Not available 
Auto-ignition Temperature:                                 Not available 
Decomposition Temperature:                            Not available 
Partition coefficient:                                          Not available 
 
Note: These physical properties are typical values for this product and not specifications. 
 
10. STABILITY AND REACTIVITY 
 
Reactivity Data:                                            No specific data for this product 
 
Chemical Stability:                                                 
Stability under normal conditions:                     Stable under ordinary conditions of use and storage. 
Stabilizers needed:                                             None needed 
 
Other Information: 
Conditions to avoid:                                          Not available                                                                           



  Oxytrol 2030   Page  5   

Materials to avoid:                                             Not available 
 
Hazardous reactions:                                         Will not occur 
Hazardous decomposition products: 
 
11. TOXICOLOGIACAL INFORMATION 
 
Toxicity Studies:                                              LD50 in rats 2000 mg/kg orally. 
Acute Toxicity:                                                Not available 
 
 
Skin Corrosion/Irritation:                                Not available 
Serious Eye Damage/Irritation:                       Not available 
Germ Cell Mutagenicity:                                 Not available 
Carcinogenicity:                                              Not available                                                             
Reproductive Toxicity:                                   Not available 
STOT-single exposure:                                   Not available 
STOT-repeated exposure:                               Not available 
Aspiration Hazard:                                          Not available 
 
 
12.ECOLOGICAL INFORMATION 
 
Toxicity: 
Persistence and Degradability: 
Bio-accumulative Potential: 
Mobility in Soil: 
Other Adverse Effects: 
 
13.DISPOSAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Recommended Disposal Containers: 
Recommended Disposal Methods: 
 
 
Physical and Chemical Properties that 
affect Disposal: 
Sewage Disposal: 
Special Precautions for Landfills or Incineration: 
 
14.TRANSPORT INFORMATION 
 
The proper shipping name and/or hazard class for this product may vary according to packaging, properties 
and mode of transportation. Typical proper shipping names for this product are: 
 
DOT 
     UN Number                                           UN2693 
     UN proper shipping name                     Bisulfites, aqueous solutions,  N.O.S. ( Sodium Bisulfite )                                      
     Transport hazard class(es)                     8 
     Subsidiary class(es)                                
     Packing group                                        III 
     Special precautions for user 



  Oxytrol 2030   Page  6   

     Packaging exceptions 
     Packaging non bulk 
     Packaging bulk 
IATA 
     UN Number                                           UN2693 
     UN proper shipping name 
     Transport hazard class(es)                     8 
     Subsidiary class(es) 
     Packing group 
     Environmental hazards 
     Labels required 
     ERG Code 
     Special precautions for user 
IMDG 
     UN Number                                           UN2693 
     UN proper shipping name 
     Transport hazard class(es)                     8 
     Subsidiary class(es) 
     Packing group 
     Environmental hazards 
          Marine pollutant 
     Labels required 
     EmS 
     Special precautions for user 
Transport in bulk according to  
Annex II of MARPOL 73/78 and 
The IBC Code 
 
15. REGULATORY INFORMATION 
 
US federal regulations                                 this product is a “Hazardous Chemical” as defined by the OSHA  
                                                                      Hazard Communication Standard, 29 CFR 1910.1200. 
 
     TSCA Sectin 129b) Export Notification (40 CRF 707, Subpt. D) 
          Not regulated. 
     US. OSHA Specifically Regulated Substances (29 CFR 1910.1001-1050) 
          Not listed. 
     CERCLA Hazardous Substance List (40 CFR 302.4) 
          Sodium hydroxide (CAS 1310-73-2) 
Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986 (SARA) 
     Hazard categories                            Immediate Hazard-Yes 
                                                              Delayed Hazard-No 
                                                              Fire Hazard-No 
                                                              Pressure Hazard-NO 
                                                              Reactivity Hazard-Yes 
     SARA 302 Extremely                      No 
     hazardous substance 
     SARA 311/312 Hazardous              No 
     chemical 
     SARA 313 (TRI reporting) 
          Not regulated. 
Other federal regulations 
      Clean Air Act (CAA) Section 112 Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs) List 
          Not regulated. 



  Oxytrol 2030   Page  7   

     Safe Drinking Water Act                Not regulated 
     (SDWA) 
     Food and Drug                               Not regulated 
     Administration (FDA) 
 
US state regulations 
     US. Massachusetts RTK-Substance List 
          Sodium Bisulfite (CAS 7631-90-5) 
     US. New Jersey Worker and Community Right –to-Know Act 
          Not regulated. 
     US. Pennsylvania RTK-Hazardous Substances 
          Sodium Bisulfite (CAS 7631-90-5) 
     US. Rhode Island RTK 
          Sodium Bisulfite (CAS 7631-90-5) 
     US. California Proposition 65 
     California Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act of 1986 (Proposition 65): This material is not  
     known to contain any chemicals currently  listed as carcinogens or reproductive toxins. 
 
16. OTHER INFORMATION 
   
Revision Date:                05/01/2015 
Revision Number:           1 
Reason for revision:        New 
 
NOTICE: The information accumulated herein is believed to be accurate based on the information provided,  
although no guarantee or warranty, either expressed  or implied is made as to the accuracy or completeness of 
this information, whether originating with this company or not. Recipients are advised to confirm in advance of 
need that the information is correct, applicable and suitable to their circumstances. The conditions or methods of 
handling, storage, use and disposal of the product and container are beyond our control and may be beyond our 
knowledge. For this and other reasons, we do not assume responsibility and expressly disclaim liability for loss, 
damage or expense arising out of or in any way connected with the handling , storage or use of this information 
or product. If the product is used as a component in another product, this information may not be applicable. 
 
 
 



  Neutramine   Page  1   

 SAFETY DATA SHEET 

 
3463 Astrozon Court 

Colorado Springs Co 80910 
1. IDENTIFICATION 
  
GHS Product Identifier:                                                                                                               Neutramine 
 
 
Synonyms:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               None 
General Description:                                                                                                                                                                                         Industrial Water 
                                                  treatment product                                           
 
SDS Identification Code:          
Revision Date:                                                              
 24 hour Emergency Response: 800-535-5053 
 
Recommended Use:                                                                                                                                                                                 Corrosion protection 
 
2. HAZARD IDENTIFICATION 
 
Hazard Classification:          Skin irritation, category 2 
                                              Eye irritation, category 2 
 
Signal Word:                                                               Danger 
Hazard Statements(s):          H315: Causes skin irritation 
                                             H319: Causes serious eye irritation 
 
Pictograms of related hazards: 

                                                         
 
Precautionary Statements: 
P264: Wash hands thoroughly after handling 
P270: Do not eat, drink or smoke when using this product. 
P280: Wear protective gloves/protective clothing/eye protection/face protection 
P302+P352: IF ON SKIN: Wash with plenty of soap and water. 
P332+P313: If skin irritation occurs: Get medical advice/attention. 
P362: Take off contaminated clothing and wash before reuse. 
P321: Specific treatment (see First Aid Measures on Safety Data Sheet) 
P305+P351+P338: IF IN EYES: Rinse cautiously with water for several minutes. Remove contact lenses. 
if present and easy to do. Continue rinsing. 
P337+P313: If eye irritation persists: Get Medical advice/attention. 
Description of other Hazards: Not available 

HEALTH HAZARD  2 

FIRE HAZARD  2

REACTIVITY  0

Rating Scale 
4=Extreme 
3=High 
2=Moderate 
1=Slight 
0=Insignificant 



  Neutramine   Page  2   

 
3. COMPOSITION/INFORMATION ON INGREDIENTS 
 
Chemical Name % by weight    TWA/TLV 
Ethanol, 2-(Diethylamino)       ≤ 10      10 ppm 
(CAS Reg No. 100-37-8) 
 
Hexahydroaniline                                                    ≤ 6                                                                                     10 ppm 
(CAS Reg No. 108-91-8) 
 
The balance of components comprise proprietary information. 
 
4. FIRST-AID MEASURES 
 
Eye contact:                                                        Flush eyes IMMEDIATELY and gently with large volumes of water for 15 
                  minutes. Use finger to assure that eye lids are separated and that the eye is being 
                                                irrigated. Obtain medical assistance promptly. 
 
Skin contact:                   Flush affected area promptly with large quantities of water for 15 minutes. Except 
                                                In the most minor, superficial and localized burns, cover the affected area with a  
                                                Sterile dressing or clean sheeting and transport for medical care. DO NOT APPLY 
                                                GREASES OR OINTMENTS.    
 
Ingestion:                             In the event of ingestion administer 3-4 glasses of milk or water. DO NOT  
                                                INDUCE VOMITING. Obtain medical care and hospital treatment as soon 
                                                as possible. 
 
Inhalation:                           Move affected person to uncontaminated atmosphere. If breathing has stop- 
                                                ped or is impaired, give  assisted respiration (mouth to mouth), supplemental 
                                                oxygen should be given if available. Assure that victim does not aspirate vomited  
                                                material by use of postural drainage. Assure that mucous does not obstruct the  
                                                airway.  Seek medical attention.                
   
Note to Physician:          The product has effects similar to those of Sodium hydroxide and is highly  
                                               injurious to all tissues. Chemical pneumonitis, pulmonary edema, laryngeal 
                                               edema and delayed scarring of the airway or other affected organs may occur 
                                               following exposure. There is no specific treatment. Clinical management is  
                                               based upon supportive treatment, which is similar to that for thermal burns. 
                                               victims with major skin contact should be maintained under medical obser- 
                                               vation for at least 24 hours due to possibility of delayed reaction. 
5. FIRE-FIGHTING MEASURES 
 
Extinguishing Media:    Water fog. Foam. Dry Chemical powder. Carbon dioxide (CO2). Use extinguishing 
                                               agent suitable for type of surrounding fire. 
 
Unsuitable extinguishing 
Media:                            Do not use a solid water stream as it may scatter and spread fire. Do not use  
                                               halogenated extinguishing agents. 
 
Specific hazards             The product itself does not burn. May decompose upon heating to produce 



  Neutramine   Page  3   

arising from                    corrosive and/or toxic fumes.  
the chemical                     
 
Special protective           Fire fighters should enter the area only if they are protected from all contact 
Equipment and               with the material.  Full protective clothing, including self-contained breathing 
Precautions for               apparatus, coat pants, gloves, boots and bands around legs, arms and waist,     
Firefighters                     should be worn. No skin surface should be exposed. 
 
Fire-fighting                   In case of fire and/or explosion do not breathe fumes. Move containers from 
Equipment/                     fire area if you can do so without risk. Use water spray to cool unopened contain 
Instructions                     ers. 
 
 
6. ACCIDENTAL RELEASE MEASURES 

 
Personal Precautions:     Wear protective equipment to prevent skin and eye contact. Avoid breathing in 
                                                vapors. May be a slipping hazard. Work up wind or increase ventilation. Contain/ 
                                                prevent run off into drains and waterways. Use absorbent (soil, sand or other inert 
                                                material).  Collect and seal in properly labeled containers or drums for disposal. 
 
Environmental                Clear area of all unprotected personnel. If contamination of sewers or waterways  
Precautions:                    has occurred advise local emergency services. 
 
Methods for clean-up: 
Small spill:                     Use absorbent (soil, sand or other inert material). Collect and seal in properly  
                                               labeled containers or drums for disposal. 
 
Large spill:                     Use absorbent (soil, sand or other inert material). Collect and seal in properly  
                                               labeled containers or drums for disposal. 
 
7. HANDLING AND STORAGE 
 
Handling:                       Avoid contact with eyes, skin and clothing. Avoid breathing vapors. Refer to  
                                              “Exposure Controls/Personal Protection,” Section 8, of the MSDS. 
 
Storage:                          Keep containers tightly closed when not in use. Do not store near food, foodstuff, 
                                               drugs or potable water supplies. Storage must only be in original containers. If 
                                               exposed to temperatures below freezing point (40ºF, 5º C), assure product reaches 
                                                                                         50ºF, 10º C, prior to use. Gently agitate contents of container. Vigorous agitation is  
                                               not required. 
 
Notes:                           Please Note: Freezing will not harm product performance. Simply bring to room  
                                            temperature and allowing it to warm up. It is not recommended to heat or to put a  
                                            heating device into contact with the liquid product. 
 
 
8. EXPOSURE CONTROLS/PERSONAL PROTECTION 
                                             
Exposure Limits:                                                                                            Not Available 



  Neutramine   Page  4   

OSHA Permissible Exposure Limits (PELs):                                                Not Available 
American Conference of Governmental Industrial Hygienists (ACGIH):     Not Available 
Threshold Limit Values (TLVs):                                                                    Not Available 
Other Exposure Limits:                                                                                  Not Available 
 
Engineering Controls:   Natural ventilation should be adequate under normal use conditions. If inhalation 
                                              risk exists: Use with local exhausts ventilation or while wearing suitable mist  
                                              respirator. Keep containers closed when not in use. Maintain eye wash fountain 
                                              and quick-drench facilities in work area. 
 
Personal Protection:      Use chemical safety glasses with side shields, goggles, or face shield are  
Eye Protection:              recommended. 
                                              
Hand Protection:           Wear protective gloves 
Skin Protection:            Wear clean body-covering clothing or apron 
Respiratory Protection: Mist respirator as needed 
 

       
 
 
9. PHYSICAL AND CHEMICAL PROPERTIES 
 
Property                                                   Value                                              
Appearance:                                                       Colorless to Yellow 
Odor:                                                                  Ammonia-like 
pH(neat):                                                            12 ± 1 
Specific Gravity:                                                Not Available                                               
Relative Density:                                                8.24 lb/gallon 
Melting/Freezing Point:                                     Not available                                
Initial Boiling Point and Boiling range:             212º 
Flash Point:                                                        N/A 
Solubility (water):                                              Complete (water) 
Intrinsic Viscosity:                                             Not available 
Flammability (solid, gas):                                  Not available 
Upper/Lower flammability limits:                     Not available 
Vapor Pressure:                                                 Not available 
Evaporation rate:                                               Not available 
Auto-ignition Temperature:                                 Not available 
Decomposition Temperature:                            Not available 
Partition coefficient:                                          Not available 
 
Note: These physical properties are typical values for this product and not specifications. 
 
10. STABILITY AND REACTIVITY 
 
Reactivity Data:                                            No specific data for this product 
 
Chemical Stability:                                                 
Stability under normal conditions:                     Stable under ordinary conditions of use and storage. 



  Neutramine   Page  5   

Stabilizers needed:                                             None needed 
 
Other Information: 
Conditions to avoid:                                          Not available                                                                           
Materials to avoid:                                             Not available 
 
Hazardous reactions:                                         Will not occur 
Hazardous decomposition products: 
 
11. TOXICOLOGIACAL INFORMATION 
 
Toxicity Studies:                                              LD50 in rats 2000 mg/kg orally. 
Acute Toxicity:                                                Not available 
 
 
Skin Corrosion/Irritation:                                Not available 
Serious Eye Damage/Irritation:                       Not available 
Germ Cell Mutagenicity:                                 Not available 
Carcinogenicity:                                              Not available                                                             
Reproductive Toxicity:                                   Not available 
STOT-single exposure:                                   Not available 
STOT-repeated exposure:                               Not available 
Aspiration Hazard:                                          Not available 
 
 
12.ECOLOGICAL INFORMATION 
 
Toxicity: 
Persistence and Degradability: 
Bio-accumulative Potential: 
Mobility in Soil: 
Other Adverse Effects: 
 
13.DISPOSAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Recommended Disposal Containers: 
Recommended Disposal Methods: 
 
 
Physical and Chemical Properties that 
affect Disposal: 
Sewage Disposal: 
Special Precautions for Landfills or Incineration: 
 
14.TRANSPORT INFORMATION 
 
The proper shipping name and/or hazard class for this product may vary according to packaging, properties 
and mode of transportation. Typical proper shipping names for this product are: 
 
DOT 
     UN Number                                           UN1760 
     UN proper shipping name                     Corrosive Liquids, N.O.S. (Diethylaminoethanol)                                      



  Neutramine   Page  6   

     Transport hazard class(es)                     8 
     Subsidiary class(es)                                
     Packing group                                        II 
     Special precautions for user 
     Packaging exceptions 
     Packaging non bulk 
     Packaging bulk 
IATA 
     UN Number                                           UN1760 
     UN proper shipping name 
     Transport hazard class(es)                     8 
     Subsidiary class(es) 
     Packing group 
     Environmental hazards 
     Labels required 
     ERG Code 
     Special precautions for user 
IMDG 
     UN Number                                           UN1760 
     UN proper shipping name 
     Transport hazard class(es)                     8 
     Subsidiary class(es) 
     Packing group 
     Environmental hazards 
          Marine pollutant 
     Labels required 
     EmS 
     Special precautions for user 
Transport in bulk according to  
Annex II of MARPOL 73/78 and 
The IBC Code 
 
15. REGULATORY INFORMATION 
 
US federal regulations                                 this product is a “Hazardous Chemical” as defined by the OSHA  
                                                                      Hazard Communication Standard, 29 CFR 1910.1200. 
 
     TSCA Sectin 129b) Export Notification (40 CRF 707, Subpt. D) 
          Not regulated. 
     US. OSHA Specifically Regulated Substances (29 CFR 1910.1001-1050) 
          Not listed. 
     CERCLA Hazardous Substance List (40 CFR 302.4) 
          Sodium hydroxide (CAS 1310-73-2) 
Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986 (SARA) 
     Hazard categories                            Immediate Hazard-Yes 
                                                              Delayed Hazard-No 
                                                              Fire Hazard-No 
                                                              Pressure Hazard-NO 
                                                              Reactivity Hazard-Yes 
     SARA 302 Extremely                      No 
     hazardous substance 
     SARA 311/312 Hazardous              No 
     chemical 
     SARA 313 (TRI reporting) 



  Neutramine   Page  7   

          Not regulated. 
Other federal regulations 
      Clean Air Act (CAA) Section 112 Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs) List 
          Not regulated. 
     Safe Drinking Water Act                Not regulated 
     (SDWA) 
     Food and Drug                               Not regulated 
     Administration (FDA) 
 
US state regulations 
     US. Massachusetts RTK-Substance List 
          Ethanol, 2-(Diethylamino)  (CAS 100-37-8) 
     US. New Jersey Worker and Community Right –to-Know Act 
          Not regulated. 
     US. Pennsylvania RTK-Hazardous Substances 
          Ethanol, 2-(Diethylamino)  (CAS 100-37-8) 
     US. Rhode Island RTK 
          Ethanol, 2-(Diethylamino)  (CAS 100-37-8) 
     US. California Proposition 65 
     California Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act of 1986 (Proposition 65): This material is not  
     known to contain any chemicals currently  listed as carcinogens or reproductive toxins. 
 
16. OTHER INFORMATION 
   
Revision Date:                05/01/2015 
Revision Number:           1 
Reason for revision:        New 
 
NOTICE: The information accumulated herein is believed to be accurate based on the information provided,  
although no guarantee or warranty, either expressed  or implied is made as to the accuracy or completeness of 
this information, whether originating with this company or not. Recipients are advised to confirm in advance of 
need that the information is correct, applicable and suitable to their circumstances. The conditions or methods of 
handling, storage, use and disposal of the product and container are beyond our control and may be beyond our 
knowledge. For this and other reasons, we do not assume responsibility and expressly disclaim liability for loss, 
damage or expense arising out of or in any way connected with the handling , storage or use of this information 
or product. If the product is used as a component in another product, this information may not be applicable. 
 
 
 



  Boiler Power 640   Page  1 

 SAFETY DATA SHEET 

 
3463 Astrozon Court 

Colorado Springs Co 80910 
1. IDENTIFICATION 
  
GHS Product Identifier:             Boiler Power 640   
 
 
Synonyms:                                     None 
General Description:                   Industrial Water 
                                                   treatment product                                           
 
SDS Identification Code:          
Revision Date:                                
24 hour Emergency Response: 800-535-5053 
 
Recommended Use:   Deposit penetrant, remover and corrosion inhibitor 
 
2. HAZARD IDENTIFICATION 
 
Hazard Classification:          Skin irritation, category 2 
                                              Eye irritation, category 2 
 
Signal Word:                         Danger 
Hazard Statements(s):           H315: Causes skin irritation 
                                              H319: Causes serious eye irritation 
 
Pictograms of related hazards: 

                                               
 
Precautionary Statements: 
P264: Wash hands thoroughly after handling 
P270: Do not eat, drink or smoke when using this product. 
P280: Wear protective gloves/protective clothing/eye protection/face protection 
P302+P352: IF ON SKIN: Wash with plenty of soap and water. 
P332+P313: If skin irritation occurs: Get medical advice/attention. 
P362: Take off contaminated clothing and wash before reuse. 
P321: Specific treatment (see First Aid Measures on Safety Data Sheet) 
P305+P351+P338: IF IN EYES: Rinse cautiously with water for several minutes. Remove contact lenses. 
if present and easy to do. Continue rinsing. 
P337+P313: If eye irritation persists: Get Medical advice/attention. 
Description of other Hazards: Not available 

HEALTH HAZARD  2 

FIRE HAZARD  0

REACTIVITY  0

Rating Scale 
4=Extreme 
3=High 
2=Moderate 
1=Slight 
0=Insignificant 



  Boiler Power 640   Page  2 

 
3. COMPOSITION/INFORMATION ON INGREDIENTS 
 
Chemical Name % by weight  TWA/TLV 
Polymaleic Acid                                              <5 15mg/Kg 
(CAS Reg. No. 26099-09-2) 
Sodium Hydroxide < 5 2.0 ppm 
(CAS Reg. No.  1310-73-2) 
Sodium Bisulfite <4 1.2 ppm 
(CAS Reg No. 7631-90-5) 
 
The balance of components comprise proprietary information. 
 
4. FIRST-AID MEASURES 
 
Eye contact:                    Flush eyes IMMEDIATELY and gently with large volumes of water for 15 
                  minutes. Use finger to assure that eye lids are separated and that the eye is being 
                                                irrigated. Obtain medical assistance promptly. 
 
Skin contact:                   Flush affected area promptly with large quantities of water for 15 minutes. Except 
                                                In the most minor, superficial and localized burns, cover the affected area with a  
                                                Sterile dressing or clean sheeting and transport for medical care. DO NOT APPLY 
                                                GREASES OR OINTMENTS.    
 
Ingestion:                            In the event of ingestion administer 3-4 glasses of milk or water. DO NOT  
                                                INDUCE VOMITING. Obtain medical care and hospital treatment as soon 
                                                as possible. 
 
Inhalation:                           Move affected person to uncontaminated atmosphere. If breathing has stop- 
                                                ped or is impaired, give  assisted respiration (mouth to mouth), supplemental 
                                                oxygen should be given if available. Assure that victim does not aspirate vomited  
                                                material by use of postural drainage. Assure that mucous does not obstruct the  
                                                airway.  Seek medical attention.                
 
Note to Physician:          The product has effects similar to those of Sodium hydroxide and is highly  
                                               injurious to all tissues. Chemical pneumonitis, pulmonary edema, laryngeal 
                                               edema and delayed scarring of the airway or other affected organs may occur 
                                               following exposure. There is no specific treatment. Clinical management is  
                                               based upon supportive treatment, which is similar to that for thermal burns. 
                                               victims with major skin contact should be maintained under medical obser- 
                                               vation for at least 24 hours due to possibility of delayed reaction. 
5. FIRE-FIGHTING MEASURES 
 
Extinguishing Media:    Water fog. Foam. Dry Chemical powder. Carbon dioxide (CO2). Use extinguishing 
                                               agent suitable for type of surrounding fire. 
 
Unsuitable extinguishing 
Media:                            Do not use a solid water stream as it may scatter and spread fire. Do not use  
                                               halogenated extinguishing agents. 
 
Specific hazards             The product itself does not burn. May decompose upon heating to produce 



  Boiler Power 640   Page  3 

arising from                    corrosive and/or toxic fumes.  
the chemical                     
 
Special protective           Fire fighters should enter the area only if they are protected from all contact 
Equipment and               with the material.  Full protective clothing, including self-contained breathing 
Precautions for               apparatus, coat pants, gloves, boots and bands around legs, arms and waist,     
Firefighters                     should be worn. No skin surface should be exposed. 
 
Fire-fighting                   In case of fire and/or explosion do not breathe fumes. Move containers from 
Equipment/                     fire area if you can do so without risk. Use water spray to cool unopened contain 
Instructions                     ers. 
 
 
6. ACCIDENTAL RELEASE MEASURES 

 
Personal Precautions:     Wear protective equipment to prevent skin and eye contact. Avoid breathing in 
                                                vapors. May be a slipping hazard. Work up wind or increase ventilation. Contain/ 
                                                prevent run off into drains and waterways. Use absorbent (soil, sand or other inert 
                                                material).  Collect and seal in properly labeled containers or drums for disposal. 
 
Environmental                Clear area of all unprotected personnel. If contamination of sewers or waterways  
Precautions:                    has occurred advise local emergency services. 
 
Methods for clean-up: 
Small spill:                     Use absorbent (soil, sand or other inert material). Collect and seal in properly  
                                               labeled containers or drums for disposal. 
 
Large spill:                     Use absorbent (soil, sand or other inert material). Collect and seal in properly  
                                               labeled containers or drums for disposal. 
 
7. HANDLING AND STORAGE 
 
Handling:                       Avoid contact with eyes, skin and clothing. Avoid breathing vapors. Refer to  
                                              “Exposure Controls/Personal Protection,” Section 8, of the MSDS. 
 
Storage:                          Keep containers tightly closed when not in use. Do not store near food, foodstuff, 
                                               drugs or potable water supplies. Storage must only be in original containers. If 
                                               exposed to temperatures below freezing point (40ºF, 5º C), assure product reaches 
                                               50ºF, 10º C, prior to use. Gently agitate contents of container. Vigorous agitation is  
                                               not required. 
 
Notes:                             Please Note: Freezing will not harm product performance. Simply bring to room  
                                               temperature and allowing it to warm up. It is not recommended to heat or to put a  
                                               heating device into contact with the liquid product. 
 
 
8. EXPOSURE CONTROLS/PERSONAL PROTECTION 
                                             
Exposure Limits:                                                                                            Not Available 
OSHA Permissible Exposure Limits (PELs):                                                Not Available 



  Boiler Power 640   Page  4 

American Conference of Governmental Industrial Hygienists (ACGIH):     Not Available 
Threshold Limit Values (TLVs):                                                                    Not Available 
Other Exposure Limits:                                                                                  Not Available 
 
Engineering Controls:   Natural ventilation should be adequate under normal use conditions. If inhalation 
                                              risk exists: Use with local exhausts ventilation or while wearing suitable mist  
                                              respirator. Keep containers closed when not in use. Maintain eye wash fountain 
                                              and quick-drench facilities in work area. 
 
Personal Protection:      Use chemical safety glasses with side shields, goggles, or face shield are  
Eye Protection:              recommended. 
                                              
Hand Protection:           Wear protective gloves 
Skin Protection:            Wear clean body-covering clothing or apron 
Respiratory Protection: Mist respirator as needed 
 

       
 
 
9. PHYSICAL AND CHEMICAL PROPERTIES 
 
Property                                                   Value                                              
Appearance:                                                       Straw color 
Odor:                                                                  Sweet Smell 
pH(neat):                                                            13.5 (approx.) 
Specific Gravity:                                                Not Available                                               
Relative Density:                                                8.93 lb/gallon 
Melting/Freezing Point:                                     Not available                                
Initial Boiling Point and Boiling range:             212º 
Flash Point:                                                        N/A 
Solubility (water):                                              Complete (water) 
Intrinsic Viscosity:                                             Not available 
Flammability (solid, gas):                                  Not available 
Upper/Lower flammability limits:                      Not available 
Vapor Pressure:                                                  Not available 
Evaporation rate:                                                Not available 
Auto-ignition Temperature: 
Decomposition Temperature: 
Partition coefficient:  
 
Note: These physical properties are typical values for this product and not specifications. 
 
10. STABILITY AND REACTIVITY 
 
Reactivity Data:                                            No specific data for this product 
 
Chemical Stability:                                                 
Stability under normal conditions:                     Stable under ordinary conditions of use and storage. 
Stabilizers needed:                                             None needed 
 



  Boiler Power 640   Page  5 

Other Information: 
Conditions to avoid:                                          Not available                                                                           
Materials to avoid:                                             Not available 
 
Hazardous reactions:                                         Will not occur 
Hazardous decomposition products: 
 
11. TOXICOLOGIACAL INFORMATION 
 
Toxicity Studies:                                              Not available 
Acute Toxicity:                                                Not available 
 
 
Skin Corrosion/Irritation:                                Not available 
Serious Eye Damage/Irritation:                       Not available 
Germ Cell Mutagenicity:                                 Not available 
Carcinogenicity:                                              Not available                                                             
Reproductive Toxicity:                                   Not available 
STOT-single exposure:                                   Not available 
STOT-repeated exposure:                               Not available 
Aspiration Hazard:                                          Not available 
 
 
12.ECOLOGICAL INFORMATION 
 
Toxicity: 
Persistence and Degradability: 
Bio-accumulative Potential: 
Mobility in Soil: 
Other Adverse Effects: 
 
13.DISPOSAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Recommended Disposal Containers: 
Recommended Disposal Methods: 
 
 
Physical and Chemical Properties that 
affect Disposal: 
Sewage Disposal: 
Special Precautions for Landfills or Incineration: 
 
14.TRANSPORT INFORMATION 
 
The proper shipping name and/or hazard class for this product may vary according to packaging, properties 
and mode of transportation. Typical proper shipping names for this product are: 
 
DOT 
     UN Number                                           UN1760 
     UN proper shipping name                     Corrosive Liquid N.O.S. (Sodium Hydroxide)                                         
     Transport hazard class(es)                     8 
     Subsidiary class(es)                                



  Boiler Power 640   Page  6 

     Packing group                                        II 
     Special precautions for user 
     Packaging exceptions 
     Packaging non bulk 
     Packaging bulk 
IATA 
     UN Number                                           UN1760 
     UN proper shipping name 
     Transport hazard class(es)                     8 
     Subsidiary class(es) 
     Packing group 
     Environmental hazards 
     Labels required 
     ERG Code 
     Special precautions for user 
IMDG 
     UN Number                                           UN1760 
     UN proper shipping name 
     Transport hazard class(es)                     8 
     Subsidiary class(es) 
     Packing group 
     Environmental hazards 
          Marine pollutant 
     Labels required 
     EmS 
     Special precautions for user 
Transport in bulk according to  
Annex II of MARPOL 73/78 and 
The IBC Code 
 
15. REGULATORY INFORMATION 
 
US federal regulations                                 this product is a “Hazardous Chemical” as defined by the OSHA  
                                                                    Hazard Communication Standard, 29 CFR 1910.1200. 
 
     TSCA Sectin 129b) Export Notification (40 CRF 707, Subpt. D) 
          Not regulated. 
     US. OSHA Specifically Regulated Substances (29 CFR 1910.1001-1050) 
          Not listed. 
     CERCLA Hazardous Substance List (40 CFR 302.4) 
          Sodium hydroxide (CAS 1310-73-2) 
Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986 (SARA) 
     Hazard categories                            Immediate Hazard-Yes 
                                                              Delayed Hazard-No 
                                                              Fire Hazard-No 
                                                              Pressure Hazard-NO 
                                                              Reactivity Hazard-Yes 
     SARA 302 Extremely                      No 
     hazardous substance 
     SARA 311/312 Hazardous              No 
     chemical 
     SARA 313 (TRI reporting) 
          Not regulated. 
Other federal regulations 
      Clean Air Act (CAA) Section 112 Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs) List 



  Boiler Power 640   Page  7 

          Not regulated. 
     Safe Drinking Water Act                Not regulated 
     (SDWA) 
     Food and Drug                               Not regulated 
     Administration (FDA) 
 
US state regulations 
     US. Massachusetts RTK-Substance List 
          Sodium hydroxide (CAS 1310-73-2) 
     US. New Jersey Worker and Community Right –to-Know Act 
          Not regulated. 
     US. Pennsylvania RTK-Hazardous Substances 
          Sodium hydroxide (CAS 1310-73-2) 
     US. Rhode Island RTK 
          Sodium hydroxide (CAS 1310-73-2) 
     US. California Proposition 65 
     California Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act of 1986 (Proposition 65): This material is not  
     known to contain any chemicals currently listed as carcinogens or reproductive toxins. 
 
16. OTHER INFORMATION 
   
Revision Date:                05/01/2015 
Revision Number:           1 
Reason for revision:        New 
 
NOTICE: The information accumulated herein is believed to be accurate based on the information provided,  
although no guarantee or warranty, either expressed  or implied is made as to the accuracy or completeness of 
this information, whether originating with this company or not. Recipients are advised to confirm in advance of 
need that the information is correct, applicable and suitable to their circumstances. The conditions or methods of 
handling, storage, use and disposal of the product and container are beyond our control and may be beyond our 
knowledge. For this and other reasons, we do not assume responsibility and expressly disclaim liability for loss, 
damage or expense arising out of or in any way connected with the handling , storage or use of this information 
or product. If the product is used as a component in another product, this information may not be applicable. 
 
 
 



1

Leah Whallon

From: Marsha Shoemaker <mshoemaker@enviroag.com>
Sent: Friday, May 31, 2024 11:37 AM
To: Leah Whallon
Cc: jennifer_nelson@seaboardfoods.com
Subject: RE: Application to Amend Permit No. WQ0005231000; Seaboard Foods LLC; Perryton 

Feedmill
Attachments: WQ0005231_Revision 5.28.24.pdf; 5260_Labels.docx; Seaboard Foods application notice 

- original with Spanish.docx

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Ms. Whallon -Please find the information requested from your letter dated 5/2424.   
  
Item#1 - Item 2.c was revised to note Peter Brown as the signature on application. 
Item #2 – The MS Word document of labels is attached.  4 sets of labels were submitted as part of the mailed 
application packet.   
Item #3 – Review of the NORI document is attached as track changes.  Please add the suite number to the notice 
address for Seaboard Foods LLC.   
Item #4 – Spanish translated NORI is attached.   
  
Thanks, 
Marsha 
Enviro-Ag Engineering, Inc. 
806/350-5463 
  

From: Leah Whallon <Leah.Whallon@Tceq.Texas.Gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, May 28, 2024 2:44 PM 
To: Marsha Shoemaker <mshoemaker@enviroag.com> 
Cc: jennifer_nelson@seaboardfoods.com 
Subject: RE: Application to Amend Permit No. WQ0005231000; Seaboard Foods LLC; Perryton Feedmill 
  
Hi Marsha, 
  
Yes, now we only  need the electronic version of the labels in MS Word. Please let me know if you have any 
questions. 
  
Thanks, 

  

  
Leah Whallon 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
Water Quality Division  
512-239-0084 
leah.whallon@tceq.texas.gov 
  

How is our customer service? Fill out our online customer satisfaction survey at 
www.tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey 



2

  
  
  

From: Marsha Shoemaker <mshoemaker@enviroag.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, May 28, 2024 1:50 PM 
To: Leah Whallon <Leah.Whallon@Tceq.Texas.Gov> 
Cc: jennifer_nelson@seaboardfoods.com 
Subject: RE: Application to Amend Permit No. WQ0005231000; Seaboard Foods LLC; Perryton Feedmill 
  
Ms. Whallon – Quick question on Item #2 of the requested information.  I checked with the office manager and the 
labels were inserted in the box with all the application packet copies.  Are you just asking for the MS Word 
document for formatted labels?   
  
Thanks, 
Marsha 
  

From: Leah Whallon <Leah.Whallon@Tceq.Texas.Gov>  
Sent: Friday, May 24, 2024 10:48 AM 
To: Marsha Shoemaker <mshoemaker@enviroag.com> 
Cc: jennifer_nelson@seaboardfoods.com 
Subject: Application to Amend Permit No. WQ0005231000; Seaboard Foods LLC; Perryton Feedmill 
  
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Enviro-Ag Engineering. Do not click links or open attachments unless you have 
verified the sender and know the content is safe. 

  
Good Morning,  
  
Please see the attached Notice of Deficiency letter dated May 24, 2024 requesting additional information needed to 
declare the application administratively complete. Please send the complete response by June 7, 2024. 
  
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
  
Thank you, 

  

  
Leah Whallon 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
Water Quality Division  
512-239-0084 
leah.whallon@tceq.texas.gov 
  

How is our customer service? Fill out our online customer satisfaction survey at www.tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey 
  
  

Disclaimer 

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient and 
others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or 
taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. 
 
This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by Mimecast Ltd, an innovator in 



3

Software as a Service (SaaS) for business. Providing a safer and more useful place for your human generated data. Specializing in; 
Security, archiving and compliance. To find out more Click Here. 

 

Disclaimer 

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient and 
others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or 
taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. 
 
This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by Mimecast Ltd, an innovator in 
Software as a Service (SaaS) for business. Providing a safer and more useful place for your human generated data. Specializing in; 
Security, archiving and compliance. To find out more Click Here. 



TCEQ-10411 (01/08/2024) Industrial Wastewater Application Administrative Report Page 5 of 19 

g. Application Fee 

EPA Classification New Major Amend. 
(with or without 
renewal) 

Renewal 
(with or 
without 
changes) 

Minor Amend. / 
Minor Mod. 
(without 
renewal) 

Minor facility not subject 
to EPA categorical 
effluent guidelines 

(40 CFR Parts 400-471) 

☐ $350 ☒ $350 ☐ $315 ☐ $150 

Minor facility subject to 
EPA categorical effluent 
guidelines 

(40 CFR Parts 400-471) 

☐ $1,250 ☐ $1,250 ☐ $1,215 ☐ $150 

Major facility N/A 2 ☐ $2,050 ☐ $2,015 ☐ $450 

h. Payment Information 

Mailed 

Check or money order No.: 16158 

Check or money order amt.: 350.00 

Named printed on check or money order: Enviro-Ag Engineering, Inc. 

Epay 

Voucher number: Click to enter text. 

Copy of voucher attachment: Click to enter text. 

Item 2. Applicant Information (Instructions, Pages 26) 

a. Customer Number, if applicant is an existing customer: CN603155748 

Note: Locate the customer number using the TCEQ’s Central Registry Customer Search3. 

b. Legal name of the entity (applicant) applying for this permit: Seaboard Foods LLC 

Note: The owner of the facility must apply for the permit. The legal name must be spelled 
exactly as filed with the TX SOS, Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts, County, or in the 
legal documents forming the entity. 

c. Name and title of the person signing the application. (Note: The person must be an 
executive official that meets signatory requirements in 30 TAC § 305.44.) 

Prefix: Click to enter text. Full Name (Last/First Name): Brown, Peter 

Title: President & CEO Credential: Click to enter text. 

d. Will the applicant have overall financial responsibility for the facility? 

☒ Yes  ☐ No 

 
2 All facilities are designated as minors until formally classified as a major by EPA. 
3 https://www15.tceq.texas.gov/crpub/index.cfm?fuseaction=cust.CustSearch  

https://www15.tceq.texas.gov/crpub/index.cfm?fuseaction=cust.CustSearch
https://www15.tceq.texas.gov/crpub/index.cfm?fuseaction=cust.CustSearch


SEABOARD FOODS LLC 
9000 WEST 67TH STREET 
SHAWNEE MISSION KS 66202 
 

 GARY T MONTGOMERY 
13350 COUNTY ROAD U 
PERRYTON TX 79070  
 

 DAN EARL STEED 
PO BOX 281 
GROOM TX 79039  
 

DAVID B PECKENPAUGH 
PO BOX 253 
FARNSWORTH TX 79033 
 

 BRIAN & TAMARACHENA PSHIGODA 
12444 FM 3045 
PERRYTON TX 79070  
 

 JOEL D THOMPSON 
PO BOX 215 
FARNSWORTH TX 79033 
 

EVELYN LEATHERMAN ESTATE 
GAYNELLE HULSEY, 8409 BAXTER DR 
AMARILLO TX 79119 
 

 DEBRA SUE SYMONS 
14688 W LOOP 143 
PERRYTON TX 79070 
 

 PHILIP SYMONS 
701 S DRAKE ST  
PERRYTON TX 79070  
 

JED P SYMONS 
14905 COUNTY ROAD 20  
PERRYTON TX 79070  
 

 ELLIOTT FAMILY FARMS LLC & DOROTHY 
ELLIOTT ESTATE TRUST 
13008 BURNT OAK RD 
OKLAHOMA CITY, OK 73120 
 

 CDH TRUST DTD 10-22-93 
% CAROL HEFNER STEFFENS TRUSTEE 
#10   25 HIGHLAND PARK VLG 
DALLAS TX 75205 
 

TREV M TEVIS 
11750 FM 1267 
PERRYTON TX 79070  
 

 DENZEL D TEVIS 
914 SW 9TH AVE  
PERRYTON TX 79070  
 

 SOUTHWESTERN PUBLIC SERVICE 
ATTN PROPERTY TAX DEPARTMENT  
PO BOX 1979 
DENVER CO 80201 
 

NORRIS LAND COMPANY 
PO BOX 1106 
PERRYTON TX 79070  
 

 WESTON CLARK TAYLOR & KINZY LYNN 
TAYLOR 
14061 COUNTY ROAD 9 
PERRYTON TX 79070 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

  
 



 
APPLICATION. Seaboard Foods LLC, 9000 West 67th Street, Suite 200, Shawnee Mission, 
Kansas 66202, which owns a swine feed processing facility, has applied to the Texas 
Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) to amend Texas Land Application Permit 
(TLAP) No. WQ0005231000 to authorize an increase to the disposal of treated wastewater to a 
volume not to exceed a daily average flow of 11,000 gallons per day and the addition of a second 
evaporation pond. The facility and disposal site are located at 12025 West State Highway 15, 
near the city of Perryton, in Ochiltree County, Texas 79070. TCEQ received this application on 
May 14, 2024. The permit application will be available for viewing and copying at Perry 
Memorial Library, 22 Southeast 5th Avenue, Perryton, in Ochiltree County, Texas prior to the 
date this notice is published in the newspaper. This link to an electronic map of the site or 
facility's general location is provided as a public courtesy and not part of the application or 
notice. For the exact location, refer to the application.  
https://gisweb.tceq.texas.gov/LocationMapper/?marker=-100.926666,36.341944&level=18  
 

Further information may also be obtained from Seaboard Foods LLC at the address stated above 
or by calling Ms. Jennifer Nelson, Associate General Counsel, at 913-261-2600. 

 

******************* 

SOLICITUD. Seaboard Foods LLC, 9000 West 67th Street, Suite 200, Shawnee Mission, 
Kansas 66202, propietaria de una instalación de procesamiento de alimentos para cerdos, ha 
solicitado a la Comisión de Calidad Ambiental de Texas (TCEQ) para modificar el Permiso para 
Aplicación al Suelo de Texas (TLAP) No. WQ0005231000 para autorizar un aumento en la 
descarga de aguas residuales tratadas a un volumen que no sobrepasa un flujo promedio diario de 
11.000 galones por día y la adición de una segunda laguna de evaporación. La instalación y el 
sitio de descarga están ubicados en 12025 West State Highway 15, cerca de la ciudad de 
Perryton, en el condado de Ochiltree, Texas 79070. La TCEQ recibió esta solicitud el 14 de 
mayo de 2024. La solicitud para el permiso estará disponible para leerla y copiarla en la Perry 
Memorial Library, 22 Southeast 5th Avenue, Perryton, en el condado de Ochiltree, Texas, antes 
de la fecha de publicación de este aviso en el periódico. Este enlace a un mapa electrónico de la 
ubicación general del sitio o instalación es proporcionado como una cortesía pública y no es 
parte de la solicitud o aviso. Para la ubicación exacta, consulte la aplicación. 
https://gisweb.tceq.texas.gov/LocationMapper/?marker=-100.926666,36.341944&level=18 

 

También se puede obtener información adicional de Seaboard Foods LLC a la dirección indicada 
arriba o llamando a la Sra. Jennifer Nelson, Asesora Legal General Adjunta, al 913-261-2600. 

 


	Admin Package Cover Page_Alt Language
	wq0005231000-pls
	wq0005231000-nori-eng
	wq0005231000-nori-esp
	wq0005231000-application-original
	LIST OF FIGURES
	LIST OF TABLES
	T.A: FACILITY MAP
	T.B: TREATMENT SYSTEM
	T.C: WELL INFORMATION & GROUNDWATER REPORT
	North Plains Groundwater Conservation District Records
	TWDB Water Information Integration & Dissemination (WIID)
	Railroad Commission Records
	USDA Natural Resource Conservation Service
	Other Artificial Features
	Current Landowner
	On-Site Inspection
	References
	Groundwater Technical Report
	Geomorphologic/Geologic Features
	Outcrops/Stream Interception
	Topographic Depressions
	Excessive Slopes
	Other Large-Scale Conduits
	Aquifer
	Water Wells
	Best Management Practices
	References


	T.D: SOILS MAP & INFORMATION
	T.E: ENGINEERING REPORT – EVAPORATION
	T.F: SDSs
	Water Well Information Table.pdf
	Sheet1

	Admin Attachments.pdf
	A.A: FEE PAYMENT
	A.B: CORE DATA FORM
	A.C: PLAIN LANGUAGE SUMMARY (PLS)
	A.D: PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PLAN (PIP)
	A.E: 7.5-MINUTE USGS TOPOGRAPHIC MAP
	pip-form-tceq-20960.pdf
	for Permit and Registration Applications
	The Public Involvement Plan is intended to provide applicants and the agency with information about how public outreach will be accomplished for certain types of applications in certain geographical areas of the state. It is intended to apply to new activities; major changes at existing plants, facilities, and processes; and to activities which are likely to have significant interest from the public. This preliminary screening is designed to identify applications that will benefit from an initial assessment of the need for enhanced public outreach.
	All applicable sections of this form should be completed and submitted with the permit or registration application. For instructions on how to complete this form, see TCEQ-20960-inst.
	Section 1. Preliminary Screening
	Section 2. Secondary Screening
	Section 3. Application Information
	Section 4. Plain Language Summary
	Community information can be found using EPA’s EJ Screen, U.S. Census Bureau information, or generally available demographic tools.
	Section 6. Planned Public Outreach Activities
	Section 7.  Voluntary Submittal


	Perryton Feedmill - Evap Pond - Liner Cert 12-18-2018.pdf
	Perryton Field Density Workbook.pdf
	9-7
	9-10
	9-11
	9-25
	10-1
	10-2
	10-4
	10-16
	Density Test Map.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1




	Evap Pond Calcs with precip_2024_MAX.pdf
	critical eval
	avg eval


	wq0005231000-application-updates
	wq0005231000-nod1-email-response
	WQ0005231_Revision 5.28.24
	Item 2. Applicant Information (Instructions, Pages 26)

	5260_Labels
	Seaboard Foods application notice - original with Spanish


	New Permit or Registration Application: Off
	New Activity – modification, registration, amendment, facility, etc: Yes
	Requires public notice: Yes
	Considered to have significant public interest: Off
	Located within any of the following geographical locations: Off
	Public Involvement Plan not applicable to this application: 
	 Provide brief explanation: Off

	Public Involvement Plan brief explanation: Facility is not located within the designated MSA of the Texas Panhandle.
	Air Initial: Off
	Air Federal: Off
	Air Amendment: Off
	Air Standard Permit: Off
	Air Title V: Off
	Waste Municipal Solid Waste: Off
	Waste Industrial and Hazardous Waste: Off
	Waste Scrap Tire: Off
	Waste Radioactive Material Licensing: Off
	Waste Underground Injection Control: Off
	Water Quality - Texas Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (TPDES): Off
	Water Quality - Texas Land Application Permit (TLAP): Off
	Water Quality - State Only Concentrated Animal Feeding Operation (CAFO): Off
	Water Quality - Water Treatment Plant Residuals Disposal Permit: Off
	Water Quality - Class B Biosolids Land Application Permit: Off
	Water Quality - Domestic Septage Land Application Registration: Off
	Water Rights New Permit - New Appropriation of Water: Off
	Water Rights New Permit - New or existing reservoir: Off
	Amendment to an Existing Water Right - Add a New Appropriation of Water: Off
	Amendment to an Existing Water Right - Add a New or Existing Reservoir: Off
	Amendment to an Existing Water Right - Major Amendment that could affect other water rights or the environment: Off
	Plain Language Summary: 
	City of Public Involvement Plan: 
	County of Public Involvement Plan: 
	Census Tract of Public Involvement Plan: 
	City Level: Off
	County Level: Off
	Census Level: Off
	Percent of people over 25 years of age who at least graduated from high school: 
	Per capita income for population near the specified location: 
	Percent of minority population and percent of population by race within the specified location: 
	Percent of Linguistically Isolated Households by language within the specified location: 
	Languages commonly spoken in area by percentage: 
	Community and/or Stakeholder Groups: 
	Historic public interest or involvement: 
	Is this application subject to the public participation requirements of Title 30 Texas Administrative Code (30 TAC) Chapter 39?: Off
	Additional Public Outreach: 
	If yes, do you intend at this time to provide public outreach other than what is required by rule?: Off
	Will you provide notice of this application in alternative languages?: Off
	Publish in alternative language newspaper: Off
	Post on Commissioner’s Integrated Database Website: Off
	Mailed by TCEQ’s Office of the Chief Clerk: Off
	Other: Off
	Other Description: 
	Is there an opportunity for some type of public meeting, including after notice?: Off
	If a public meeting is held, will a translator be provided if requested?: Off
	TCEQ Regional Office: Off
	TCEQ Central Office: Off
	Public Space: Off
	Public Space Description: 
	Will you provide notice of this application, including notice in alternative languages?: Off
	Voluntarily Publish in alternative languages newspaper: Off
	Voluntarily Posted on Commissioner’s Integrated Database Website: Off
	Voluntarily Mailed by TCEQ’s Office of the Chief Clerk: Off
	Voluntarily Other: Off
	Voluntarily Other Description: 


